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·1· · · · · · · · · · P-R-O-C-E-E-D-I-N-G-S

·2· · · · · · · · · · · · · ·--oOo--

·3· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Good morning.· We're on the

·4· ·record.· We are here for the hearing in the Matter of

·5· ·the Application of Questar Gas Company for Approval of

·6· ·the Canyon Creek Acquisition as a Wexpro II Property.

·7· · · · · · ·And we're here to consider approval of the

·8· ·settlement stipulation that was filed in this matter.

·9· ·We'll start with appearances.· So, of course, for the

10· ·Utility?

11· · · · · · ·MS. LARKIN BELL:· Colleen Larkin Bell for

12· ·Questar Gas Company.

13· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Okay.· Thank you.

14· · · · · · ·MS. SCHMID:· Patricia E. Schmid with the

15· ·Attorney General's Office for the Division of Public

16· ·Utilities.

17· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Thank you.

18· · · · · · ·MR. OLSEN:· Rex Olsen with the Office of

19· ·Consumer Services.

20· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Okay.· Thank you.· Are there

21· ·any other preliminary matters before we move forward?

22· · · · · · ·MS. LARKIN BELL:· Just a quick question on

23· ·how you would like us to move for admission of our

24· ·exhibits.· In the case of the Company, we've provided

25· ·an exhibit list and a binder with all of the attached
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·1· ·exhibits.

·2· · · · · · ·The court reporter has one.· And if we could

·3· ·move for the admission of those exhibits as indicated

·4· ·on the list, that's fine, or if you want to read

·5· ·everything into the record, we can do that.· Just a

·6· ·preliminary question.

·7· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Okay.· Is there any

·8· ·objection to them being entered as the list without

·9· ·reading each one individually.

10· · · · · · ·MR. OLSEN:· We have no objection.

11· · · · · · ·MS. SCHMID:· No objection.· And the Division

12· ·would like to do the same with its list if permitted.

13· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Certainly.

14· · · · · · ·MS. LARKIN BELL:· Okay.· With that, if you

15· ·want to start with the exhibits.· The Company would

16· ·move for the admission of its exhibits, with the

17· ·exception of one, and that is a separate handout that

18· ·we have handed out both to the court reporter, the

19· ·other parties, and the commissioners.

20· · · · · · ·And we have marked this one as QGC Hearing

21· ·Exhibit 6.0.· It's very similar to Mr. Barrie L.

22· ·McKay's testimony exhibit, with the exception that we

23· ·have added a column to indicate what the proposed

24· ·changes are as agreed to in the stipulation agreement.

25· · · · · · ·And I don't want to move for the admission of
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·1· ·that now.· The parties have just now gotten a copy of

·2· ·that.· I think what I will ask is after Mr. McKay

·3· ·provides testimony in support of the stipulation, we

·4· ·would move for admission of that hearing exhibit at

·5· ·that time.

·6· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Okay.

·7· · · · · · ·MS. LARKIN BELL:· If that works.

·8· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Any objection to admitting

·9· ·all of the exhibits as described with this one

10· ·exception at this point?

11· · · · · · ·MS. SCHMID:· No.

12· · · · · · ·MR. OLSEN:· No objection.

13· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Okay.· They'll be admitted.

14· ·Thank you.

15· · · · · · ·(Exhibits were admitted.)

16· · · · · · ·MS. LARKIN BELL:· With that, I would like to

17· ·call Mr. Barrie L. McKay as our witness who will

18· ·support our settlement stipulation in this matter.

19· · · · · · · · · · · · · ·--oOo--

20· · · · · · · · · · · BARRIE L. MCKAY,

21· · · · having been first duly sworn to tell the

22· · · · truth, was examined and testified as follows:

23· · · · · · · · · · · · · ·--oOo--

24· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Okay.· Thank you.

25· · · · · · ·MS. LARKIN BELL:· Would it be all right for
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·1· ·Mr. McKay to stay here, or would you --

·2· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Oh, yes.· Absolutely.

·3· ·That's fine.

·4· · · · · · ·MS. LARKIN BELL:· Okay.

·5· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· I think is there any

·6· ·objection if we can just go to all the witnesses, and

·7· ·then if there's any question from the bench, we save

·8· ·them until the end?· Any objection to moving forward

·9· ·that way?

10· · · · · · ·MS. SCHMID:· No objection.

11· · · · · · ·MR. OLSEN:· No objection, Your Honor.

12· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Thank you.

13· · · · · · · · · · · · ·EXAMINATION

14· ·BY MS. LARKIN BELL:

15· · · · Q.· ·Mr. McKay, please state your name and -- name

16· ·for the record.

17· · · · A.· ·Barrie L. McKay.

18· · · · Q.· ·And by whom are you employed?

19· · · · A.· ·Questar Gas Company.

20· · · · Q.· ·What is your title, your place of employment?

21· · · · A.· ·I'm vice president of regulatory affairs and

22· ·energy efficiency.

23· · · · Q.· ·And did you file direct testimony in this

24· ·proceeding consisting of nine pages and pre-marked as

25· ·QGC Exhibit 1.0, with attached Exhibits 1.1 through 1.3
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·1· ·on August 31, 2015?

·2· · · · A.· ·Yes I did.

·3· · · · Q.· ·And if I were to ask you the same questions

·4· ·today that were asked in your pre-filed direct

·5· ·testimony, would your answers be the same?

·6· · · · A.· ·Yes.

·7· · · · Q.· ·Are you prepared today to summarize for the

·8· ·commission the settlement stipulation that was filed in

·9· ·this matter?

10· · · · A.· ·Yes, I am.

11· · · · Q.· ·Go ahead.

12· · · · A.· ·We have been -- I guess I wouldn't mind at

13· ·this point pointing out this hearing exhibit that is

14· ·essentially Exhibit 1.II, but was -- my counsel has

15· ·already pointed we have added an additional column.

16· · · · · · ·In our preparation for summary today, we

17· ·thought it would be a useful tool as we walk through

18· ·the stipulation itself.· So with that said, I'm going

19· ·to probably be referring to the stipulation pages, as

20· ·well as this summary and try to kind of tie those

21· ·together.· I know we planned to have questions at the

22· ·end, but if there's anything I'm saying along the way

23· ·that there's questions about, feel free to --

24· · · · · · ·MS. LARKIN BELL:· Additionally, one other

25· ·comment, if the Commission has any questions with
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·1· ·regard to confidential exhibits, we are prepared to

·2· ·discuss those with you today.

·3· · · · · · ·But we would ask at that time that we request

·4· ·that the hearing be closed to the public, given that we

·5· ·do not believe that the settlement stipulation is

·6· ·confidential or that Barrie's testimony with regard to

·7· ·it will be confidential.

·8· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Okay.· Thank you.· If that

·9· ·issue arises, we'll deal with it.

10· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Okay.· First page of the

11· ·stipulation is simply in summary form.· I think the

12· ·recognition that the Questar Gas Company, as well as

13· ·Wexpro, Division of Public Utilities, Utah Office of

14· ·Consumer Services, and Wyoming Office of Consumer

15· ·Advocates were the parties that signed this

16· ·stipulation.

17· · · · · · ·The key takeaway on that first page is the

18· ·recognition that both the Utah and the Wyoming

19· ·Commission need to approve the stipulation in order for

20· ·it to become effective.

21· · · · · · ·The pages 2 and 3 I think simply are

22· ·procedural history summary, recognizing that we have a

23· ·Wexpro II agreement, which is why we brought the

24· ·property in the first place.

25· · · · · · ·Paragraph 2 is recognition of the Trail 2
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·1· ·stipulation.· Key reason why that needs to be pointed

·2· ·out I think in our procedural history is that there was

·3· ·a settlement in that docket that both Wyoming and Utah

·4· ·approved that helped to govern the Wexpro property

·5· ·going into the future.· And that the -- this

·6· ·application, the Canyon Creek application, complied

·7· ·with what was required there.

·8· · · · · · ·Wexpro did indeed purchase this property at

·9· ·its own risk.· And they are required, since this

10· ·property is within the development drilling area, to

11· ·bring that before the Utah and Wyoming Commissions.

12· · · · · · ·It does complete specifically -- when I say

13· ·"complete," it makes it so that Wexpro now owns -- has

14· ·100 percent ownership in the Canyon Creek area.

15· ·Previous to that, we had 70 percent.· It was being

16· ·provided to Questar Gas as a cost of the service, and

17· ·this additional 30 percent, it has full ownership now.

18· · · · · · ·As required, they also have -- we, Questar

19· ·Gas, filed with a complete -- complete requirements of

20· ·the Wexpro II agreement, which is all of the data

21· ·identified in the Exhibits A through P.· Following our

22· ·application, the hydrocarbon monitor, according to what

23· ·was laid out in the Wexpro II agreement, filed his

24· ·report within the seven business days, both in Utah and

25· ·in Wyoming.· I think that will become part of the
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·1· ·record also.

·2· · · · · · ·Other takeaway is that in this process of

·3· ·coming to this stipulation, understanding was improved

·4· ·through the process of holding two technical

·5· ·conferences, one here in Utah on September 17th, as

·6· ·well as on October 8, there was a technical conference

·7· ·held in Wyoming.

·8· · · · · · ·And ultimately the parties through numerous

·9· ·data requests and opportunity to sit down and walk

10· ·through and better understand what was being proposed

11· ·and the significant proposals I think that the parties

12· ·have focused on have been the changes that accompanied

13· ·this application.· And this hearing exhibit summary I

14· ·think is a good way of walking through that.· So I'll

15· ·refer back and forth to the actual stipulation itself,

16· ·as well as this hearing exhibit.

17· · · · · · ·But the terms and conditions I think is where

18· ·it really starts to be recognized of what we are

19· ·agreeing to as settling parties.· In paragraph 12, it's

20· ·simply recognition that the Canyon Creek acquisition

21· ·will be approved and improved as a Wexpro II property

22· ·and will function accordingly with the following

23· ·additional agreements that have gone forth.

24· · · · · · ·And that is in paragraph 13, there's -- that

25· ·specifically relates to line 1 of this hearing exhibit.
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·1· ·The parties are essentially -- I would describe it as

·2· ·doing five things here within this paragraph.

·3· ·Number 1, we're recognizing that Wexpro is going to

·4· ·continue to be the one that designs their annual

·5· ·drilling program.

·6· · · · · · ·Next part of that sentence, we're recognizing

·7· ·that a drilling program might not always happen in the

·8· ·fall, for example.· It might be a drilling program

·9· ·that's committed to or decided in the spring or some

10· ·other time of year.· So we're trying to make it clear

11· ·that that could happen at a different time of the year.

12· · · · · · ·And then the next part is that there is a

13· ·moment in which Wexpro needs to commit or become

14· ·obligated to a drilling rig.· So we're recognizing that

15· ·at that point in time, couple of things have to be

16· ·taking place.

17· · · · · · ·Number 1, the average of what they plan to go

18· ·out and drill as far as their drilling plan.· And we

19· ·define the average carefully as the first five years --

20· ·the costs related to the first five years of

21· ·production, divided by the production from that first

22· ·five years' production.· That's going to come up and

23· ·create a cost per dekatherm.· That cost per dekatherm

24· ·needs to be at or below the five-year forward curve.

25· · · · · · ·Now, the five-year forward curve was a term
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·1· ·that we agreed to in the Trail stipulation.· But it's

·2· ·something that we further defined here in the Canyon

·3· ·Creek stipulation to make sure everybody understood

·4· ·exactly what was meant by that and how Wexpro had been

·5· ·calculating it.

·6· · · · · · ·So that moves us to paragraph 14, which is

·7· ·just further defining on this hearing exhibit our line

·8· ·number 1.· And that is the actual formula that makes up

·9· ·the five-year forward curve.

10· · · · · · ·And the best way I have found to do it, and I

11· ·think that we put together a pretty good summary, I'm

12· ·just going to turn to the exhibit -- stipulation

13· ·Exhibit 1 in what we've put together with the

14· ·stipulation.

15· · · · · · ·And in referring to that, the first part of

16· ·the formula, which is A, which is identified as the

17· ·NYMEX forward curve, and that shows up here on the

18· ·stipulation Exhibit 1 as a blue line.· And that blue

19· ·line shows 60 months' forecast and has the estimated

20· ·price as of that date.

21· · · · · · ·And then the next part, B, which is the -- we

22· ·recognize that we have a different price here in the

23· ·Rockies, and so we have a basis difference that's

24· ·identified as the next part of the formula.· And that

25· ·part shows up as a red line on this stipulation
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·1· ·exhibit.· And then these two need to be added together

·2· ·to come up with the Rockies adjusted price.· That shows

·3· ·up as the green line on this graph.

·4· · · · · · ·And we recognize that that is five years'

·5· ·worth of forecasts.· Now, the next part is the creation

·6· ·of the component of the formula D, which is simply

·7· ·adding up 60 months' worth of forecast, so that would

·8· ·be that green line, and dividing it by 60 to come up

·9· ·with that day's average for the next 60 months.

10· · · · · · ·And to that, next thing we recognize -- and

11· ·that is essentially the black line here on Exhibit 1.

12· ·And you can see that there's some volatility in that

13· ·black line.· Sometimes it jumps up, sometimes it goes

14· ·down.

15· · · · · · ·And rather than have parties or Wexpro or

16· ·whoever be looking at, I want to right this right at

17· ·the low part or hit it at the high part, we then

18· ·introduced the idea that we would smooth out this line

19· ·by simply taking the latest 20 trading days and have --

20· ·so we add up the latest 20, divide that by 20, and

21· ·that's what you see as the orange line.· And that's our

22· ·definition of the five-year forward curve.

23· · · · · · ·So a point on that line on the day that

24· ·Wexpro commits to or is obligated to continue forward

25· ·with their drilling plan is the number that needs to be
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·1· ·compared with what the forecast is of the next five

·2· ·years of production.

·3· · · · · · ·And essentially that helps to create or

·4· ·complete that comparison so that we know that that is a

·5· ·forecast.· It's forecast in the future.· It's comparing

·6· ·five years of forecasts that an outside third party is

·7· ·doing, comparing it with five years of forecasts for

·8· ·what Wexpro anticipates to be able to produce from a

·9· ·given drilling plan.

10· · · · · · ·That has to be at or below in order for

11· ·Wexpro to move forward.· We like that as a good check

12· ·to make sure that we're getting properties.· They're

13· ·coming to Questar Gas that are going to be at or below

14· ·that on a forecasted basis.· There's also some

15· ·comparison later on that is also a good check, I think

16· ·a good safety valve for our customers that we'll talk

17· ·about later.

18· · · · · · ·The next paragraph in the stipulation is --

19· ·actually, before I move to paragraph 15, let me make an

20· ·observation is that the parties worked through this

21· ·very carefully.· And this Exhibit 1 is a -- comes from

22· ·a worksheet that goes through each day.· And each day

23· ·that there's a trading day, it can be updated for one

24· ·more day.· And Wexpro does that.· Company will be doing

25· ·that.
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·1· · · · · · ·We're offering that as something -- we know

·2· ·we do a lot of reporting, and we didn't come with any

·3· ·decision exactly of when and how often.· We think it

·4· ·could be available at any time.· But we think it might

·5· ·be wise for Questar Gas to be providing that maybe on

·6· ·at least an annual basis.· Commission can take note of

·7· ·that.· And however they might feel comfortable, if

·8· ·that's something they want more often.

·9· · · · · · ·But as you'll see here in a bit, we're going

10· ·to be doing a calculation and an analysis on an annual

11· ·basis.· That seemed at least an appropriate opportunity

12· ·to be providing that to all the parties.· But it can be

13· ·provided at other times during the year if the parties

14· ·or the Commission wanted it.

15· · · · · · ·That moves us to photograph 15.· Paragraph 15

16· ·specifically relates to line 4 here in this hearing

17· ·exhibit, and that's the recognition that the property

18· ·that has already been developed, it's referred to as

19· ·pre-2016 oil and gas properties, there was -- developed

20· ·under a previous set of guidelines and terms will be

21· ·governed over the remaining life of that property, as

22· ·was set forth in the Wexpro I and II agreements.

23· · · · · · ·That moves us to paragraph 16.· And that's

24· ·the part where there begins to be some significant

25· ·changes in these models going forward.· And that --
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·1· ·where the parties agree that the post-2015 properties,

·2· ·and that's both oil and gas, as well as the allowance

·3· ·for funds used during construction, all of those under

·4· ·the Wexpro I or Wexpro II agreement had returns higher

·5· ·than what is now being proposed.· And what's being

·6· ·proposed is for the life of all of those properties

·7· ·going forward, they will be earning a Commission

·8· ·allowed rate of return as defined in the Wexpro II

·9· ·agreement.

10· · · · · · ·For just memory purposes, that's something

11· ·that's weighted between -- Utah's usage in a given year

12· ·and Wyoming's usage, and that's weighted based on what

13· ·the Commissions have allowed as their most recent

14· ·allowed rate of return.

15· · · · · · ·That moves us I think to paragraph 17.· And

16· ·17 is doing three specific things.· And it relates to

17· ·line 6 here in the hearing exhibit.· And as you can see

18· ·here that the Company proposed just a 50/50 sharing.

19· ·But as the -- we met with the parties, there was some

20· ·concerns that we had worked through and have agreed

21· ·upon.

22· · · · · · ·And that's, first of all, we did agree that

23· ·on a going forward basis that when there's new drilling

24· ·or development wells that there would be a sharing of

25· ·the costs.· If, in fact, there happened to be dry hole
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·1· ·cost, there would be a sharing of those costs 50/50.

·2· · · · · · ·Now, we recognize in the next part of this

·3· ·paragraph that although in the definition in Wexpro I

·4· ·and Wexpro II, a dry hole cost is identified as being a

·5· ·plugged and abandoned well or a well that has not

·6· ·passed the commerciality test.· And that's defined as

·7· ·dry hole.

·8· · · · · · ·We break it out here in this paragraph.· The

·9· ·reason we do is we recognize on those -- we're going to

10· ·refer to them as non-commercial wells, they may still

11· ·be produced if their costs, okay, are covered by the

12· ·cash that could be received in selling the gas, okay?

13· · · · · · ·So it's not such a bad well that it should be

14· ·plugged and abandoned, but you can actually cover your

15· ·cash costs.· In that instance in this paragraph, you

16· ·can see that the parties have agreed that the revenues

17· ·and the related expenses from a non-commercial well

18· ·will also be shared on a 50/50 basis.

19· · · · · · ·Additionally, the parties have agreed that

20· ·there will be a cap on what this sharing would be for

21· ·the customers.· And that cap is going to be limited to

22· ·4.5 percent of Wexpro's annual developed drilling that

23· ·the customer would be responsible for.· Now, there's

24· ·also some additional parameters as it relates to dry

25· ·hole that will come up here in paragraph 19, but I'm
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·1· ·going to wait until we get there.

·2· · · · · · ·So let's move to paragraph 18.· And 18 is

·3· ·dealing with line 7 here in the hearing exhibit.· It's

·4· ·where the Company had proposed that there would be an

·5· ·opportunity for sharing of savings that resulted from

·6· ·wells that would be drilled after 2015 if certain

·7· ·parameters had been met.

·8· · · · · · ·And the biggest parameter is that the overall

·9· ·cost of service needed to be lower than the market

10· ·price.· That sounds really good until you get into

11· ·figuring out, okay, what does market price really

12· ·represent here?· What all is included in the cost of

13· ·service?

14· · · · · · ·And so we go through an effort in this

15· ·paragraph 18 to try to define all of the components

16· ·that would go into this calculation so that it's

17· ·clearly understood what the intent was.· So

18· ·paragraph 18(a) simply recognizes that we need to use

19· ·the volumes that are going into the interstate

20· ·pipeline.

21· · · · · · ·In the past, there have been some variances

22· ·or differences in that, but we are clarifying that

23· ·those are the volumes that are intended to be used in

24· ·this calculation.· Paragraph B goes through the process

25· ·of what needs to take place to determine what a market
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·1· ·price is going to be.

·2· · · · · · ·And I should identify here, too, that we're

·3· ·trying to identify what this market price is and this

·4· ·cost of service price is for an IRP year.· So we

·5· ·actually have an exhibit that we'll walk through here

·6· ·in a minute, but it's illustrative of calculating these

·7· ·rates or these prices for an IRP year.

·8· · · · · · ·I don't want people to think that they

·9· ·couldn't be calculated for some other 12-month period

10· ·of time.· It does need to be over a 12-month period for

11· ·the comparison.· And that will probably -- even be

12· ·doing that as a company.· But for this calculation to

13· ·determine if there has been sharing occur, it will be

14· ·the end of an IRP year.

15· · · · · · ·Paragraph 18(c) specifically relates to how

16· ·in cost of service price is going to be calculated.

17· ·And it also recognizes that in this calculation that

18· ·the cost for dry hole, that would be both those that

19· ·are plugged and abandoned, as well as commercial, would

20· ·be included in as a hurdle that would need to be able

21· ·to be met before Wexpro begins to be able to receive

22· ·any sharing of savings.

23· · · · · · ·Paragraph D is simply an identification of

24· ·timing and review rights, if you will.· And that is

25· ·each June, which would be following the IRP year, IRP
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·1· ·year ends on May 31st, so in the month of June, we'll

·2· ·be calculating, Questar Gas, along with help from the

·3· ·records of Wexpro, what the market price is, what the

·4· ·cost of service price is.

·5· · · · · · ·Then after we go through this calculation,

·6· ·it's specifically pointed out that if there is indeed

·7· ·savings, that will show up as a separate line item that

·8· ·Wexpro will have on their operator service fee that we,

·9· ·Questar Gas, will be able to see.· Questar Gas, in

10· ·turn, will be separately identifying that for all

11· ·parties to see in 191 account entry.

12· · · · · · ·Then we recognize that the parties,

13· ·particularly the Division here in Utah, as well as the

14· ·Wyoming OCA, have the opportunity to audit and review

15· ·that calculation.· And if there is any concerns or

16· ·disputes, that they would be resolved in front of the

17· ·Commissions who have jurisdiction over the managing of

18· ·the 191 account.

19· · · · · · ·It's kind of a high-level summary of what

20· ·we're trying to accomplish there.· Parties then went

21· ·through and tried to develop, just so there wouldn't be

22· ·any doubt in anybody's mind, an illustration of how

23· ·this calculation is going to work.· So that shows up in

24· ·settlement stipulation Exhibit 2.

25· · · · · · ·I thought I'd just run through that example
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·1· ·here as you look at that page.· You can see that the

·2· ·first part of it, lines 1 through 14, is an

·3· ·illustration of how the market price, the average

·4· ·market price, will be calculated.· That shows that

·5· ·we'll go out and we'll collect from June through May in

·6· ·column A what the first of the month index price has

·7· ·been on Northwest Pipeline.

·8· · · · · · ·Want to pause here for a minute.· A key thing

·9· ·that at least in my mind I do in trying to

10· ·differentiate parts of this agreement that we are --

11· ·have agreed on is this part that we're dealing with

12· ·right now, which is a calculation of savings and how

13· ·they might be shared, is all based on actual.· And so

14· ·it's outside verifiable numbers that really did happen.

15· · · · · · ·Wexpro, on the other hand, tries its best up

16· ·front when they're going through determining whether or

17· ·not to drill and what those costs would be, that's

18· ·based on forecasts.· That's a five-year forecast that's

19· ·out there.· They're going to doing this.· We're going

20· ·to be able to review that.· But as far as savings and

21· ·everything, that's going to be verified and done on an

22· ·actual basis.· Here in A, we're picking up what the

23· ·actual first month index price is again.

24· · · · · · ·In column B, we're picking up what the actual

25· ·cost of service into the interstate pipeline volumes
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·1· ·have been.· There's one thing to estimate but now we're

·2· ·picking up what actually had happened.· We multiply

·3· ·those together for each month to come up with what a

·4· ·comparable market price may have been if Questar Gas

·5· ·would have gone out and purchased that gas on the open

·6· ·market rather than receiving it from Wexpro.

·7· · · · · · ·It's the total of all of those comparable

·8· ·market prices that you can see there in column C

·9· ·that -- line 13 -- is then divided by the total of cost

10· ·of service volumes to come up with what we're defining

11· ·as the average market price.

12· · · · · · ·So we now have got one component of our

13· ·formula, which is going to be the cost per dekatherm

14· ·for the market price.· Now we're looking to figure out

15· ·and compare that to a cost of service price per

16· ·dekatherm.

17· · · · · · ·We've tried to show here the components that

18· ·go into the calculation of that cost and what is

19· ·needed.· Obviously it's going to be the costs

20· ·themselves.· We recognize that there's going to be

21· ·different components being brought together here.· We

22· ·wanted to give the impression that all of Wexpro I and

23· ·II costs would be being brought into this calculation,

24· ·that all of the pre-2016 plans or investment will be in

25· ·there, all of the approved developed producing is going
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·1· ·to be there, as well as new development wells.

·2· · · · · · ·We chose to break out those post-2015 into

·3· ·two different categories so that people could see

·4· ·particularly which volumes we're going to be comparing

·5· ·this and applying it to in the calculation of savings.

·6· · · · · · ·Also recognize that you could be adding

·7· ·additional properties that are approved and already

·8· ·developed.· And then you're also adding properties

·9· ·through drilling in the future.· That's why I wanted to

10· ·break those two out on the post-2015.

11· · · · · · ·Key thing to also remember is we're including

12· ·any of the costs that have been incurred in that year

13· ·related to dry hole in this calculation.· You can see

14· ·that in the asterisks there on line 18.

15· · · · · · ·And to that we need to make sure that we are

16· ·including the representative volumes.· So, again, it's

17· ·just a mirroring of that.· All the volumes from those

18· ·properties need to be included in this calculation.

19· ·And then you can see in lines 23 through 25, we're

20· ·simply going through and trying to illustrate the

21· ·calculation of a cost per dekatherm.

22· · · · · · ·It shows that you could calculate this cost

23· ·per dekatherm for some subpart, but the key cost per

24· ·dekatherm we're after here is the total.· And so it is

25· ·line 17, D-17, that number there that's going to be
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·1· ·divided by the total volumes, which is in column D,

·2· ·line 21 that then calculates what the cost of service

·3· ·price per dekatherm ends up being.· That I just

·4· ·described is illustrated in line 25.

·5· · · · · · ·So now that we've got these two components,

·6· ·we have a market price, we have a cost of service

·7· ·price, we're ready to check to see if, in fact, there's

·8· ·going to be savings, and that's what we're trying to

·9· ·illustrate in line 26.

10· · · · · · ·So if that cost of service price is less than

11· ·the average market price, then we're going to go

12· ·through the calculation of what was shared and how that

13· ·is determined.· It would be -- it is taking what that

14· ·savings amount is on a cost-per-dekatherm basis as

15· ·showing in line 27.· You're going to share this on a

16· ·50/50 basis, so you multiply it by 50 percent.

17· · · · · · ·Then it's applied only to the post-2015

18· ·development well volumes.· And then that dollar amount

19· ·would be an entry that Wexpro would be doing in their

20· ·operating service fee bill that we, Questar Gas, would

21· ·also be making in the 191 account.

22· · · · · · ·That essentially takes us through what we

23· ·were trying to illustrate or show in paragraph 18(e).

24· ·Now, while we're still on this page, the parties I

25· ·think fairly observed that we don't want to with this
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·1· ·change in this agreement make it so Wexpro by un --

·2· ·some unforeseen thing in the moment was able to all of

·3· ·a sudden earn higher returns than had ever been

·4· ·anticipated even in the old agreement.

·5· · · · · · ·So there was a cap put on this, and that's in

·6· ·paragraph 19.· And the parties agreed that in no event

·7· ·shall this shared savings ever have -- be a result of

·8· ·Wexpro earning higher than the base plus the 8 percent.

·9· · · · · · ·So we put a cap on that.· That's identified

10· ·on this worksheet or this Exhibit 2 of the settlement

11· ·stipulation on line 29.· We're trying to make

12· ·everything be consistent, and we have accomplished that

13· ·at that point.

14· · · · · · ·But there's one other thing that we do here

15· ·in paragraph 19, and that is related back to dry hole.

16· ·And that the parties' intent here is that they

17· ·recognize that as -- if, in fact, Wexpro were able to

18· ·achieve that level of savings and were able to get back

19· ·to the base plus 8 percent, during the era of Wexpro I

20· ·and II, when they were earning that level of return,

21· ·they, Wexpro, were taking on 100 percent of the dry

22· ·hole costs.

23· · · · · · ·So we recognize as they get to that point, we

24· ·want to make sure that Wexpro again assumes that dry

25· ·hole cost, all of it.· So we make a statement here, the
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·1· ·parties acknowledge that the effect of this cap and

·2· ·them assuming the dry hole costs could have a -- the

·3· ·effect of Wexpro assuming a greater portion than 50/50

·4· ·on a dry hole, and customers assuming a lesser portion

·5· ·on that as you approach this cap on the earnings.

·6· · · · · · ·I should observe that I don't know if any of

·7· ·the parties think that that's necessarily going to

·8· ·happen tomorrow, but we wanted to make sure that as

·9· ·those that have identified and made a change that we're

10· ·recommending to the Commission, we wanted that intent

11· ·to take place if and when that happens down the road.

12· ·So that's why we've tried to spell that out clearly

13· ·there.

14· · · · · · ·So that essentially takes us through

15· ·paragraph 19.· And paragraph 19, as you can see, it

16· ·helps to clarify what we're showing here on hearing

17· ·exhibit in both lines 6 related to the dry hole and

18· ·line 7, which is the incentive and the -- incentive for

19· ·Wexpro to help bring costs down.· As they do, if they

20· ·can do it below the market price, then there's an

21· ·opportunity for sharing of those savings on just the

22· ·post-2015 development wells.

23· · · · · · ·That takes us to paragraph 20, which will

24· ·correlate with line 2 from our hearing exhibit.· And

25· ·that's where the parties have agreed that over the next
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·1· ·five years, so by year 2020, Wexpro will be moving

·2· ·their overall production of what they provide to

·3· ·Questar Gas down to 55 percent.· So that in 2020, the

·4· ·cap, if you will, of the amount that they're providing

·5· ·to Questar Gas needs to be at 55 percent.

·6· · · · · · ·Last part of that paragraph recognizes that

·7· ·the minimum threshold that is specifically identified

·8· ·in the Trail stipulation continues to be in place as it

·9· ·relates to that.· Should just add here we point this

10· ·out later in the stipulation that other parts of that

11· ·stipulation that may not be specifically called out

12· ·here or being proposed be modified will continue to be

13· ·in place.

14· · · · · · ·So in this particular area, the calculations

15· ·that go into making sure that Questar Gas is paying the

16· ·minimum of cost of service or market, whichever's

17· ·lower, as we reach this cap still stays in place.

18· · · · · · ·Next paragraph 21 is the recognition that we

19· ·wanted to try to bring a lot of what's now beginning to

20· ·be a few more documents than one.· In fact, it's going

21· ·to be quite a few documents.· We recognize that for

22· ·someone to totally understand how all these properties

23· ·should be handled and treated needed to read them

24· ·collectively.

25· · · · · · ·So we agreed that we will provide as a place
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·1· ·on our website, and just in talking through it, it

·2· ·would be our Questar Gas website, as well as Wexpro's

·3· ·website, all relevant documents pertaining to

·4· ·management and implementation of cost of service

·5· ·production.· We list those here, and recognize in

·6· ·paragraph 22 that they need to be read collectively to

·7· ·make sure that we have the proper understanding of

·8· ·that.

·9· · · · · · ·And, also, in paragraph 22, we recognize that

10· ·anything else that hasn't been specifically called out

11· ·in this stipulation continues in effect as it was

12· ·intended to in any of the original documents.

13· · · · · · ·And that essentially goes back and covers

14· ·line 3 here in this hearing because we don't have a

15· ·paragraph that specifically calls that out.· But we

16· ·recognize here in paragraph 22 that we will continue to

17· ·have all approved, developed, producing, or pre-81

18· ·wells be at the Commission-allowed return.

19· · · · · · ·I think those are the general -- the

20· ·specific -- I shouldn't say "general."· Those are the

21· ·specific highlights related to this stipulation.

22· ·There's some other paragraphs in here that I think are

23· ·more general in nature.

24· · · · · · ·But I would observe that I think that the

25· ·results of this stipulation and what we've been able to
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·1· ·work with with the parties produce what I would

·2· ·describe as the checks and the balances and the

·3· ·incentives to provide a cost-of-service relationship

·4· ·with -- I'm going to represent is Questar Gas -- with

·5· ·an exploration production Company, Wexpro, that provide

·6· ·the opportunity for continued savings.

·7· · · · · · ·We've enjoyed some wonderful savings through

·8· ·the years.· We had significant change in the gas market

·9· ·that none of the people here in this room probably

10· ·could have forecast, nor could anyone else, that

11· ·occurred about a year ago.· I think we've worked

12· ·through a process that sets us up for opportunities to

13· ·be able to have those savings in the future.

14· · · · · · ·There's no guarantee.· Wexpro is going to

15· ·have a challenge to be able to meet, beat that

16· ·five-year forward curve.· But it's a great incentive,

17· ·and we feel confident that we're going to be bringing

18· ·gas that again is able to provide savings for us in the

19· ·future.

20· · · · · · ·Like the incentives that are set up for

21· ·Wexpro to be able to go forward and be able to be

22· ·incentivized to do good things for both of them,

23· ·because they're going to get rewarded.· We're going to

24· ·get rewarded as customers and be able to receive lower

25· ·than market price gas.
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·1· · · · · · ·I think the result of this is in the public

·2· ·interest and is just and reasonable, and observe that I

·3· ·think that summarizes our testimony related to the

·4· ·stipulation.

·5· · · · Q.· ·Thank you, Mr. McKay.

·6· · · · · · ·MS. LARKIN BELL:· Before I forget, I would

·7· ·like to move then for the admission of QGC Hearing

·8· ·Exhibit 6.0?

·9· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Any objection?

10· · · · · · ·MR. OLSEN:· No objection.

11· · · · · · ·MS. SCHMID:· Objection.

12· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· That will be entered.· Thank

13· ·you.

14· · · · · · ·(Exhibit was received.)

15· · · · · · ·MS. LARKIN BELL:· I failed to introduce

16· ·Mr. Brady Rasmussen, who is the executive

17· ·vice president of Wexpro.· He is also available today

18· ·should the commissioners or parties have questions.

19· ·With that, I think our summary is concluded.

20· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Thank you.· Any -- any

21· ·questions for them from the Division or Office, or

22· ·shall we just move on?

23· · · · · · ·MS. SCHMID:· No questions.

24· · · · · · ·MR. OLSEN:· No questions.

25· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Thank you.· Ms. Schmid?
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·1· · · · · · ·MS. SCHMID:· Thank you.· The Division would

·2· ·like to call Mr. Douglas D. Wheelwright as its witness.

·3· · · · · · · · · · · · · ·--oOo--

·4· · · · · · · · · ·DOUGLAS D. WHEELWRIGHT,

·5· · · · having been first duly sworn to tell the

·6· · · · truth, was examined and testified as follows:

·7· · · · · · · · · · · · ·EXAMINATION

·8· ·BY MS. SCHMID:

·9· · · · Q.· ·Good morning, could you please state your

10· ·employer, title, and place of business for the record?

11· · · · A.· ·Yes.· I am the technical consultant for the

12· ·Division of Public Utilities.· My business address is

13· ·160 East, 300 South.

14· · · · Q.· ·Could you briefly describe your activities on

15· ·behalf of the Division in this docket?

16· · · · A.· ·Yes.· I reviewed the application and

17· ·participated in meetings with the Company, filed

18· ·numerous data requests to obtain additional information

19· ·concerning the filing and filed testimony.

20· · · · Q.· ·Do you have any changes to your testimony

21· ·which was filed with the Commission pre-marked as DPU

22· ·Exhibit No. 1.0D with associated exhibits?

23· · · · A.· ·No changes.

24· · · · Q.· ·If I were to ask you the same questions today

25· ·as contained in that testimony, would your answers be
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·1· ·the same?

·2· · · · A.· ·Yes, they would.

·3· · · · · · ·MS. SCHMID:· The Division would like to move

·4· ·for the admission of Division Exhibits DPU Exhibit

·5· ·No. 1.0D through DPU Exhibit No. 1.5D as memorialized

·6· ·on the DPU witness list given to the parties and the

·7· ·court reporter in this docket.

·8· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Any objection to that

·9· ·motion?

10· · · · · · ·MS. LARKIN BELL:· No objection.

11· · · · · · ·MR. OLSEN:· No objection.

12· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Thank you.· That will be

13· ·entered.

14· · · · · · ·(Exhibits were received.)

15· · · · Q.· ·(By Ms. Schmid) Do you have a summary to

16· ·give?

17· · · · A.· ·Yes, I do.

18· · · · Q.· ·Please proceed.

19· · · · A.· ·Thank you.· Thank you, Commissioners.· The

20· ·objective of the Wexpro II agreement was to create a

21· ·structure and a mechanism that could potentially allow

22· ·additional properties to be included in future cost of

23· ·service gas production.

24· · · · · · ·The Canyon Creek acquisition, which is

25· ·described in detail by the Company, is within the
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·1· ·Wexpro I development drilling area.· And under the

·2· ·terms of the Wexpro II agreement, Questar Gas is

·3· ·required to bring this property before the Commission

·4· ·for approval.

·5· · · · · · ·This purchase includes an increased ownership

·6· ·in 110 existing and producing wells, along with 30

·7· ·future well locations.· The future drilling locations

·8· ·are in a field that is with known production and where

·9· ·Wexpro has experience with previous drilling in this

10· ·field.

11· · · · · · ·The calculations and assumptions used in this

12· ·acquisition have been reviewed and evaluated by

13· ·David Evans, the independent hydrocarbon monitor.· On

14· ·September 10th, 2015, Mr. Evans filed a report with the

15· ·Division and indicated that in his opinion, the

16· ·reserves and associated economic information presented

17· ·by Wexpro were reasonable.

18· · · · · · ·The specifics of the cost of service price

19· ·projections from this acquisition are confidential but

20· ·have been included in Exhibit L and L-1 of the filing.

21· ·The natural gas from the additional Canyon Creek wells

22· ·represent a small percentage of the total Wexpro

23· ·production and will have a minor impact on the total

24· ·price of cost of service gas.

25· · · · · · ·A comparison of the total cost of service
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·1· ·price from all Wexpro production and the projected

·2· ·market price for the next five years has been included

·3· ·as Exhibit 1.1 of my direct testimony.

·4· · · · · · ·As part of this application, the Company has

·5· ·included significant changes to the Wexpro agreements.

·6· ·The proposed changes would reduce the allowed rate of

·7· ·return for new development from the base rate of

·8· ·return, plus an 8 percent premium currently calculated

·9· ·at 20 percent to the Commission-allowed rate of return,

10· ·currently 7.64 percent.

11· · · · · · ·This lower rate of return will apply to new

12· ·development in all fields and will allow Wexpro to

13· ·begin drilling as early as next year.· The lower rate

14· ·of return will allow future drilling not only in Canyon

15· ·Creek, but also in other fields, such as Pinedale and

16· ·Trail.· Additional wells can be drilled if the cost of

17· ·service production is at or below the five-year forward

18· ·price curve.

19· · · · · · ·Another change calls for ratepayers to share

20· ·50 percent of the dry hole or non-commercial well costs

21· ·and to potentially bear additional costs under a shared

22· ·savings arrangement.· The recommended changes to the

23· ·Wexpro agreements have been discussed in detail with

24· ·parties in Utah and Wyoming and are outlined in the

25· ·settlement stipulation.
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·1· · · · · · ·One of the primary concerns for this in the

·2· ·previous acquisition is the volume or percentage of the

·3· ·Questar Gas requirement that is provided by Wexpro.· As

·4· ·part of the stipulation, Questar and Wexpro will

·5· ·continue to manage the combined cost of service

·6· ·production volume to 65 percent through 2019, but will

·7· ·limit the -- but will be limited to 55 percent

·8· ·beginning in the 2020 IRP year.

·9· · · · · · ·By managing to a specific volume target,

10· ·Questar and Wexpro will be able to determine the pace

11· ·of future drilling.· The Division has reviewed the

12· ·Company's analysis and recommends that the Canyon Creek

13· ·acquisition be included under the Wexpro II agreement.

14· · · · · · ·Approval of the Canyon Creek acquisition as a

15· ·Wexpro II property represents the purchase of a

16· ·long-term resource that could be advantageous to

17· ·ratepayers for many years.· The Division also supports

18· ·the proposed changes to the Wexpro agreements as

19· ·outlined.· The Division believes that the terms of the

20· ·stipulation agreement are just and reasonable and are

21· ·in the public interest.· That concludes my summary.

22· · · · · · ·MS. SCHMID:· Mr. Wheelwright is now available

23· ·for questions.· And before, however, you leave the

24· ·Division, I would like to move for the admission of one

25· ·additional exhibit.
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·1· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Okay.

·2· · · · · · ·MS. SCHMID:· In his summary, Mr. Wheelwright

·3· ·referenced a report from David Evans, the hydrocarbon

·4· ·monitor.· That report was dated September 10, 2015, and

·5· ·filed with the Commission on September 14th as a highly

·6· ·confidential document.· The Division would like to move

·7· ·for the admission of that report.

·8· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Any objection?

·9· · · · · · ·MS. LARKIN BELL:· No objection.

10· · · · · · ·MR. OLSEN:· No objection.

11· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· That will be entered.· Thank

12· ·you.

13· · · · · · ·MS. SCHMID:· Thank you.

14· · · · · · ·(The report was received.)

15· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Anything further from the

16· ·Division?

17· · · · · · ·MS. SCHMID:· Nothing further.

18· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Then we'll move on to the

19· ·Office and come back to all witnesses for questions

20· ·afterwards.

21· · · · · · ·Mr. Olsen?

22· · · · · · ·MR. OLSEN:· Thank you.· The Division would

23· ·like to call --

24· · · · · · ·MS. SCHMID:· Office --

25· · · · · · ·MR. OLSEN:· Office.· Excuse me.
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·1· · · · · · · · · · · · · ·--oOo--

·2· · · · · · · · · · · GAVIN MANGELSON,

·3· · · · having been first duly sworn to tell the

·4· · · · truth, was examined and testified as follows:

·5· · · · · · · · · · · · ·EXAMINATION

·6· ·BY MR. OLSEN:

·7· · · · Q.· ·Could you for the record state your name and

·8· ·your position with the Office, please?

·9· · · · A.· ·Gavin Mangelson, a utility analyst.

10· · · · Q.· ·During the course of -- did you participate

11· ·in the review of the proposal from Questar Gas that's

12· ·under consideration right now?

13· · · · A.· ·Yes.

14· · · · Q.· ·And as part of that, did you prepare

15· ·testimony, direct testimony, on October 8, 2015?

16· · · · A.· ·Yes.

17· · · · Q.· ·Do you have any -- any summary you'd like to

18· ·present at this time?

19· · · · A.· ·I do.

20· · · · Q.· ·Proceed, please.

21· · · · A.· ·The Office reviewed the Company's

22· ·application, the report from the hydrocarbon monitor,

23· ·and the Company's response to numerous discovery

24· ·requests.· We filed direct testimony raising certain

25· ·concerns about the Company to include the Canyon Creek
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·1· ·acquisition under the Wexpro II agreement.

·2· · · · · · ·During the drafting of this stipulation, the

·3· ·Office and others focused on crafting an agreement that

·4· ·would be durable and benefit and protect ratepayers for

·5· ·as long as natural gas is being extracted and provided

·6· ·under this agreement and not just for the foreseeable

·7· ·future.

·8· · · · · · ·Some of the specific provisions in this

·9· ·settlement that are important to the Office include

10· ·maintaining the advantageous provisions of the Trail 2

11· ·stipulation that I identified in my direct testimony,

12· ·more adequately defining the five-year forward price

13· ·curve definition and the calculation of shared savings,

14· ·resolving concerns identified in my direct testimony,

15· ·and moving from managing Wexpro to a maximum of

16· ·65 percent of the IRP forecast demand to 55 percent in

17· ·2020.

18· · · · · · ·I'd like to speak more specifically to the

19· ·change in management of gas supply.· I noted in my

20· ·direct testimony that according to confidential

21· ·Exhibits M and M-1, cost of service gas supply as a

22· ·percentage of total gas supply is not expected to be

23· ·near the historically high levels.

24· · · · · · ·However, an updated version of Exhibit M-1

25· ·had been provided in response to a data request from
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·1· ·the Division of Public Utilities.· This updated exhibit

·2· ·demonstrates that new drilling across all existing

·3· ·properties will increase the cost of service gas

·4· ·supplies -- supply to levels higher than those cited in

·5· ·my testimony.

·6· · · · · · ·Therefore, the Office's earlier concerns

·7· ·about the high total percentage of Wexpro gas supplies

·8· ·remain at issue in this case.· The settlement

·9· ·stipulation terms adequately address the Office's

10· ·concerns.

11· · · · · · ·The Office is confident that the proposed

12· ·sharing of costs and savings as defined in the

13· ·settlement stipulation will more closely align the

14· ·operating incentives to Wexpro with what will be most

15· ·beneficial to ratepayers.

16· · · · · · ·In summary, the Office believes that adding

17· ·the Canyon Creek acquisition to the Wexpro II

18· ·agreement, coupled with the other provisions of the

19· ·stipulation, is in the public interest and will result

20· ·in just and reasonable rates.· Accordingly, the Office

21· ·respectfully requests that the Commission approve this

22· ·stipulation.

23· · · · Q.· ·Mr. Mangelson, subject to the clarifications

24· ·you've just provided in your sworn summary, would

25· ·you -- and with the modifications inherent therein,
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·1· ·would you affirm the voracity of your prior testimony?

·2· · · · A.· ·Yes, with the -- yeah.

·3· · · · Q.· ·On October 8th?

·4· · · · A.· ·Yes, in light of the issues that I've

·5· ·addressed in my statement.

·6· · · · · · ·MR. OLSEN:· And with that caveat -- with that

·7· ·understanding, Your Honor, we'd like to submit the

·8· ·testimony.

·9· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Any objections?

10· · · · · · ·MS. LARKIN BELL:· No objection.

11· · · · · · ·MS. SCHMID:· No objection.

12· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· They will be entered.

13· · · · · · ·(The testimony was received.)

14· · · · · · ·MR. OLSEN:· Mr. Mangelson has nothing further

15· ·so --

16· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Okay.· Thank you.

17· · · · · · ·Commissioner White, do you have any questions

18· ·for any of the witnesses?

19· · · · · · ·MR. WHITE:· Just a couple.· This is -- I'll

20· ·direct this initially to Mr. McKay, but some of these

21· ·may be convenient for others to opine on.· The first

22· ·one refers to paragraph 4 of the settlement stipulation

23· ·with the closing price referenced of 52.7 million.

24· · · · · · ·My question is is this the -- is this price

25· ·the final price, or is there any potential change
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·1· ·beyond that, date of acquisition?

·2· · · · · · ·MR. McKAY:· That would not be the final

·3· ·price.· I would refer this to an exhibit that helps to

·4· ·walk through what would be closer to the final price.

·5· ·And then I'm going to pitch things to Mr. Rasmussen

·6· ·because it's in his testimony.

·7· · · · · · ·But if you'll turn to his Exhibit 2.2, I

·8· ·recognize that we're now going to confidential -- in a

·9· ·confidential exhibit, but I think we can have a

10· ·discussion around this without bringing out the

11· ·specific confidentiality points.· It is public

12· ·knowledge that it's 52.7, and that's what you're seeing

13· ·there in testimony.

14· · · · · · ·As you look at this exhibit, you can see that

15· ·it needs to be adjusted for some revenue and O&M

16· ·adjustments that happened at closing, and then also it

17· ·needs to be adjusted for the dekatherms or, shall we

18· ·say, the depreciation and depletion that has occurred

19· ·since Wexpro has taken ownership.

20· · · · · · ·So we've tried to illustrate that in line 5,

21· ·which shows the depreciation amount up to the time that

22· ·we filed.· We estimated some -- the -- what the

23· ·depreciation would be from August, September, and

24· ·October.

25· · · · · · ·And we now recognize that we're into
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·1· ·November.· So we would need to -- I don't know if

·2· ·that -- I don't want to be bold -- I'll just -- the

·3· ·assumption is this, that if the property were approved,

·4· ·and let's say it went into effect on December 1, there

·5· ·would need to be at least one more month's worth of

·6· ·depreciation taken into fact and would impact what

·7· ·those final numbers would be.

·8· · · · · · ·And also recognize that these were estimates

·9· ·that were provided on what we thought the closing

10· ·between the previous owner and ending up with the

11· ·balancing of whether they were in balance or out of

12· ·balance.· So those numbers also would be updated for

13· ·actual.

14· · · · · · ·Then that's the dollar amount that you're

15· ·seeing there on line 10.· We're pointing out that that

16· ·dollar amount would change, but it would be a reduced

17· ·amount from that that would then go on Wexpro's books

18· ·as the Canyon Creek Wexpro II property.

19· · · · · · ·MR. WHITE:· Thank you.· That's helpful.

20· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Nothing else from you?

21· · · · · · ·MR. WHITE:· Just a couple more, sorry.

22· · · · · · ·Then on paragraph 13, this one might be

23· ·appropriate for other parties to opine also, but in

24· ·paragraphs 13 and 14, it refers to wording that states

25· ·at the time Wexpro incurs obligation in connection with
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·1· ·the drilling program.

·2· · · · · · ·I guess my question is there a common

·3· ·understanding -- I mean, is that a term of art that

·4· ·incurs obligation, or is there common understanding

·5· ·among the parties of what that would -- would entail or

·6· ·mean?

·7· · · · · · ·MR. McKAY:· I would think that we absolutely

·8· ·talked about that.· So we tried to word this to

·9· ·recognize that Wexpro can have an estimate of what

10· ·might happen, and it can be out there looking in a

11· ·field with a heavy drilling plan.

12· · · · · · ·And they say, Hey, let's -- we're going to

13· ·drill this many wells.· We think this is what the costs

14· ·are going to be.· Now we need to have a drilling rig,

15· ·and we need to be getting everything in line to be able

16· ·to say, Yeah, let's go ahead and do this, assuming that

17· ·we can meet the criteria.

18· · · · · · ·They're going to go through all of that

19· ·process.· Then they're going to come to a point where

20· ·they now are committing dollars.· They're committing

21· ·things that they will be doing going into the future.

22· ·That's where we're saying "incur an obligation."

23· · · · · · ·We recognize that typically happens during

24· ·their fall planning season, and then those rigs are

25· ·going to be up and drilling come next spring.· But we
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·1· ·also on the second part of that paragraph try to

·2· ·identify that maybe some other opportunities come up.

·3· ·They have an opportunity to go in with another partner

·4· ·on some wells.· So it might not always be at that time.

·5· · · · · · ·But the key thing is when they incur and are

·6· ·now committed to where they're going to be paying out

·7· ·dollars for that obligation is what the intent of that

·8· ·would be, but I'll let others weigh in on it.

·9· · · · · · ·MR. WHEELWRIGHT:· We did participate in those

10· ·discussions, and that's in agreement with what we

11· ·understood, that at some point Wexpro will need to make

12· ·a decision and commit some resources, recognize that

13· ·this will be a forecast.

14· · · · · · ·They're looking at future prices and -- but

15· ·at some point they do need to make a commitment to the

16· ·drilling rig.· That's what we understood would be the

17· ·point where they would make a commitment for -- for

18· ·future activity.

19· · · · · · ·MR. MANGELSON:· This paragraph is part of the

20· ·Office's concern about better definition for the

21· ·five-year forward curve.· Previously it was explained

22· ·that they would have to beat the five-year forward

23· ·curve, but we wanted to understand at what moment in

24· ·time those numbers needed to match.

25· · · · · · ·And the Company explained that they might
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·1· ·determine that they had -- that they could match those

·2· ·numbers at or better than the five-year curve, but then

·3· ·they would need to make the agreements to have the

·4· ·appropriate equipment, and the prices would change

·5· ·after that.· So this is just designed to be a

·6· ·clarification.

·7· · · · · · ·MR. WHITE:· Thank you.

·8· · · · · · ·MR. McKAY:· Just for illustration -- okay,

·9· ·hasn't happened yet.· Going forward, this is something

10· ·that will be produced.· There will be some day on this

11· ·graph that you'll be able to put a circle around that

12· ·point on that orange line that contractually Wexpro is

13· ·obligated for a drilling rig things going forward.

14· · · · · · ·That's what would need to be produced by

15· ·Wexpro to show that they had met the criteria that the

16· ·Office and the Division had been concerned about we

17· ·wanted to have clarity on.

18· · · · · · ·MR. WHITE:· That actually is helpful.· It

19· ·sounds like it's more specifically defined as a

20· ·contractual obligation that's incurred with them?

21· · · · · · ·MR. OLSEN:· For the record, perhaps, he was

22· ·holding up a document that I think we need just to

23· ·identify for the record.

24· · · · · · ·MR. WHITE:· Is that Exhibit --

25· · · · · · ·MR. McKAY:· This is Stipulation Exhibit --
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·1· ·well, Settlement Stipulation Exhibit 1.· I'm sorry.

·2· ·That's a good point.

·3· · · · · · ·MR. WHITE:· Thanks.

·4· · · · · · ·The last question I have is also with respect

·5· ·to paragraph 13, the discussion of potential more

·6· ·frequent than annual drilling programs.· Is there -- I

·7· ·mean, is there potentially an example of, you know,

·8· ·when that might occur, what those circumstances would

·9· ·be around, more frequent?

10· · · · · · ·MS. LARKIN BELL:· Commissioner White, that

11· ·may be a good question for Mr. Brady Rasmussen.

12· ·Mr. Rasmussen has not yet been sworn.· Shall we have

13· ·him sworn and, perhaps, he can answer that question?

14· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Sure.

15· · · · · · · · · · · · · ·--oOo--

16· · · · · · · · · · · BRADY RASMUSSEN,

17· · · · having been first duly sworn to tell the

18· · · · truth, testified as follows:

19· · · · · · · · · · · · · ·--oOo--

20· · · · · · ·MR. RASMUSSEN:· As Barrie said, we typically

21· ·format our drilling program in the fall, but with a

22· ·smaller drilling program that might be likely here

23· ·with -- with lower prices.· And we're also -- we may

24· ·have to look at that more frequently, do a smaller

25· ·program.
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·1· · · · · · ·Typically in the past, we could go --

·2· ·contract out a rig for a year straight.· We may not be

·3· ·doing that in view of our inventory of properties out

·4· ·there.· We might have to focus on one field at a time.

·5· · · · · · ·It might make that drilling commitment

·6· ·smaller from time to time.· You could have, you know,

·7· ·multiple times in the year where you'd actually have a

·8· ·rig contracted out for one portion of the first half of

·9· ·the year, a separate rig, if you got to that point, you

10· ·could still beat that hurdle for the second half.

11· · · · · · ·Also, you're dealing with recompletions where

12· ·the rig commitment not -- is very short.· We would have

13· ·to still meet these obligations on a contract

14· ·obligation on a recompletion well.· It might just be

15· ·one or two wells at a time.

16· · · · · · ·And also on any outside operated wells that

17· ·we are not the driller out there, we would be -- once

18· ·we commit to drilling that well, we are -- we're kind

19· ·of following their plans of the drilling program.· We

20· ·still have to meet these obligations, but we're kind of

21· ·at the disposal of when that's proposed to us.

22· · · · · · ·MR. WHITE:· Thank you.· I have -- I have no

23· ·further questions.

24· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Thank you, Commissioner

25· ·Clark?
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·1· · · · · · ·MR. CLARK:· Thanks, Chair LeVar.· I've got a

·2· ·question about paragraph 13 also.· As you look at the

·3· ·drilling program in relation to the five-year forward

·4· ·price curve, how do you consider G&A costs in that

·5· ·evaluation?· Are you looking at incremental costs?· Are

·6· ·you looking at previously allocated cost?

·7· · · · · · ·MR. RASMUSSEN:· Yes.· On G&A on the drilling

·8· ·decision, we are looking at incremental costs on there.

·9· ·We do -- we are -- you know, which has a combination of

10· ·Wexpro direct costs, corporate allocated costs, and the

11· ·changes in that with the addition -- additional

12· ·investment.· And we're only capturing the true

13· ·incremental costs to that drilling program that will be

14· ·calculated on that.

15· · · · · · ·MR. CLARK:· Thank you.· Now to

16· ·paragraph 18(a).· There's a reference there to the

17· ·interstate pipeline.· Is that Northwest Pipeline?· Is

18· ·it more or less than that?· What -- help me in defining

19· ·that term.

20· · · · · · ·MR. McKAY:· We left it so that it could be

21· ·any interstate pipeline.· But the key thing is that

22· ·it's at that point that it's transferring from a

23· ·gathering facility or a tail plant or a processing

24· ·facility.

25· · · · · · ·It's those volumes at that point that we're
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·1· ·trying to identify there and not a summary of volumes

·2· ·upstream from there.· And the purpose for that is we

·3· ·want them to be able to be comparable to where we

·4· ·typically, Questar Gas, are purchasing other gas, which

·5· ·is into the interstate pipeline.

·6· · · · · · ·MR. CLARK:· Does Questar deliver volumes

·7· ·upstream of the pipeline?

·8· · · · · · ·MR. McKAY:· Now Questar?· You mean does

·9· ·Wexpro deliver volumes?· They do from their wells

10· ·depending on how things are gathered, okay?· We,

11· ·Questar Gas, need to take responsibility of how we're

12· ·going to be getting those volumes to the interstate

13· ·pipeline.

14· · · · · · ·Sometimes we're getting those volumes at the

15· ·tailgate of a Vermillion plant that Wexpro is a joint

16· ·owner in, and that's right when it's going into an

17· ·interstate pipeline.

18· · · · · · ·Other times we're getting them upstream, and

19· ·we need to have gathering -- we have gathering from a

20· ·systemwide gathering agreement that we've had now with

21· ·Tesoro.· We also have other contracts with other

22· ·gathering providers.

23· · · · · · ·All of those, whatever volumes or dekatherms

24· ·might be used in the transportation on the gathering or

25· ·in the processing need to be removed out.· That's why
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·1· ·we're wanting to have it specifically be the volumes of

·2· ·when it goes into the interstate pipeline.

·3· · · · · · ·MR. CLARK:· So -- so you're confident you can

·4· ·capture that discrete value?

·5· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· That's a good -- good point.

·6· ·Let's be very forthright in that as we've tried to

·7· ·calculate that -- those numbers going back in the past,

·8· ·let's say the past 30 years here, we had not summarized

·9· ·those numbers or kept track specifically of what those

10· ·volumes were in the past.

11· · · · · · ·We can.· On the record, we'll say this out

12· ·loud, we can calculate on an actual basis today and

13· ·going forward the volumes that are related to cost of

14· ·service gas at the -- what's going into the pipeline,

15· ·interstate pipeline.· So we're going to be able to

16· ·consistently have that information going forward.

17· · · · · · ·We're still in the process of trying to

18· ·verify and calculate what they actually were in the

19· ·past.· We think we have a pretty good estimate that we

20· ·provided to the Division and the Commission,

21· ·specifically in our IRP variance report.

22· · · · · · ·We'll continue to do that.· And if we can get

23· ·more accurate information, we'll provide that at the

24· ·time we have verified actual numbers.· But going

25· ·forward, we're confident that we'll be able to do that.
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·1· · · · · · ·MR. CLARK:· Be able to and you intend to?

·2· · · · · · ·MR. McKAY:· Yes, by the intent of this

·3· ·stipulation, which I think the parties wanted to see,

·4· ·also.· Yes, we do intend to.

·5· · · · · · ·MR. CLARK:· Okay.· Now in reference to

·6· ·paragraph 21, just a procedural matter.· I think it's

·7· ·very useful that these reference documents are going to

·8· ·be available in -- as they've been described here.

·9· · · · · · ·Is any of this information confidential?· For

10· ·example, confidential information in guideline letters?

11· ·And, if so, how do you intend to address that?

12· · · · · · ·MR. McKAY:· It's recognized that in the past,

13· ·we had provided guideline letters under the umbrella of

14· ·them all being confidential.· Through our process of

15· ·analysis and discussion and coming up with this

16· ·stipulation, we, Company and Wexpro, have taken a more

17· ·specific and careful review of all of those guideline

18· ·letters and feel that they will be able to be provided

19· ·without them needing to be confidential.

20· · · · · · ·And so at this moment, our anticipation is

21· ·that they will be able to be provided there.· We did

22· ·reference this in our discussion and thought that if,

23· ·in fact, there were something, we can't promise things

24· ·on future guideline letters, for example, that we would

25· ·simply be providing that document in a redacted form on
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·1· ·that website so that they'd be able to see everything

·2· ·else they could.

·3· · · · · · ·But, again, we would want to be able to have

·4· ·the reference for that guideline letter out there and

·5· ·people be able to see that it existed.· Right now it's

·6· ·anticipated that they would not be confidential.

·7· · · · · · ·MR. CLARK:· And then regarding the -- the

·8· ·availability of information about the actual cost of

·9· ·the Wexpro gas, I think you addressed this toward the

10· ·end of your summary, Mr. McKay, but could you review

11· ·again what's the -- what's the Company's intent -- if

12· ·you need to consult, I'm happy to -- is there an

13· ·understanding among the parties or does the Company

14· ·have an intent regarding when and how and what

15· ·intervals that information would be provided?

16· · · · · · ·I think this was addressed at a technical

17· ·conference recently, and -- and I'm interested in

18· ·whether you're looking for direction from the

19· ·Commission on that in this order?

20· · · · · · ·MR. McKAY:· Sure.· To respond to that, I

21· ·think it would be best if we were to return -- not

22· ·return.· Let's turn to my exhibit, and that's

23· ·Exhibit 1.3.· And for illustrative purposes, you don't

24· ·have to, but this was an updated exhibit, so you can

25· ·turn to Exhibit 1.3 updated, or if you have the
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·1· ·other -- if you don't have that, I think the point I'm

·2· ·going to make can be illustrated off of the original

·3· ·1.3.

·4· · · · · · ·But what I want to point out in this exhibit,

·5· ·it's a two-page exhibit, and the first page is the

·6· ·calculation that shows the cost of service price, which

·7· ·is I think what your question is referring to.· We're

·8· ·also showing what the purchase price is.

·9· · · · · · ·So the reason I wanted us to turn here is

10· ·that we, Questar Gas, are calculating this cost of

11· ·service price using into-the-pipe volumes on a monthly

12· ·basis.· When I say "monthly," I want to make sure that

13· ·that's understood that you need to calculate a cost of

14· ·service price using 12 months' worth of data.· So it's

15· ·a 12-month moving total if you will.

16· · · · · · ·We calculate that every month.· We intend and

17· ·have been providing that information in our quarterly

18· ·reports in the IRP.· And we would assume that that

19· ·would be something we would continue to do with the

20· ·backup behind those calculations.

21· · · · · · ·If the Commission desired it more often than

22· ·that, we also could do that.· Right now that seems like

23· ·a good standard to continue to have going forward.· And

24· ·all parties will be able to weigh in and look at it and

25· ·view it.
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·1· · · · · · ·MR. CLARK:· So quarterly in the IRP with

·2· ·supporting documents?

·3· · · · · · ·MR. McKAY:· Yes.

·4· · · · · · ·MR. CLARK:· Thank you.· That's helpful.

·5· ·That's all my questions --

·6· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Okay.· Thank you.

·7· · · · · · ·MR. CLARK:· -- Chair LeVar.

·8· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· I was just wondering in

·9· ·paragraph 17, the stipulation, if there was a minor

10· ·typographical error on the second line.· Should there

11· ·be the word "well" before the word "costs" on the

12· ·second line of paragraph 17?

13· · · · · · ·MS. SCHMID:· Yes.· Yes.

14· · · · · · ·MR. McKAY:· We would feel pretty comfortable

15· ·if that were to be added there.

16· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· That term is defined in the

17· ·Wexpro I and II agreements?

18· · · · · · ·MR. McKAY:· It is.· You could say dry hole

19· ·cost or non-commercial costs, but it is specifically.

20· ·I think that's the point here is it's associated with

21· ·wells.· So I don't know if that it would be incorrect

22· ·if people -- but that is the intent.

23· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Thank you.· My only other

24· ·question is when is this stipulation scheduled to be

25· ·considered by the Wyoming Commission?
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·1· · · · · · ·MS. LARKIN BELL:· November 18th.

·2· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Okay.· Thank you.· I think

·3· ·that's all from us then.· Anything further from any

·4· ·party?

·5· · · · · · ·MS. SCHMID:· Nothing further from the

·6· ·Division.

·7· · · · · · ·MR. OLSEN:· We have nothing further.

·8· · · · · · ·MS. LARKIN BELL:· Nothing further.

·9· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· We are adjourned.· Thank

10· ·you.

11· · · · · · ·(The proceedings concluded at 10:12.)
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·5· · · · · · ·I, Daren S. Bloxham, a Notary Public and

·6· ·Certified Shorthand Reporter, Registered Professional

·7· ·Reporter, hereby certify:
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Q: Please state your name, title, and business address. 


J /.( t! I.:t ~,1 .: '1,/ 


(I. ' " , \ 'f/'" 


2 A: My name is Douglas D. Wheelwright. I am a Tcchnical Consultant with the Division of 


3 Public Utilities (Division). My busincss address is 160 East 300 South, Salt Lake City, Utah 


4 84114. 


5 Q: On whose behalf arc you testifying" 


6 A: I am testifying on the Division's behalf. 


7 Q: Please describe your position and duties with tbe Division. 


8 A: As a Technical Consultant, I examine public utility financial data and review and analyze 


9 filings for compliance with cxisting programs as well as applications for rate increases. I 


10 research, analyze, document, and establish regulatory positions on a variety of rcgulatory 


I I matters. I review and analyze operational reports and evaluate compliance with laws and 


12 regulations. I provide written and sworn testimony in hearings before the Public Service 


13 Commission of Utah (Commission) and assist in case preparation and analysis of testimony. 


14 Q: Did you participate in the analysis and recommendation for approval of the Wexpro IT 


15 Agreement in Docket No. 12-057-13 (Wexpro II Docket)? 


16 A: Yes. [was the Division witness in the Wexpro II Docket and recommended approval of the 


17 Wexpro II Agreement. The Commission's order, issued March 28, 20 13, approved the 


18 Wexpro II Agreement as filed. That docket created a mechanism or a framework allowing 


19 Questar Gas Company (Questar Gas or Company), through subsequent filings, to present 


20 specific properties' to the Commission for consideration and possible inclusion as Cost-of-


21 Service gas production under thc Wexpro II Agrccment. Undcr the terms of the Wexpro 1I 


22 Agreement, before any property may be presented for consideration, Wexpro must havc 


23 completed its analysis and purchased the property. 


24 Q. Was the application in this docket filed pursuant to the Wexpro II Agreement? 


I I am not an attorney, and am not using the tenn "property," "properties," or "Canyon Creek" in the technical "real 
property" legal sense. 
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Q: Please state your name, title, and business address. 


2 
~ 


.> 


4 


A : My name is Douglas D. Wheelwright. I am a Technical Consullant with the Division of 


Public Utilities (Division). My business address is 160 East 300 South, Salt Lake City, Utah 


84114. 


5 Q: On whose behalf are you testifying'! 


6 A: I am testifying on the Division's behalf. 


7 Q: Please describe your position and duties with the Division. 


8 A: As a Technical Consultant, I examine public utility fmancial data and review and analyze 


9 filings for compliance with ex isting programs as well as applications for rate increases. I 


10 research, analyzc, documcnt, and establ ish regulatory positions on a variety of regulatory 


II matters. J review and analyze operational reports and evaluate compliance with laws and 


12 rcgulations. I provide written and sworn testimony in hearings before the Public Service 


13 Commission ofUtab (Commission) and assist in case preparation and analysis of testimony. 


14 Q: Did you participate in the analysis and recommendation for approval of the Wexpro II 


15 Agreement in Docket No. 12-057-13 (Wexpro II Docket)? 


16 A: Yes. [was the Division witness in the Wexpro II Docket and recommended approval of the 


17 Wexpro II Agreement. The Commission's order, issued March 28, 2013, approved the 


18 Wexpro n Agreement as filed . That docket created a mechanism or a framework al lowing 


19 Questar Gas Company (Questar Gas or Company), through subsequent fi lings, to present 


20 specific properties I to the Commission for consideration and possible inclusion as Cost-of-


2 1 Service gas production under the Wexpro II Agreement. Under the terms of the Wexpro II 


22 Agreement, before any property may be presented for consideration, Wexpro must bave 


23 completed its analysis and purchased the property. 


24 Q. Was the application in this docket filed pursuant to the Wexpro II Agreement? 


I I am not an attorney, and am not using the tenn ''property,'' "properties," or "Canyon Creek" in the technical "real 
propeny" legal sensc. 
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A. Yes. Questar Gas filed its application for approval to include the Canyon Creek Acquisition 


in the Cost-of-Service gas purchased by Questar Gas pursuant to the Wexpro II Agreement. 


Q: Is the information filed in this docket consistcnt with what the Company represented 


would be submitted in future filings? 


A: Yes. As part of the approval of the Wexpro II Agreement, the Company identified the items 


that would be included with future specific property applications.2 Exhibits A through P of 


the Application provide the details of the assumptions used in the analysis and the model 


used to evaluate the Canyon Creek Acquisition. 


Q. 


Q. 


A: 


Can you provide a brief summary of the Canyon Creek Acquisition? 


Yes. On December 19,2014, Wexpro Company purchased an additional in the 


Canyon Creek Acquisition area. Prior to this acquisition, Wexpro already owned _ 


_ in the Canyon Creek area under the Wexpro I Development Drilling area. _ 


Wexpro is required to 


present this property to the Utah and Wyoming Commissions for possible inclusion under the 


Wexpro II Agreement.) The purchase included an increased ownership in 


Has the bydrocarbon monitor provided an analysis of the Canyon Creek Acquisition? 


Yes. According to the terms of the Wexpro 11 Agreement, the Hydrocarbon Monitor is to 


review thc undcrlying assumptions including the proved producing reserves, production, 


geology, undeveloped reserves, developments costs and operating costs.4 Mr. David Evans, 


the Hydrocarbon Monitor bas completed an independent analysis of the assumptions used by 


the Company to evaluate the property. Consistent with the Wexpro II Agreement, Mr. Evans 


does not provide a recommendation regarding the inclusion of the proposed property.s It is 


my understanding that Wexpro employees have worked closely with Mr. Evans and have 


2 Wexpro 0 Agreement, Section IV. 
' Wexpro 11 Agreement, Scction IV·I (a). 
, Wexpro 11 Agreement, Section IV4. 


'Wexpro 0 Agreement, IV4, pages 14-15. 
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provided access to information to aid in his evaluation process. On September 10, 2015, Mr. 


Evans filed a report with the Division outlining his fwdings for the Canyon Creek 


Acquisition. 


Q. What have you been able to determine from Mr. Evans' report and analysis? 


A. In the Risk Analysis section of the report Mr. Evans stated the following; 


66 Based on the independent review of the acquisition, the information presented by the 


67 Company and the assumptions used in the analysis appear to be reasonable. 


68 Q. What is the Division's recommendation regarding the inclusion of the Canyon Creek 


69 Acquisition under the Wexpro n Agreement? 


70 A. After independent review and analysis, described in detail below, the Division is satisfied 


71 that Wexpro has done a thorough analysis of the Canyon Creek property and recommends 


72 that the property be included under the Wexpro 1I agreement with the suggested 


73 modi fications, 


74 _Wexpro has experience with drilling wells in this field and is familiar with the 


75 geology, current production levels, and has an opportunity to develop additional long-term 


76 assets. 


77 Q: Do you have any concerns about the information included in the Application'! 
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J do have a concern that review of the information in isolation could potentially lead to the 


wrong conclusions. The majority of the analysis looks at the initial acquisition cost and 


future drilling potential for this specific property. While this type of analysis is critical to 


review the risks and possible benefits of the acquisition, this property represents only a 


portion of the total cost-of-service gas production fTom Wexpro. If approved, the production 


from this property will be included with production from other existing and future wells to 


calculate the total cost-of-service gas production for Questar Gas. TIlerefore, in addition to 


looking at the individual aspects of this particular property, the risks and possible benefits 


should be examined for the potential impact on the total production and the weighted average 


cost of gas. In order to review the impact of this acquisition, a cost comparison of the 


combined weighted average cost of gas has been included later in my testimony. 


Furthermore, this property was acquired by Wexpro last December at the Company's own 


risk but was not presented to the Commission for inclusion in the Wexpro II agreement until 


August 31,20 15. From the acquisition date in December until a decision is made by both the 


Utah and Wyoming Commissions, the gas flowing from these wells, is being sold on the 


market and the revenue has been retained by Wexpro. The purchase price is being adjusted 


down for depreciation and the depletion of the gas from the date of the purchase. 


102 Q: Do you know how much of the Questar Gas total gas supply will be provided from the 


103 proposed Canyon Creek Acquisition? 


104 A: Exhibit M and M-I of the Application include projections of the 1RP gas supply requirement 


'05 for 2015 through 2020 and identifY the volume of gas purchases and production from the 
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various fields . The Company has provided a revised Exhibit M-I to include the Pinedale 


volume, which was inadvertently left out of the original analysis.6 


Exhibit M indicates that the highest production from 


the Canyon Creek property will be _ of the total requirement in 20 I 6 followed by a 


normal production decline in future years. 


Exhibit M-J UPDATED indicates that tlle 


11 2 highest production from thc Canyon Creek property will be _ of the total requirement in 


I 13 2017 after 


114 


11 5 


116 


117 


('\18 
119 


120 


121 


122 


123 


124 


125 


126 


127 


128 


129 


130 


_ Since the natural gas from this field represents only a fraction of the total cost-of


service production, it is important to look at how thi s acquisition could impact the total cost


of-service price that will be paid by Questar Gas. 


Q: How docs the projected price of the cost-of-service gas from the Canyon Creek 


Acquisition compare with the forecasted market price for natural gas? 


A: The cost of gas produced from the Canyon Creek Acquisition has been identified in Exhibit 


Land L-I of the Application. Each of these Exhibits include 16 pages of information with 


four separate cost projections. In order to avoid confusion, I will be referring to the prices 


identified in Exhibit L-I , Annual Cost-of-Service Projections with (Incremental G&A), pages 


14 - 16. This is the same forecast used in the hydrocarbon monitor report produced by David 


Evans and the same report used by the Company in the total cost-of-service calculation for 


all Wexpro production for years 2015 through 2020.7 


Gas from the existing producing wells purchased in Canyon Creek will have a cost of 


_ beginning in 20 I 5. New wells that are projected to be drilled and completcd in 


The projected 


combined price for both the existing wells and the projected wells is 


6 Response to DPU Data Requcst 1.8. 
' Technical Conference, September 17, 2015, page 27. 
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139 Q: If the why 
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59 


should the Canyon Creek Acquisition be included in tbe cost-of-scrvice production? 


A: The opportunity to purchase the Canyon Creek property was presented due to Wexpro 


exercising its right of first right of refusal. This situation created an opportunity to acquire 


the property at a lower cost than would have been available in a competitive bid process. 


Brady Rasmussen, Executive Vice President ofWexpro testified that " the Canyon Creek 


Acquisition area 


~he Division has no evidence that this is not the case. 


This acquisition represents the purchase of a long-term physical asset that has potential 


benefits for many years. The original Wexpro weUs have produced much more natural gas 


than was originally anticipated. The existing wells in the inventory continue to produce 


natural gas but are being depleted over time. I n order to maintain the current production and 


prepare for future years, additional new wells must be added to the current producing 


inventory. The inclusion of an appropriate amount of cost-oF-service gas production is in the 


public interest because it provides a long-term physical supply of gas. Exhibit M of the 


Application identifies 


The purpose of the Wexpro 


II Agreement is to allow Wexpro to purchase properties now that potentially benefit Questar 


Gas customers in the future. IfWexpro waits until the demand and the priee for natural gas 


increases, the opportunities to purchase at relatively low prices would not likely be available, 
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or may be avai lable only at a much higher price. The consistent addition of property is likely 


to prove more beneficial over time than adding property only at selected times. 


Q: Have you been able to determine how the approval of the Application will affect the 


total price of the cost-of-serviee gas from Wexpro? 


A: In response to DPU Data Request 1.01 and 1.03, the Company provided an estimate of the 


impact to the cost-of-service gas for 20 IS through 2020. Wexpro does not provide a forecast 


beyond five years since a drilling schedule has not been determined more than five years in 


advance. 


A comparison of the projected cost-or-service for all propcrties was included in the 


September 17, 20 15 technical conference and is provided in Table I be10w.s Column A 


represents the forecast cost-of-service price for all existing propertics without the Canyon 


Creek acquisition. Column B represents the cost-of-scrvice for Canyon Creek and includes 


the price of the existing wells and future wells that are projected to be drilled.9 Column C 


represents the projected cost-of-service price for the combined production from al l ex isting 


and the proposed new wells included in Wexpro I and Wexpro n. Column 0 is the forecast 


market price for natural gas provided in Exhibit A- I. 


Table 1 


Forecasted Cost-of-Service 


A B C o 
Wexpro I & n 


Wexprol & n with Future 
w/o Canyon Canyon Creek Drilling In All 


10 Creek Fields 
Forecast 


Market Price =-----'--'-'-'= 


I Technical Conference, September 17, 2015, page 27. 


• DPU Data Request 1.07 
10 Application Exhibit L-I , page 14. 
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A comparison of the projected cost-of-service for Canyon Creek (Column B) with the 


foreeast market price (Column D) shows that 


A comparison of the 


projected total cost-o f-serv ice price for all Wexpro propenies (Column C) and the forecast 


market price (Column D) shows that 


\89 Chan I below provides the same information as Table I but provides a visual comparison of 


190 the cost-of-service price and the market price for the years under review. The projected all-in 


191 price of gas from Canyon Creek 


192 The top two lines of this chart 


193 compare the total cost-of-service price with and without future drilling. The bottom two 


194 lines compare the cost of gas from the Canyon Creek property compared to the market price. 


195 The chan shows that the cost-oC-service gas from the Canyon Creek property is projected to 


196 be the same as or in some years more expensive than the forecast market price. 


197 


198 Chart 1 
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20 I Q: You mentioned other significant changes to the Wexpro Agreements. Do any of these 


202 changes affect the total price of cost-of-service gas from Wexpro? 


203 A: Yes. 


'204 


L05 


206 


207 


208 Q: Have you been able to calculate the total gas cost to Questar with and without the 


209 Canyon Creek acquisition? 


210 A: I have calculated an estimate of the total gas cost for Questar Gas using the information 


211 provided in the Company's Exhibits and from additional information provided in data request 


212 responses. DPU Exhibit 1.1 provides an estimate of the total gas cost to Questar Gas 


213 customers if the Canyon Creek 


2 14 


215 In DPU Exhibit 1.1, Line 1 is the estimated lRP gas requirement for years 20 15 - 2020. Line 


216 2 is the total Wexpro production from al l fields 


217 Line 3 is the estimated cost per Dth 


'18 ~d Line 4 is the estimated cost from the Wexpro production. Line 5 represents 
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the volume of market purchase gas that will be necessary in each year to meet the total 


projected Qucstar requirement. Line 6 is the estimated cost per Dth for market purchases. I I 


Linc 7 calculates the total cost for purchased gas and line 8 calculates the total gas cost for 


Questar in each year. Line 9 is the average cost per Dth for the combined total gas . 


result of this calculation 


is an estimated total gas cost of_ in 2020 


226 Lines 10 - 17 follow the sanle calculations using the assumptions in M-I that the Canyon 


227 Creek acquisition One 


228 additional change to the market price calculation has been included on line 14. _ 


229 


230 


23 1 


232 


.33 


234 Lines 18 and 19 provide a comparison of the total cost of gas for Questar customers under 


235 both pricing options. The cost comparison indicates that 


236 


237 


238 


239 Q: How does Wexpro determine if future wells will be economic before drilling? 


240 A: The Decision to drill today and with the proposed change is based on the average price of the 


241 5-year forward price curve. 12 As with any price forecast, the further in time the price is 


11 Exhibit A 


12 Docket No. 13-057-13, SeUlement Stipulation, page 4, paragraph II. "The Parties acknowledge thai Wexpro 


generally designs ilS annual drilling program to provide cost-or-service production that is, on average, at or 
below the current 5-year Rockies-adjusted NYMEX price." 
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projected the less certainty there is surrounding the accuracy of the forecast. Chart 2 below 


shows the NYMEX forward price curve as of September 31 , 2015 and the calculated average 


priee of $3 .03 for the 5-year period. The monthly price forecast includes anticipated higher 


prices during the winter heating season in each year. The higher prices included in years 3 


through 5 increase the avemge price. The 5-year avemge price of$3 .03 calculates to be 


significantly higher than the forecast market price in years I and 2. 


$3.50 


$3.30 


$3.10 


$2.90 


$2.70 


$2.50 


Chart 2 


5 Year NYMEX Forward Price Curve - 9/30/15 
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- 250 In this example, Wexpro would driU if the estimated cost-oF-service price of a new well is 


25 I less than or equal to $3.03 even though the forecast monthly market price is projccted to be 


252 below the average price for some time. The decision about whether the well is commercial 


253 will be made after drilling is complete and actual cost and production data is available. 


254 Q: Can you summarize the proposed change 


255 A: 


256 


257 


258 
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263 A: Yes. Under the cW"rent guidelines, the anticipated cost to drill new wells must be lower than 


264 the 5-year forward price curve. 


265 


266 


267 


268 


269 


270 


271 


('72 
273 


274 


275 


276 The Wexpro [ agreement was established in 1981 when the fInancial markets were much 


277 different than today. On December 19, 1980, just prior to the establishment of the Wexpro 


278 agreement, the US prime rate reached a record high or2I.5% and the prime rate averaged 


279 approximately 18.5% through 1981. The average rate for the 10-year US TreasW"y in 1981 


280 was 13.9% compared to the recent 12 months average rate of 2.2%. (September 2014 -


281 August 2015)13 


282 The Wexpro I agreement establishes the rate of return for developmental wells as the base 


283 rate + 8%. In 1981, the base rate was 16% plus the 8% premium for a 24% rate of return. 


284 These wells were commonly referred to as 024 wells. In 1981 , the calculated rate of24% 


" Board of Governors oftbe Federal Reserve System, lOY car Treasury Constanl Maturiry Rate, Monthly Percent. 
- -
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was 10.1 % above the I O-year treasury rate. Under the current agreement, a new 


developmental well is allowed the base rate of return calculated to be _ plus the 8% 


premium for a total rate of _ The rate of~oday is _ above the current 10-


year treasury rate. 


In a recent article in Public Utilities Fortnightly, the earnings for Questar Corporation were 


compared with 40 other utility companies.l~ Questar Corporation ranked first with the 


highest four-year average ROA (Return on Assets) and was ranked second for the four-year 


average ROE. (Return on Equity) 15 The high rate of return for the Corporation can largely 


be attributed (0 Wexpro, which provides over 50% of the net income for Questar 


Corporation. 16 


('198 Q: Do you agree that the 


299 


300 A: I am concerned 


301 


302 


303 


304 


305 


306 


307 


308 


309 


" QUCSlar Gas is a wholly owned subsidiary of Queslar Corporation. 


" Public Utilities Fortnightly, September 2015, page 22. 
t. Questaf Corporation 2014 Form 10-K Annual Report, Operations by Line of Business, page 97. 
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330 Q: Do you agree with the way the Company has proposed 


331 


332 A: Yes, however it should be noted that 
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336 noted 


137 previously, the current price forecast indicates that the price of natural gas will remain low 
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for the foreseeable future. 
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390 Q: Do you feel that managing future Wexpro gas production to _ of the Questar Gas 


191 forecast requirement is still appropriate? 
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which 


is in line with thc historical volumes. TIle Company indicated in the previous Trail 


Application that gas supply could be managed up to . of the forecastlRP gas requirement 


with the production fTom Wexpro. In addition, the Company indicated tllllt it could manage 


This level, howevcr, was an accommodation of then-existing 


production and projected needs. It did not represent an acknowledged optimum level of cost


of-servicc production. While the Division believes the optimum level is likely lowcr, 


limiting production to . matches hi storical levels and accommodates Wexpro 's current 


production levels 


In the currcnt filing, the 


The 


Division believes that the market conditions and circumstances have changed in a "persistent 


and materiallllllllller" and the parties ' recent agreements and discussions are in keeping with 


the Wexpro II stipulation's allowance for changes to the agreement. The stipulation 


agreement in Docket 13-057-13 states that "with the mutual consent of all Parties this 


Stipulation's terms may be amended and submitted for both Utah and Wyoming Commission 


approval. ,,11 


The Updated Elthibit M-I of the application provides a forecast of the Weltpro cost-of


service gas supply through 2020. 


416 Q: How does the _ production target level compare to the actual production from 


417 VVexpro? 


17 Docket No. 13-057- 13, Settlement Stipulation, page 8, paragraph 17. 
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The . production target is based on a forward-looking IR.P forecast requirement and not 


on the actual sales volumes for thc subject year. The actual percentage of gas provided by 


Wexpro v.~ 11 vary from the lRP forecast due to actual weather conditions and tempemturcs 


that occur during the heating season. 


The actual percentage of Wexpro production based on historical production and sales volume 


has been sununarized in Table 2 below. The actual sales volumes were taken from the 


Company' s results of operation report and the Wexpro production volumes were provided in 


response to DPU Data request 1.24. 


Table 2 


- - - - -


432 Q. In addition to the 


433 


434 A. The projected costs provided in this Application include the 


435 


436 In response to DPU Data request 1.07, the 


437 Company presented the following 


438 


439 


440 


441 
'42 


Table 3 
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460 A: Yes. To examine the total production volumes r have prepared DPU Exhibit 1.5. Tbis 


461 information is a comparison of the 


462 


463 nes I through 5 arc identical to the 


464 values in Exhibi t M and represent the percent of the Questar Gas requirement that will be 


465 satisfied by Wexpro 6 through 10 are identical to the 


466 values in Updated xhibit M-\ 


467 _ Lines 11 through 15 provide a simple calculation of the difference in the production 


468 percentage from each field for each year. (Updated M-I minus M) This analysis shows that 


469 in 2020 


470 


471 Q: Do you feci that approving the Canyon C reek Acquisition under the Wexpro II 


'72 Agreement is in the public interest? 
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Yes, with the conditions proposed by Questar and the Division. The existing portfolio of gas 


producing properties available to Questar Gas through Wexpro I will deplete over time and at 


some point will need to be rcplaced with ncw Wexpro production or with market purchases. 


Approving the Canyon Creek Acqu.isition as a Wexpro II property represents the purchase of 


a long-term resource that could be advantageous to ratepayers for many years. While the 


future is unknown, the probability that prices will increase over time is greater than the 


probability that prices will continue to decrease. Further, the field represents a nearby 


physical source of supply. With the added protection of 


the property carries limited downside risk 


relative to its long-term benefits. 


483 Q: Do you feel that 


484 


485 A: Yes. I believe that the ~ill be beneficial to ratepayers and will allow 


486 


0.87 


488 


489 changes and the Division's recommendation of _ limit are integral parts of the Division 


490 finding that the Canyon Creek Acquisition is in the public interest. 


491 Q: Does that conclude your preparcd direct testimony? 


492 A: Yes it does. 
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Q. 


A. 


Q. 


A. 


Q. 


A. 


Q. 


A. 


Q. 


A. 


Q. 


A. 


I. INTRODUCTION 


Plcasc state your name and business address. 


My nallle is Barrie L. McKay. My business address is 333 South State Street, Salt Lake 


City, Utah. 


By whom arc you cmployed and what is your position'! 


[ am employed by Questar Gas Company (Questar Gas or Company) as Vice President of 


State Regulatory Affairs. I am responsible for state regulatory and energy-effi ciency 


matters in tah and Wyoming. 


What ar'e you r qualifications to testify in this proceeding? 


I have listed my qualifications in QGC Exhibit 1.1. 


Attached to your written testimony are QGC Exhibits 1.] througb 1.3. Were thcsc 


prepllrcd by you or under your direction? 


Yes. 


What is the purpose of your testimony in this Docket? 


The purpose ofm), testimony is to: I) describe Wexpro 's recent acquisition of natural gas 


producing properties wi thin the Wexpro [ Development DriUing area known as the 


Canyon Creek Acquisition Area and explain why Questar Gas is required to bring this 


property to the Utah and Wyoming Commissions for approval as a Wexpro II property; 


2) describe changes that QuestaI' Gas and Wexpro are proposing to make in conjunction 


with the Canyon Crcck Application and 3) explain why including the Canyon Creek 


Acquisition as a Wexpro II property in conjunction with the proposed changes are in the 


public interest and should be approved by this Commission. 


A rc there others who will provide testimony in this proceeding? 


Yes, Mr. Brady B. Rasmussen, Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of 


Wexpro Company, will also provide an overview of the Canyon Creek Acquisition and 
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25 


26 


27 


28 Q. 


29 


30 A. 


31 


32 


33 


34 


35 


36 Q. 


37 


38 A. 


39 


40 


41 


42 Q. 


43 A. 


44 


45 


46 


47 


48 


49 


50 


explain how the proposed changes would allow Wexpro to continue drilling at or below 


the 5-Year Forward Curve. 


n. CANYON CREEK ACQUISITION 


Please describe tbe recent purchase by Wexpro of natural-gas producing properties 


in the Canyon Creek Acquisition Area. 


On December 19, 2014, \Vexpro closed on its purchase of the Canyon Creek Acquisition 


for approximately $52.7 million. (Note: If approved as a Wexpro IT property, this 


amount would be adjusted to reflect thc volumes Wexpro has sold since acquiring the 


property. See QGC Exhibit 2.2.) This purchase consists of a 30% interest in 100 


producing wells and approx imately 30 future wells. This acquisilioll increased Wexpro's 


ownership inlerest rrom 70% to 100% in the Canyon Creek Acquisition Area. 


Is this a Wexpro property aC(luisition that the Company Illust bring to the Utnh und 


Wyoming Public Scrvicc Commissions for approval'! 


Yes, under the terms of the Wexpro II Agreement, the Company is required to apply for 


Utah and Wyoming Commission approval of Wexpro properly acquisitions in the 


Wexpro J Developmenl Dri lling arcas. The Canyon Creek Acquisition is a property 


within a Wexpro I Development Drilling area. 


Docs Questur Gas support the Canyon Creek Acquisition? 


Yes. As explaincd in Mr. Rasmussen's testimony, the Canyon Creek Acquisition is in an 


urea where Wexpro operates and already has significant experience. Wexpro had a 70% 


interest in these wells in tlus area. These wells were drilled by Mountain Fuel and 


Wexpro over the last 60 years. Wexpro understands the geology, engineering and 


production of these well s. These properties are currently some of the higher-producing 


and the lowest-cost propelties in the Wexpro I Development Drilling areas. The Wexpro 


II concept was conceived to accommodate adding these types of acquisitions to Qucstar 


Gas' supply portfolio. 


• 


• 


• 
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65 


66 Q. 


67 


68 A. 


69 Q. 


70 


71 


72 


73 A. 


74 


75 


76 


If the Canyon Creek Acquisition is approved as a Wexpro 11 Property, would 


Wexpro be able to dcvelop tbe property in toduy's gus market? 


0 , as more fully explained by Mr. Rasmussen, if today's natural gas prices continue as 


forecasted and the rate of retum on development gas drilling remains unchanged, then 


based on Wexpro's current model, Wcxpro would need to wait until gas prices increase 


to develop the property at or below the currcnt 5-Year Forward Curve. 


Docs Ques tar Gas want Wexpro to develop gas resel'Ves at 01' below today's CUI'rent 


5-Year ForwRI'd Curve'! 


Yes, for at least two reasons. Recognizing that the long-term history of natu ral gas prices 


is vo latile and given the likelihood of some future inflation, anytime Wexpro can develop 


natural gas that will produce for 20 to 30 years at today's low prices, that is good fo r 


customers. Second, as more filily explained by Mr. Rasmussen, all ongoing drilling 


program helps lower the per-unit coslfDth of cost-of-service production and preserves 


Wexpro's expelt ise and efficiencies in developing these properties. 


III, PROPOSED CHANGES 


To tllke advantage of developing natural gas reserves at today's low gas prices, 


would changes need to be made to the Wexpro I and II programs going fonvard? 


Yes. 


RClllizing that natural gas prices may remain low for the foreseeable futul'e and that 


the cUl'rent I'equired returns on new wells drilled undcr Wexpro I and II produce 


natural gas above the 5-Year Fonvard Curve, how did Questar Gas and Wcxpro 


develop the proposed changcs? 


fo llowing the purchase of the Canyon Creek Acquisition and thc significant change in 


the natural gas market, the answer to that qucstion became the focus of discussions 


between Wexpro and Questar Gas. We studied and analyzed various altcrnatives. 


Finally, when we believed we had a proposal that would benefit customers and Wexpro 
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77 and provide incentives, checks and balances going forward, we presented those ideas to • 


78 


79 


80 Q. 


81 A. 


82 


83 


84 


85 


86 


87 


88 


89 


90 


91 Q. 


92 


93 


94 


95 


96 A. 


97 


98 


parties that would be part of tllis proceeding. After getting Feedback, we further refined 


the proposal. 


What are the changes that are being proposed with this Application? 


In conjunction with the Canyon Creek Acquisition as a Wexpro II property, the rollowi ng 


changes are being proposed: 


I) The rate of return on post-20 15 Development Drilling will be lowered to the 


Conunission-Allowed Rate or Return as defined in Section J-J 1 of the Wexpro II 


Agreement (currently 7.64%). 


2) Dry-hole aud non-commercial well costs will be expensed and shared on a 50/50 


ba is between customers and Wcxpro; and 


3) When the actual annual weighted average price from all cost-of-service wells is 


less than the current market price, then annual savings will be shared between 


customers and Wexpro on a 50/50 basis. 


Arc Questllr GIIS lind Wexpro proposing any changes to the 65% percentage of total 


gas supply, the requirement that future Wexpro Development Drilling must be 


generally at or below the current 5-Y elll" Fonvnrd Curve, the allowed return on 


Proven-Developed-Producing (PDP) properties or the return on pre-2016 


development gas drilling? 


No. These requirements were agreed to by the Parties and approved by the Utah and 


Wyoming Commissions as part of either the Wexpro II Agreement or the Trail Unit 


Stipulation and are proposed to continue. 


• 


• 
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Q. Have you prepared an exhibit that summarizes some of the key criteria of the 


100 Wexpro Agreements and how they werc hundled under the original Wexpro I and II 


101 Agreements, the Wexpro II Trail Stipulation and the proposed changes? 


102 A. 


103 


104 


105 


106 


107 


108 


109 


110 


III 


n'2 
li3 


11 4 


115 


116 


11 7 


118 


119 


120 


121 


122 


123 


Yes, atlached as QGC Exhibit 1.2 is a table that compares how a property was treated in 


the past and how it will be treated if the Commission approves tbe proposed changes in 


tbis Application. 


Line I shows that "Fu t1lre drilling criteria" was governed by standard industry practice as 


provided in the Wexpro I and U Agrccments. Under tbe terms of the Trill I Unit 


Stipulation the future drilling criteria was changed to be less tban or equal to the S-Year 


Forward Curve and is proposed to continue with the proposed changes. 


Line 2 shows that cost-of-service production was limited to 6S% in the Trail Stipulation 


and is proposed to continue with the proposed changes. 


Line 3 shows that pre-1981 wells and PDP wells, that may be added as a Wexpro 11 


Property, have been billed at the Commission-Allowed Rate of Return under the Wexpro 


I and II Agreements and the Trail Stipulation and will continue to be billed at the 


Commission-Allowed Rate of Return under the proposed ehanges. 


Line 4 shows that "Developmental Gas Wells" drilled prior to 2016 were billed at the 


Base Rate of Return plus 8% for a gas well (S% for oil) and will continue to be billed 


using that rate over the remaining life of the well. 


Line S shows that all "Developmental Gas and Oil Wells" drill ed post 20 lS will be billed 


at the COlllmission-Allowed Rate of Return for the life oftbc wells. 


Line 6 shows that "Dry Hole/Non-Commercial Costs" were 100% the responsibility of 


Wexpro under the Wexpro I and 1\ Agreements and the Trail Stipulation. Going forward, 


under the proposed changes these costs wi II be shared SOISO between customers and 


Wexpro. 
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124 


125 


126 


127 Q. 


128 A. 


129 


130 


131 


132 


Q. 


133 A. 


134 


135 


136 


137 


138 


139 Q. 


140 A. 


141 


142 


143 


144 


145 


146 


147 


Line 7, shows that the "Incentive to reduce costs and share savings," is proposed to be 


part of the proposed changes. This shows that when the total annual cost-or-service price 


is below the allnual market gas price, then savings will be shared with customers 50150. 


Are any other changes being proposed? 


No, all other provisions, terms and conditions or the Wcxpro I, Wexpro II and Trail 


Stipulation and all guideline letters remain unchanged. 


IV. PUBLIC INTEREST 


In the development of this proposal you mentioned checks, balances and incentives. 


Plense explnin how these are accomplished with the approval of this application. 


First, Wexpro may only develop wells that are gencrally at or below the CUITent 5-Year 


Forward Curve. This assures that Wcxpro will not be developing properti cs that are 


currently "out of the market." Additionally, with the rate of return being lowered to the 


Commission-Allowed Rate of Rcturn on post-2015 development wells, Qucstar Gas ' 


customers reap the bencfit of adding long-term reserves at low gas price. 


Second, Wexpro manages production at or below 65% of Questar Gas' total gas supply. 


Are there other cheeks included within this proposal? 


Yes. The proposed changes also address dry-hole and non-commercial well costs. 


Rather than proposing that all the dry-hole and non-commercial well costs should be 


borne by customers, which may be warranted given the proposal to lower the return to the 


Commission-Allowed Rate of Return on future development wells, Wexpro will be 


sharing in that potential expense 50 cents 011 every dollar. This equal sharing assures 


that Wexpro has "skin in the game" and will be cautious as they continue to drill wells in 


the future. Additionally, this check is "balanced" with thc proposal to share savings in 


the fllture. 


• 


• 


• 
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Q. 


Q. 


A. 


Q. 


A. 


Please summarize how the incentives for Wexpro and beuefits for customers worked 


in tbe past? 


In the past, the Wcxpro I and [I Agreements were set up to provide Wexpro with an 


incentive to find and develop natural gas reserves lor Questar Gas customers. Tlus is 


illustrated by the Im'ger risk premium of 8% being allowed on natural gas wells versus a 


risk premium of 5% for oil wells. Questar Gas customers in return received a physical 


hedge at a cost-of-service price for the life of the well. Although not required by the 


Agreements, the cumulati ve result for Questar Gas customers was over a billion dollars 


of savings, when compared to the purchased price of natural gas. This can be seen in Ille 


aUaehed QGC Exhibit 1.3. This is a two-page exhibit. The first page shows the average 


purchase price by year compared to the average cost-of-serviee price fo r Illat year. The 


second page shows thc cumulativc savings since 198 I . 


How wiD the proposed changes provide incentives for Wexpro and benefits for 


customers in the future'? 


Under the proposed changes, Wexpro will be ineentivized to reduce costs on current 


reserves and develop lower-cost reserves in the future. I should point out, as explained in 


Mr. Rasmussen's testimony, Wexpro has already been actively working to bring the 


current cost-per-unit of cost-of-service gas down. Wcxpro will now be inccntivized to 


continue these cost saving measures. 


When lind how will savings be calculated? 


Savings will be determined when the all-in cost-of-scrvice price is below market. This 


means that the weighted average price of I) the pre-2016 wells that will continue to be 


produced at the rate of return allowed at the time they werc drilled and 2) the post-20lS 


wells that will be produced at the C0111mission-A Ilowed Rate of Return must be below 


tbe current market price before savings begin to be shared. 
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Q. Should this property be approved as a Wexpro II property in conjunction with the 


proposed changes as described above'! 


Yes, both the Utah and Wyoming Commissions should approve the Canyon Creek 


Acquisition as a Wexpro II property and find that it is in the public interest. The 


production from Wexpro 1 wells comes from a defined set or properties that are clearly 


set fo rth in the Wexpro I Agreement. Because of technological improvements in drilling, 


completion, and production methods, these properties have produced longer and at 


greater levels than the original parties to the Wexpro I Agreement anticipated. However, 


Wexpro production is finite and limited to defined areas. The Company and Wexpro 


believe that the proposed changes will allow cost-of-service production to be managed 


within a range that will benefit QuestaI' Gas ' customers and Wexpro. 


208 Q. Does this conclude your testimony'! 


209 A. Yes. 
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I, Barrie L. McKay, being first duly swom on oath, statc that the answers in the foregoing 


written testimony are true and correct to Ule best of my knowledge, information and belief. 


Except as statcd in the testimony, thc exhibits attached to the testimony were prepared by mc or 


under my diIection and supervision, and they are tme and correct to the best or my knowledge, 


information and belief. I\ny exhibits not prepared by me or under my direction and supervision 


are true and correct copies of the documents they pUiporl to be. 
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As Vice President of RegulatOlY Affairs and Energy Efficiency, I am responsible for 
managing the state regulatory and eoergy-efuciellcy matters of Questar Gas. I supervise 
the regulatory activit ies in Utah and Wyoming. I am responsible ror the preparation and 
filing of general rate cases, pass-through cases aJld other general tariff and compliance 
mings. J have appeared as an expert witness on numerous occasions before the Utah ood 
Wyoming Commissions. 


Prior Responsibilities ood Ex erience 


1 was /irst employed by MOlmtain Fuel Supply (now Questar Gas) in 1993 as a Senior 
Analyst in the Rate Departmcnt. 


From 1983 - 1993, T worked ror UP&UPacifiCorp in the Rate Accounting ood Economic 
Rcgulation Departments in various positions. I was responsible for the preparation of the 
results of operations ood the development and continued evolution of the aJloeatioll 
modeling. I have previously presented testimony before the Utah Public Service 
Commission and the FERC. 


Educational Background 


r received a Bachelor of Science degree in accoun ting li'om Brigham Young Universi ty in 
1983. I received a Master of Business Administration fTOm Brigham Young Uni versity in 
1986. I am a Certified Public Accountant (CPA) in thc State of Utah and belong to the 
Utah A sociatioLl of Certified Publ.ic Accoun!aJ1ts (UACPA). I am a member of the AGA 
Rate Committee and have participated in numerous seminars and conferences on rate and 
rcgulatory matters ineludillg AGA, PCGA, EEl, WEI and NARUC. 
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Proposed Changes Comparison 


Wexpro I and" 


Future drilling criteria Standard industry 
practice 


Cost-ot-service gas as a 
percent ot total gas supply 


Pre-81 weill Proven-Developed- Commission Allowed 
Producing (PDP) Wells Return (7.64%) 


Pre-2016 Developmental Wells Base ROR + 8% = 20% 


Post-2015 Developmental Wells 


Dry Hole/Non-Commercial Cost 100% Wexpro 


Incentive to reduce cost and 
share savings 


Trail Stipulation 


Future drilling s 5-Year 
Forward Curve 


65% 


Commission Allowed 
Return (7 .64%) 


Base ROR + 8% = 20% 


100% Wexpro 


Proposed Changes 


Future dri lling S 5-Year 
Forward Curve 


65% 


Commission Allowed 
Return (7.64%) 


Base ROR + 8% = 20% 


Commission Allowed 
Return (7.64%) 


Shared 50/50 


When annual COS < 
market, share savings 
50/50 on Post-2015 wells 
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Q. 


2 A. 


3 


4 Q. 


5 A. 


G 


7 


8 


9 


10 Q. 


II A. 


.2 Q. 


13 


14 A. 


15 Q. 


16 A. 


17 


18 


19 


20 


21 


22 Q. 


23 A. 


I. INTRODUCTION 


Please slale your nllme and business address. 


My name is Brady B. Rasmussen. My business address is 333 SOUlh State Street, Salt 


Lake City. Utah. 


By whom are you employed lind what is YO UI' position? 


I am employcd by Wexpro Company (Wcxpro) as Executive Vice Presidcnt and Chief 


Operating Officer. I oversee and am responsible for managing drilling, development, and 


operat ions associatcd with Wexpro's cost-of-service propcrties. J am also responsiblc for 


compliance associated with oi l and gas operatjons and compliance with thc Wexpro I and 


Wexpro II Agrecments. 


What lire your qUIlJifications to testify in Ihis 1)I'oceeding? 


I have li sted my qualifications in QGC Exhjbit 2. 1. 


Attllched to your written teslimony are QGC Exhibits 2.1 through 2.4. Were Ihesc 


prepared by you or under your direction? 


Yes. 


What is the IlUrposc of your testimony in this Dockcl'! 


The purpose of my testimony is 10: I) provide an overview of the Canyon Creek 


Acquisition; 2) explain how Wcxpro determincs its alUmal drilling program; 3) explain 


how the proposed changes would allow Wexpro to continuc drilling at or below thc 5-


Year Forward Curve; 4) explain what Wexpro is doing and will continue to do to hclp 


reduce the overall price of cost-or-service gas; and 5) idcntify thc guideline letters that 


will apply to the Canyon Creek Acquisition if it is included as a Wexpro II property. 


Al'e you familiar with the Application and its exhibits filcd ill Ihis Docket'! 


Yes. Many ofthc exhibits werc prepared undcr Illy supervision and dircction. 
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52 


53 


54 


55 


56 


57 


58 Q. 


59 


60 A. 


61 


62 


63 


0 4 Q. 


65 


66 A. 


67 


68 Q. 


69 


70 A. 


71 


72 


The Canyon Creek Acquisition consisted of a 30 % working interest in 100 producing 


weUs and 30 additional future well locations given current dala. Wexpro already owned a 


70% working interest in these same properti es. This acq uisition increases Wexpro 's 


interest to 100%. Canyon Creek's repeatable low-risk and low-cost development 


locations are idcal for supplementing Wexpro production at a low cost-of-scrvice price 


for customers. A copy of tbe Purchase and Sale Agreement is attached to the Application 


as Confidential Exhi bit K. 


Who bears the risk of the properly acquisition until the Ula h and Wyoming 


Commissions eitller approve or I'eject the new properties as a Wexilro II Propel·ty'! 


Wexpro bears the burden and risk of purchasing these properties and producing tbe gas 


until Stich time as there is a determination by tile COlllmissions as to whether tllese 


properti es should be approved as Wexpro II propert ies. Currently, Wexpro is selling 


production from this acquisition on the open market. 


If the Cuny on C reek Acquisition is upproved us a Wexpro n Property, will the 


acquisition cost be adjusted fOI' the gas that Wexllro has sold'! 


Yes. Attached as QGC Exllibit 2.2 is an estimate of the acquisition cost adjusted for the 


gas that has been or will be sold by Wexpro up to the time of Commission approval. 


If the Clinyon C "cek Acquisilion is not included liS II Wexpro II Pl'Opcrl,)" does 


Wexpro plan to prnducc this Ilropcrl')' fOi' other potential customers'? 


Yes. Wcxpro would produce the natural gas froll1 the Canyon Creek Acquisition for 


other customers. The price at which we purchased the Canyon Creek Acquisition will 


a llow Wexpro to effect ively market this production. 
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73 


74 


75 


76 


77 


Q. 


A. 


78 Q. 
79 


80 A. 


81 


82 


83 


84 


85 


86 


87 


88 


89 


90 


91 


92 


93 


94 


Q. 


A. 


Ill. WEXPRO'S DRI LLING PROG RAM 


Pleasc explain how Wcxpro determincs its auuual drilling program? 


Throughout the year, Wexpro reviews its inventory of potent ial future well s to determine 


an efficient mix of low-cost well s, leasehold obligation wells, and wel ls that must be 


dri lled in accordance with BLM mandates governing well development (Pinedale). 


How does Wcxpro help enSllrc that developmcnt drill ing propcrt ies nre cost 
effective? 


Once a drilling program is ident ified and reviewed by thc hydrocarbon monitor and can 


provide cost-of- ervice I roduction that on average is at or below the 5-Year Forward 


urve, Wexpro will contract for a drilling rig. Contracting ror drill ing and completion 


service. typically occurs 6 months berore thc fust well in the program is spud. Wexpro 


works with service vendors to minimizc the planning time rcquircd between the contracts 


and the fi rst well in the program. Due to contractual obligations, Wexpro is committed to 


move forward independent of changes in the 5-Year Forward urve. The goal is to 


ensure that the drill ing program will provide savings, or at the very least be neutral to 


customers over the live year period. 


Giveu today's unlural gas prices, can Wexpl'o contiulle a drilling progl'am and 


provide cosl-of-scl"Vicc gas li t 0 1' below the 5-Y cal' J<orward Curve'! 


'0. The recent increased production fl'O m major shale plays in the U. S. and associated 


gas from oil wells has changed the current market outlook For natmal gas supplies. 


Without fJJlding ways to reduce the price of cost-of-service production, Wexpro will not 


be able to conti nue a dril li ng program inlhe near futurc. 


• 


• 
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106 


107 
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110 


III 


112 


Q. 


/\. 


Q. 


A. 


Q. 


11 3 A. 


114 Q. 


11 5 


11 6 A. 


117 


11 8 


How docs having an ongoing drilling program benefit Questar Gas customers? 


Attached as QGC Exhibit 2.3 is a chart representing the typical decline curve of a well. 


As can be seen about half of the production from a typical well is produced during the 


first live years of its 20- to 30-year life. If these volumes are not replaced with volumes 


from new wells then fixed costs of producing wells will be spread over fewer and fewer 


volumcs thus causing the cost per unit to go up. A drilling program hclps to keep costs 


per decatherrn lower. 


Are there other benefits of baving 1111 ongoing drilling program'! 


Yes, having a cont inuous drilling progTam ensures Wexpro can continue to provide 


customers cost-efficient operations. Start ing and stopping a drilling prol,'ram by 


erratica lly add ing and removing drilling and completions persollJlel can be very cost ly 


and inefficient. Also, in times of industry growth, Wexpro struggles to find and retain 


qualified personnel , which it has experienced many times ovcr the decades. Consistently 


adding wells to the portfolio keeps costs lower and avoids the "boom and bust" approach 


that is ollen associated with this industry. The key is being able to add wells at or below 


the current 5-Year Forward Curve. 


Would changes to the allowed return 011 developmental wells pI'ovide for drilling in 


the ncar future? 


Yes. 


Docs Wexpro agree with and sUppOJ·t the PI'olJOsed chllngcs that arc explained in 


MI'. McKuy's testimony'! 


Yes, as Executive Vice President or Wexpro, I led the development of the proposed 


changes. Thesc changes will help Wexpro keep an ongoing drilling program in today 's 


low-price gas enviroJUnent and provide customers willI low-priced long-term reserves. 
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144 


145 


Q. 


146 A. 


147 


148 


149 


Q. 


150 A. 


151 


152 


153 


15-1 Q. 


A. 


V. API)LTCABLE GU IDELINE LETI'En s 


If the Canyon C rcek Acquisition is apP" oved as a Wcxpro II property, ul'e therc 


Guidelinc Leiters that will a»J>ly to thc p"opcrty? 


Yes, attached as QGC Exhibit 2.4 are copics of all the appl icable Guideline Letters that 


will apply to the anyon Creek Acquisitjon. 


In summary, what IU'C yo ur recommcndations "cgll" ding the Canyon C"cck 


Acquisition? 


This is a logical timc to acquire tltis propcrty hecause acquisition prices for nanlral gas 


rescrves arc low. The anyon reek Acquisi tion rea is our best performjng property. 


Wexpro believes it can managc its Wexpro I and Wexpro II properties for the benefit of 


Questar Gas's customers for ycars to come. 


Does this conclude your tcstimony? 


Yes. 
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As Execut ive Vice President and hief Operating Omcer of Wexpro Company, I a.m 
respons ible for Wexpro 's drilling program, production operat ions, property acquisitions, 
and compliance. I supervi se the engineering and geoscience, operations, accounting, laud, 
marketing, permitting and regulatory, and business development departments. I am also 
responsible for SEC Oil and Gas di sclosures. 


Prior Respon. ibilities and Experience 


I was employed by Wcxpro in 1994 as a Revenue Accountant. I have ful fill ed my 
responsibilities in several capacities, including revenue accounting, overseeing multiple 
departments including accounting, administration , land, marketing, and business 
development and overseeing as Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer. 


Educational Backl!Tound 


I received a l3achelor of Arts degree in AccolUlting from Utall State Universi ty in 1993. 
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IN T HE MAHER OF THE 
APPLICA nON OF QUESTA R GAS 
COM PANY FOR APPROVAL OF 
T HE CANYON CREEK 
ACQUlSITIO AS A WEXPRO II 
PROPERTY 


Docket No. 15-057- 10 


APPLICATION 


, 


All communic.1tions wilh respecllo 
these documents should be served upon : 


Colleen Larkin Bell (5253) 
Jenni fTer Nelson Clark (7947) 
Questar Gas Company 
333 S. State Street 
P.O. Box 45433 
Sail Lake Cily , Utah 841 45-0433 
(80 I) 324-5392 
(801 ) 324-5935 (t:,x) 
Colleen.Bell@queslar.com 
JennifTer.Clark@questar.com 


Atlomeys for Questar Gas Company 


APPLICATION 
AND 


EXHIBITS 


August 31 , 20 15 











• Colleen Larkin Bell (5253) 
lenniffer elson Clark (7497) 
333 S. State Street 
POBox 45433 
Salt Lake City, Utah 84145-0433 
(801)324-5556 
(80 I )324-5935 (fax) 
Colleen.Bell@qucstar.co111 
JenniO'er.Clark@gueslar.coll1 


Allomeys for QueSlar Gas Company 


BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSIO OF UTAH 


IN THE MA TIER OF THE 
APPLICATION OF QUESTAR GAS 
COMPANY FOR APPROVAL OF TIIE 
CANYON CREEK ACQUISITION AS A 
WEXPRO II PROPERTY 


Docket No. 15-057-10 


APPLICATION 


Questar Gas Company (Questar Gas or Company) submits tllis application to tlle 


Utah Public Service Commission (Utall Commission) for an order approving inclusion of 


a recently acquired property within a Wexpro I Development Drilling area hown as the 


Canyon Creek Mesaverde Participating Area (Canyon Creek Acquisition Area) as a 


Wexpro II property referred to as the Canyon Creek Acquisition (Canyon Creek 


Acquisition) pursuant to the Wexpro n Agreement. Simultaneously with this filing, 


Questar Gas is applying for an order approving the Canyon Creek Acquisition from tlle 


Wyoming Public Service Commission (Wyoming Commission). Under the terms of the 


Wexpro II Agreement, which was approved by the Utah Commission on March 28, 2013, 


and the Wyoming COllUuission on April 11 ,20 13, Questar Gas is required to apply for 


approval to include properties acquired by Wexpro, within a Wexpro I Development 
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Drilling area, as Wexpro II properties. Questar GelS offers tbe following, in support of 


this Application: 


BACKGROUND 


1. On September 12, 2012, Wexpro Company, Questar Gas Company, the 


Utah Division of Public Utilities (Division) and the Wyoming Office of Consumer 


Advocate entered into the Wexpro II Agreement, subject to the approval of both the Utah 


COlllDlission and the Wyoming Commission. On March 28, 2013, the Utah Commission 


issued a Report and Order in Docket No. 12-057-13 approving the Wexpro II 


Agreement. On April 11,201 3, the Wyomiug Commission held a public bearing and 


public deliberations upon the matler in Docket No. 30010-123-GA-12 and rendered a 


bench order approviug the Wexpro II Agreement. On October 16, 2013, the Wyomiug 


• 


Commission issued a formal Memorandum Opinion, Findiugs and Order Approving the • 


Wexpro II Agreement in Docket 0.30010-123-GA-12. 


2. On November 5, 2013, Questar Gas filed an application seeking approval 


of the Trail Unit Acquisition as a Wexpro II property before the Utah and Wyoming 


Commissions. The Trail Unit Acquisition was an acquisition within a Wexpro I 


Development Drilling Area and under the tenns of the Wexpro 11 Agreement Questar Gas 


was required to bring tbe property before both the Utah and Wyomiug Commissions for 


approval. 


3. On December 23,2013, tbe Company, Division, Utah Office ofConsulller 


Services (OCS), and the Wyomiug Office of Consluner Advocates (OCA), entered into a 


Settlement Stipulation for the Trail Unit Acquisition. The Utah Commission issued a 


report and order approvillg the Trail Unit Settlement Stipulation on January 17, 2014, and 
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• the Wyoming Commission issued an order approving the Trail Unit Settlement 


Stipulation on January 27, 20 14. 


4. The Trai l Unit Settlement Stipulation provides that Wexpro generally 


designs its annual drilling program to provide cost-of-service production that is, on 


average, at or below the current 5-year Rockies-adjusted NYMEX price (5-Year Forward 


Curve). The Trail Unit Settlement Stipulation also provides that the Company and 


Wexpro wi ll manage combined cost-of-service production from Wexpro I and Wexpro II 


properties to Questar Gas at or below 65%. 


CANYON CREEK ACOUISITION 


5. On December 19, 20 14, Wexpro Company closed on its $52.7 mi llion 


acquisition of an additional 30% interest in natural-gas producing properties in the 


Canyon Creek Acquisition Area located in tile Vermillion Basin in southwest Wyoming. 


These properties are loeated within the Development Drilling areas defined in the 


Wexpro I Agreement. 


6. Wexpro already owns a 70% (Mesaverde) interest in the Canyon Creek 


Acquisition Area. This acquisition increases Wexpro's ownership interest to 100%. 


7. The Wexpro IT Agreement governs the requirements for Wexpro and 


Questar Gas relating to this purchase. Section IV- I provides that "Wexpro will acquire 


oil and gas properties or lmdeveloped leases at its own risk." Section IV-I(a) provides 


that "Questar Gas shall apply to tile Utah and Wyoming Commissions for approval to 


inelude under tius Agreement any oil and gas property that Wexpro acquires witltin the 


Wexpro I development drilling areas." 
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8. Wexpro has purchased the Canyon Creek Acquisition at its own risk and is 


selling production from these wells on the open market pending the outcome of a 


decision by the Utah and Wyoming Commissions to determine whether this acquisition 


should be included as a Wexpro II property. If the Canyon Creek Acquisition is 


approved as a Wexpro II property, then the Acquisition Costs (as defined in the Wexpro 


11 Agreement) will be adjusted downward for the depreciation of the gas sold from the 


time Wexpro closed on the Canyon Creek Acquisition until Conunission approval of this 


acquisition as a Wexpro II property. 


SUPPORTING INFORMATION 


9. Section IV-2 of the W xpro II Agrcement provides that Questar Gas will 


file an application with thc Utah and Wyoming Conunissions requesting approval to 


include proposed properties under the Wexpro II Agreement and the application shall 


include the supporting information which are attachcd to this Application as Exhibits A 


through P. The Company notes that the supporting testimony to this Application 


proposes and supports changes that, if approved by the Utah and Wyoming Commissions, 


would change some of these exhibits. Accordi.ngly, this Application includes adjusted 


infonnation in the exhibits that change as a result of the proposal. Changed exhibits are 


identified as Exhibits A-I, L-I, M-l, 0-1, and P-1. 


Exhibit A: Purchase price and gas pricing assumptions 


Exhibit A provides the gas and oil pricing assumptions used in d1e Canyon Creek 


Acquisition. Columns Band C show dIe gas and oil pricing assumptions that were 


available on August 8, 2014, for the Henry Hub and NYMEX indices for the period of 


January 2014 to December 2018. A Rockies basis adjustment was applied to derive the 
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spot market price where the properties are located. These pricing assumptions were used 


in developing Wexpro's bid price. Exhibit A-I provides the gas and oil pricing 


assumptions from PIRA and Cambridge Energy Research Associates (CERA) that were 


availablc on June 20 15 for the Rockies. The Company is providing this more recent 


infonnation given the significant changc that occurred in the gas and oil market following 


tlle purchase of the Canyon Creek Acquisition. 


Confidential Exhibit B: Loealions of current and future wells 


TIle locations of CUlTent and future wells are depictcd on a schcmatic attached to 


this Application as Exhibit B. Exhibit B shows that there are 100 current wells and 30 


planncd future wells given current data. 


Confidential Exhibit C : Histo.·ieal production and remaining reserves of 


current wells 


Exhibit C is a two-page spreadsheet listing tlle 100 current wells, their cumulative 


production to date and thcir estimated remaining reserves. 


Confidential Exhibit D: Forecasted production/reserves for future wells 


Exhibit D is a spreadshect li sting 30 future wells that arc planned to be drilled and 


their estimated production/reserves for the life of the wells. 


Confidential Ex.hibit E: Forecasted decline curves for cun·cnt and future 


wells 


Exhibit E includcs a rate time plot for each current well, as well as the anticipated 


type curve for the proven undeveloped (PUD) future development wells. 
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Confidential ExJlibit F: Estimated drilling (capital) cost pel' well 


Exhibi t F provides a detailed estimate of capital cost to drill a future wel l. The 


estimated cost is approximately $2 million per well. 


Confidential Exhibit G: Estimated operating expenses for current and futu .. e 


wens 


Exhibit G is a sunUllary of the estimated operating expenses for cun-cnt and future 


Canyon Creek Acquisition wells. This is based on historical data and Wexpro's 


experience operating and maintaining wells in the Canyon reek Acquisition Area. 


Confidential ExJlibit H: G .. oss wOl'king interest and net revenue interest for 


current and future wel1s 


Exhibit H is a three-page spreadsheet showing the working interest and net 


revenue interest for the 100 cunent wells and the 30 future wells. 


Exhibit I: Estimated p .. oduction tax pCI' Dth fOl' CUlTent and futul'e wells 


Exhibit I is a sunul1ary of the estimated production tax per Dth for current and 


futu re Canyon Creek Acquisition wells. Production taxes vary based 011 the market price 


of natural gas. Therefore, included in this summary table are natural gas prices ranging 


from $2 .00 to 6.00 per Dth. 


Confidcntial Ex.hibit J: Estimated gathering/processing costs pc,' Dth fo,' 


cu .... ent and future weBs 


Exbibit J is a summary of tbe estimated gathering/processing costs per Dth for 


current and future Canyon Creek Acquisition wells. 
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Confidential Exhibit K: Description of any land lease, title, and legal issues related 


to real property 


Exhibit K contains a confidential copy of the Purchasc and Salc Agreement by 


and between Linn Energy Holdings, LLC and Questar Gas Company, Wexpro Company, 


and QEP Energy Company cxecuted on December 17,201 4 (the "PSA"). Attached to the 


PSA are Exhibit A (listing all Leases purchased), Exhibit J3 (listing Wells and Well 


Locations), Exhibit D (Form Assigtlllent and Bill of Sale), among other exhi bits. Also 


attached to Exhibit K is a copy of the Letter Agreement entered into between Wexpro and 


QEP Energy Company regarding ownership of the assets purchased from Linn Energy 


Holdings, LLC, and a copy of the Stipulation and Cross Conveyance of interests in Oil 


and Gas Leases by and between Wexpro Company, Qucstar Gas Company, and QEP 


Energy Company. 


Confidential Exhibit L: Forecasted long-term cost-or-service annlysis 


Exhibit L is a 16 pagc summary showing the estimated cost-of-service analysis 


over a 30-year period for the Canyon Creek Acquisition at the current rerum. For 


illustration purposes, cost-of-service is shown on a cumulative and annual basis with both 


allocated and incremental general and administrative (G&A). When Wexpro makes 


drilling or acquisition decisions, an incrcmental analysis on G&A includes only the 


additional costs that arc incurred because of the new well or acquisition. 


Pages 1 through 4 show the cumulative cost-of-scrvicc with allocated G&A; 


pagcs 5 through 8 show the cumulative cost-or-service with incrcmental G&A; pages 9 


through 12 show thc annual cost-of-service with al located G&A; and pages 13 through 


16 show tbe annual cost-of-servicc with incrcmcntal G&A at the current rerum. For 


7 







comparison purposes tbe estimated production over the 30-year period has also been 


included in each graph. Confidential Exhibit L- I is a 16-page sununary showi.l1g the 


estimated cost-of-service analysis adjusted for the proposed changes as described in Mr. 


McKay's testimony. 


Confidential Exhibit M: Impact on Qucstar Gas's gas supply 


Exhibit M is a bar chart showing the estimated production levels for Wexpro I 


production, the Wexpro Il Trail Unit Acquisition production, Trail compression, and 


Wexpro n Canyon Creek Acquisition production for the next five years. EX.hibit M- I is a 


bar chalt sbowing tbe same information adjusted for tile Company's proposed changes. 


Confidential Exhibit N: Geologic data 


Exhibit N is an 8 page exhibit bighlighting the geology of the Canyon Creek 


• 


Acquisition Area. Page 1 is an index map showing the location of the Canyon Creek • 


Acquisition Area in Southwest Wyoming. On the detailed map, the structural contours 


depict the subsurface configuration of the top of the Mesaverde Group. The Mesaverde 


is a closed anticlinal structure (upside-down bowl) within the Canyon Creek Acquisition 


Area. Tills closed structure has served to trap the natural gas in tJle Mesaverde Group. 


Page 2 is a Late Cretaceous stratigraphic colwnn for the Canyon Creek 


Acquisition Area. Shown from top to bottom are the different rock formations 


encountered in Canyon Creek Acquisition wells. The Lance FomJation and Fox Hills 


Sandstone are nOll-productive intervals. The Lewis Shale provides the top seal ror the 


gas accumulation in the Mesaverde Group. Tlus seal is necessary to trap the gas in tJle 


anticlinal structure depicted on the previous page. The red symbols to the right of the 


diagram depict tbe productive members of the Mesaverde Group in the Canyon .Creek • 
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• Acquisition Area. The Almond Formation is the most prolific of the productive intervals 


in recent weUs. The Canyon Creek and Trail members were the original productive 


intervals when the fi eld wa~ discovered in the 19505. 


Page 3 is a type log for the field. Open-hole logs (Log) are mn in thc wells in the 


Canyon Creek Acquisition Area prior to running casing to ensure that the expected 


productive sands are present in the well. This is a representative Log for the field. At the 


far leO of the Log the Lewis Shale is depicted. Downhole, to the right, thc Almond 


Formation is dIe fust zonc cncountered in thc Mcsaverdc Group. The upper portions of 


dle Almond Fomlation are a shoreface (beach to slightly offshore) depositional 


environment. Deeper in the Almond, the envirolllnent turns to a coa~ta l plain with liver 


chaIUlels, overbank mudstoncs, and coal seanlS. Below the A Imond Formation is the 


Canyon Creek Member, which is a stack of river chaIUlel and point bar sands. The non


productive Rusty Shale separates the Canyon Creek Member from the Trail Member. 


The Trail Member also contains stacked river channels and point bar sands. Together 


these three members of the Mesaverde Group comprise dlC entirc productive interval in 


tbe Canyon Creck Pal1icipating Area. 


Page 4 is a table of petrophysical values derived frolll the Log mentioncd in thc 


previous paragraph and from corc data. Tlus data shows that within the Mesaverde 


Group thc porosity (open space in the rock) is 9-11 %. The water saturation value is dIe 


pereent of the porosity occupied by water. Average water saturation is approximately 


33%. Core permeability averages 0.5 milJidarcics. The porosity and permeability values 


make thc field a lugh-quality tight-gas accumulation. 
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Page 5 is a Net Pay map showing the Almond shoreface (beach) sands. The Net 


Pay thickness of the shoreface sands is the underlying data for the contour map. The Net 


Pay thickness values are posted on the map at the existing well locations. °111ese values 


are used to project sand thicknesses to areas where wells have not been drilled. The N W


SE orientation of the shoreline is visible on these maps. The thickest shoreface sands are 


present in the northern PlUt of the Canyon Creek Acquisition Area. The sands thin 


slightly to the south. Production data shows that the thiIll.1ing has some effect on well 


productivity, but it is minor. 


Page 6 is a Net Pay map showing the ALmond coastal plain sands. These sands 


trend perpendicular to the sboreface sands and represent rivers that were flowing to the 


coast and feeding the shoreline. The coastal plain sands are Ulickest in the ccntral and 


northem parts of the field and thin to the soutb. In ternlS of well productivity, tills zone 


likely contributes only a small aJIlount or hydrocarbons. 


Page 7 is a Net Pay map of the Canyon Creek Member. The Canyon Creek sand 


becomes more water saturated down structure. Tills is depicted in thc thinning of the Net 


Pay toward the edges of the unit. The Canyon Creek sand was produced extensively in 


the early life of the field IUld has some pressure depletion and is still a contributor to 


some new wells. Completing in water-bearing portions of this member is avoided by 


using extensive open-hole log evaluations. 


Page 8 is a Net Pay map of thc Trail Member. The Trail sand behavcs somewhat 


likc the Canyon Creck sand, but has a lower ovcrall water saturation. This leads to a 


thinning of sands toward the unit boundaries, but not to thc extent that the Canyon Creek 


Member thins. The Trail Member is a thick, stacked slUld package that has many internal 
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• complexities tbat compartmentalize the reservoir. This heterogeneity requires extensive 


well downspacing to fully develop the gas in place. 


The four Net Pay maps depicted in pages 5-8 represent the entire productive 


interval in the Mesaverde Group. The nature of this vertical stack of productive gas 


sands provides low-risk future development drilling. 


Confidential Exhibit 0: J!'uture development plan ffll' the proposed 


properties 


Exhibit 0 is a sununary of future wells planned to be drilled in 2021 and 2022. 


Exhibit 0- 1 is a summary of the future wells planned to be drilled iu 2016 and 2017 irthe 


proposed changes accompanying this application arc approved by the Commissions. 


ffighly-Confidential Exhibit P: Other data as requested or as may be 


(""'\. appropriate to an cvaluution ofthc property 
\. ) 


Exhibit P includes the Highly Confidential economic model, used in the analysis 


of the Canyon Creek Acquisition and will he provided to the Utah Commission, the 


Office of Consumer Services and the Division electronically. Exhibit P-I is the Highly 


Confidential economic model adjusted for the Company 's proposed changes. 


Questar Gas has flied the sworn testimony of Barrie L. McKay (QGC Exhibit 


1.0) and Brady B. Rasmussen (QGC Exllibit 2.0) in support of this Application. As set 


forth in Mr. McKay's testimony, approval of the Canyon Creek Acquisition as a Wexpro 


II property and the Company's proposed changes in allowed return, expense assignment 


and savings sharing would provide an opportunity for Questar Gas's customers to receive 


cost-of-service gas that is estimated to provide lower cost gas over a 30-year period. 


Additionally, as set forth in Mr. Rasmussen's testimony, Wexpro will contiuue to manage 
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its current production and ful1lrc drilling programs at or below the 5-Year Forward Curve 


and to manage combined cost-of-service production from Wexpro rand Wexpro 11 


properties to Questar Gas at or below 65%. 


PRAYER FOR RELIEF 


Based upon the foregoing, and supporting testimony, Questar Gas respectfully 


requests that the Utah Commission approve the Canyon Creck Acquisition as a Wexpro 


II property and frod that the proposed changes accompanying this pplication are in the 


public interest. 


DATED this 31 st day of August, 2015. 


115742 


Respectfully submitted, 


QUESTAR GAS COMPANY 


Colleen Lar 1 el (5253) 
Jenniffer Nelson Clark (7947) 
Attorneys for Questat· Gas Company 
333 S. Statc Street 
PO Box 45433 
Salt Lake City, Utah 84145-0433 
(80 I) 324-5556 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 


This is to certify that a true and correct copy of the Confidential Application was 


I~ served upon the foUowing persons by email on August 3.t: 2015: 


Patricia E. Schmid 
Assistant Attorney General 
160 East 300 South 
P.O. Box 140857 
Salt Lake City, UT 84114-0857 
pschmid@utah.gov 


Chris Parker 
Director 
Division of Public Utilities 
160 East 300 South 
P.O. Box 14675 1 
Salt Lake City, UT 8411 4-6751 
chrisparker@utah.gov 


Bryce Freeman 
Administrator 
Wyoming Office of Consumer 
Advocate 
2515 Warren Avenue, Suite 304 
Cheyenne, WY 82002 
Bryce.Freeman@wyo.gov 
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Rex Olson 
Assistant Attorney General 
160 East 300 Soulh, 501 Floor 
P.O. Box 140857 
Salt Lake City, Utah 84114-0857 
rol sen({i)utah.gov 


Michele Beck 
Director 
Office of Consumer Services 
160 East 300 South 
P.O. Box 146782 
Salt Lake City, UT 84 114-6782 
mbcck@utah.gov 


Ivan Williams 
Senior Counsel 
Wyoming Office of Consumer Advocate 
2515 Warren Avenue, Suite 304 
Cheyenne, WY 82002 
Ivan.wi lliams@wyo.gov 
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Gas Price ($/MMBTU) Oil Price ($/bbl) 


Date Rockies Basis 1/ NYMEXWTI1/ 


1 Jan-14 $4.25 $86.23 


2 Feb-14 $4.45 $83.42 


3 Mar-14 $5.21 $88.72 


4 Apr-14 $4.39 $88.39 


5 May-14 $4.46 $89.90 


6 Jun-14 $4.33 $89.54 


7 Jul-14 $4.47 $92.72 


8 Aug-14 $3.97 $90.34 


9 Sep-14 $3.91 $8S.83 


10 Oct-14 $3.97 $85.08 


11 Nov-14 $4.18 $84.72 


12 Dec-14 $4.25 $84.31 


13 Jan-15 $4.21 $84.19 


14 Feb-1S $4.10 $83.81 


15 Mar-1S $3.67 $83.45 


16 Apr-1S $3.64 $83.10 


17 May-1S $3.67 $82.84 


18 Jun-1S $3.73 $82.63 


19 Jul-lS $3.74 $82.33 


20 Aug-lS $3.72 $82.07 


21 Sep-1S $3.76 $81.87 


22 Oct-1S $3.92 $81.68 


23 Nov-lS $4.12 $81.52 


24 Dec-lS $4.23 $81.36 


2S Jan-16 $4.21 $81.06 


26 Feb-16 $4.14 $80.76 


27 Mar-16 $3.66 $80.46 


28 Apr-16 $3.66 $80.19 


29 May-16 $3.69 $79.97 


30 Jun-16 $3.74 $79.83 


31 Ju l-16 $3.7S $79.59 


32 Aug-16 $3.74 $79.41 


33 Sep-1G $3.76 $79.28 


34 Oct-16 $4.0S $79.20 


35 Nov-16 $4.23 $79.16 


36 Dec-16 $4.36 $78.93 


37 Jan-17 $4.1S $78.94 


38 Feb-17 $4.02 $78.77 


39 Ma r-17 $3.77 $78.62 







Questar Gas Company 


Docket 15-057-10 


A B C Application Exhibit A 


Page 2 of2 


Gas Price (S/MMBTU) 011 Price (S/bbl) • Date Rockies Basis 11 NYMEX WTl11 


40 Apr-17 $3.80 $78.50 


41 May-17 $3.84 $78.43 


42 Jun-17 $3.87 $78.39 


43 Jul-17 $3.89 $78.27 


44 Aug-17 $4.10 $78.20 


45 Sep-17 $4.18 $78.16 


46 Oct-17 $4.25 $78.17 


47 Nov-17 $4.43 $78.20 


48 Dec-17 $4.56 $78.24 


49 Jan-18 $4.54 $78.15 


50 Feb-18 $4.48 $78.06 


51 Mar-18 $4.20 $77.99 


52 Apr-18 $4.22 $77.92 


53 May-18 $4.24 $77.84 


54 Jun-18 $4.27 $77.78 


55 Jul-18 $4.28 $77.70 


56 Aug-18 $4.29 $77.65 


57 Sep-18 $4.32 $77.62 


58 Oct-18 $4.41 $77.61 


59 Nov-18 $4.58 $77.61 • 60 Dec-18 $4.69 $77.62 


61 Jan-19 Prices held flat after this point at $4.69 and $77.62. 


11 Gas prices are a Rockies price adjusted NYMEX forward index as of August 8, 2014. 


Oil prices are 88% of the NYMEX WTI forward strip as of August 8,2014. 
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Gas Price ($/MMBTUI 011 Price ($/bbll 


Date Henry Hub 1/ Rockies Basis Opal 21 NYMEX WTI 


1 Jan-15 $2.99 -$0.16 $2.83 $47.57 


2 Feb-15 $2.82 -$0.32 $2.50 $50.94 


3 Mar-15 $2.79 -$0.36 $2.43 $47.52 


4 Apr-15 $2.58 -$0.29 $2.29 $54.08 


5 May-15 $2.83 -$0.23 $2.60 $59.11 


6 Jun-15 $2.74 -$0.20 $2.54 $59.79 


7 Jul-15 $2.88 -$0.23 $2.65 $59.68 


8 Aug-15 $2.83 -$0.20 $2.63 $59.60 


9 Sep-15 $2.70 -$0.21 $2.49 $59.95 


10 Oct-15 $2.71 -$0.22 $2.49 $60.18 


11 Nov-15 $2.76 -$0.18 $2.58 $60.57 


12 Dec-15 $3.04 -$0.16 $2.88 $60.88 


13 Jan-16 $3.05 -$0.13 $2.92 $61.25 


14 Feb-16 $2.95 -$0.14 $2.81 $61.47 


15 Mar-16 $2.86 -$0.16 $2.70 $61.65 


16 Apr-16 $2.88 -$0.23 $2.65 $61.80 


CJ 17 May-16 $3.00 -$0.23 $2.77 $61.94 


18 Jun-16 $3.10 -$0.23 $2.87 $61.96 


19 Jul-16 $3.19 -$0.19 $3.00 $62.15 


20 Aug-16 $3.18 -$0.21 $2.97 $62.23 


21 Sep-16 $3.20 -$0.21 $2.99 $62.33 


22 Oct-16 $3.25 -$0.20 $3.05 $62.46 


23 Nov-16 $3.23 -$0.13 $3.10 $62.62 


24 Dec-16 $3.33 -$0.11 $3.22 $62.79 


25 Jan-17 $3.15 -$0.01 $3.14 $62.86 


26 Feb-17 $3.08 -$0.01 $3.07 $62.95 


27 Mar-17 $2.94 -$0.09 $2.85 $63.07 


28 Apr-17 $2.93 -$0.11 $2.82 $63.19 


29 May-17 $3.04 -$0.16 $2.88 $63.33 


30 Jun-17 $3.15 -$0.17 $2.98 $63.50 


31 Jul-17 $3.36 -$0.17 $3 .19 $63.58 


32 Aug-17 $3.49 -$0.16 $3.33 $63.70 


33 Sep-17 $3.54 -$0.13 $3.41 $63.85 


34 Oct-17 $3.54 -$0.09 $3.45 $64.01 


35 Nov-17 $3.37 -$0.04 $3.33 $64.18 


36 Dec-17 $3.39 -$0.03 $3.36 $64.38 


37 Jan-18 $3.42 -$0.01 $3.41 $64.43 


38 Feb-18 $3.33 -$0.02 $3.31 $64.50 


39 Mar-18 $3.20 -$0.07 $3.13 $64.61 


40 Apr-18 $3.13 -$0.09 $3.04 $64.75 


41 May-18 $3.06 -$0.18 $2.88 $64.91 


42 Jun-18 $3.09 -$0.20 $2.89 $65.09 


43 Jul-18 $3.28 -$0.21 $3.07 $65.17 
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Gas Price ($/ MMBTU) Oil Price ($/bbl) • Date Henry Hub 1/ Rockies Basis Opal 2/ NYM EXWTI 


44 Aug-18 $3.36 -$0.18 $3.18 $65.29 
45 Sep-18 $3.33 -$0.09 $3.24 $65.42 
46 Oct-18 $3.28 -$0.10 $3.18 $65.57 
47 Nov-18 $3.24 -$0.05 $3.19 $65.74 
48 Dec-18 $3.29 -$0.04 $3.25 $65.93 
49 Jan-19 $3.36 -$0.02 $3.34 $65.99 
50 feb-19 $3.34 -$0.05 $3.29 $66.07 
51 Mar-19 $3.29 -$0.13 $3.16 $66.16 
52 Apr-19 $3.16 -$0.14 $3.02 $66.27 
53 May-19 $3.14 -$0.16 $2.98 $66.38 
54 Jun-19 $3.18 -$0.18 $3.00 $66.51 
55 Jul-19 $3.26 -$0.21 $3.05 $66.54 
56 Aug-19 $3.34 -$0.18 $3.16 $66.62 
57 Sep-19 $3.38 -$0.11 $3.27 $66.74 
58 Oct-19 $3.37 -$0.12 $3.25 $66.89 
59 Nov-19 $3.38 -$0.07 $3 .31 $67.06 
60 Oec-19 $3.45 -$0.13 $3.32 $67.25 
61 Jan-20 $3.56 -$0.11 $3.45 $67.29 
62 feb-20 $3 .56 -$0.1 $3 .43 $67.35 
63 Mar-20 $3.55 -$0.18 $3.37 $67.42 
64 Apr-20 $3.53 -$0.19 $3.34 $67.51 
65 May-20 $3.54 -$0.25 $3.29 $67.61 • 66 Jun-20 $3.57 -$0.27 $3.30 $67.73 
67 Jul-20 $3.63 -$0.27 $3.36 $67.73 
68 Aug-20 $3.66 -$0.22 $3.44 $67.79 
69 Sep-20 $3.67 -$0.19 $3.48 $67.88 
70 Oct-20 $3.60 -$0.19 $3.41 $67.99 
71 Nov-20 $3.58 -$0.10 $3.48 $68.12 
72 Dec-20 $3.60 -$0.11 $3.49 $68.27 
73 Jan-21 $3.59 -$0.19 $3.40 $67.72 
74 feb-21 Prices held flat after this point at $3.59 and $67.72. 


1/ Gas prices use an average of the CERA and PIRA price fo recasts as of June 24, 2015. 
Oil prices us the NYMEX WTI forwa rd strip as of June 26,2015. 


2/ Gas transportation differential of $ -0.065 from Opal to Canyon Creek field. 
Oil transportation differential of $ -11.20 from WTI to SW WS at canyon Creek field. 
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Applicat ion Exhibit I 


Estimated Production Tax per Dth for Current and Future Wells 1/ 


A B 


Gas Price[Oth Tax[Oth 
1 $2.00 $0.25 


2 $2.50 $0.31 


3 $3.00 $0.37 


4 $3.50 $0.44 


5 .$4.00 $0.50 


6 $4.50 $0.56 


7 $5.00 $0.62 


8 $5.50 $0.68 


9 $6.00 $0.75 


1/lncludes Ad Valorem, Severance & Conservation taxes of 12.44% combined. 
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Application Exhibit P 


Exhibit P, "Exhibit P - Canyon Creek COS Model.xlsx", is the 
Highly Confidential model used in the analysis of the Canyon 


Creek Unit Acquisition using the current ] 9.76%. 
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Application Exhibit P-I 


Exhibit P-l, "Exhibit P-l - Canyon Creek COS ModeJ.xlsx", is 
the Highly Confidential model used in the analysis of the 
Canyon Creek Unit Acquisition using the current 7.64%. 
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Canyon Creek Unit Boundary 


Mesaverde PA Boundary 
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Proposed Changes Comparison 


Wexpro I and II Trail Stipulation Proposed Changes 


1 Future drilling criteria Standard industry Future drilling ::s 5-Year Future drilling ::s 5-Year 
practice Forward Curve Forward Curve 


2 Cost-of-service gas as a 65% 65% 
percent of total gas supply 


3 Pre-81 weill Proven-Developed- Commission Allowed Commission Allowed Commission Allowed 
Producing (PDP) Wells Retum (7.64%) Return (7.64%) Retum (7.64%) 


4 Developmental Wells Base ROR + 8% = 20% Base ROR + 8% = 20% 


6 Dry Hole/Non-Commercial Cost 100% Wexpro 100% Wexpro 
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Proposed Changes Comparison 


, 


Wexpro I and II Trail Stipulation Proposed Changes 


1 Future drilling criteria Standard industry Future drilling S 5-Year Future drilling s 5-Year 
practice Forward Curve Forward Curve 


2 Cost-of-service gas as a 65% 65% 
percent of total gas supply 


3 Pre-81 welV Proven-Developed- Commission Allowed Commission Allowed Commission Allowed 
Producing (PDP) Wells Retum (7.64%) Retum (7.64%) Return (7.64%) 


4 Pre-2016 Developmental Wells Base ROR + 8% = 20% Base ROR + 8% = 20% Base ROR + 8% = 20% 


5 Post-2015 Developmental Wells Commission Allowed 
Return (7.64%) 


6 Dry Hole/Non-Commercial Cost 100% Wexpro 100% Wexpro Shared 50/50 


7 I ncentive to reduce cost and When annual COS < 
share savings market, share savings 


50/50 on Post-2015 wells 
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Wexpro/Canyon Creek Proposal 


Current Cost-of-Service Investment 


Continues at base + 8% retum 


7.64% 
700 +------------------------------------------------------------
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Incremental Cost-of-Service Gas 


Future dfilling at Commission 
Allowed rate of return 


Future drilling must be :s S-year 
forward curve 


Future dry hole and non
commercial costs shared 50/50 


Overall Cost-of-Service Price < 
Market 


When all COS < market share 
savings 50/50 on post 2015 wells 
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Canyon Creek 
Cost-of-Service Projections $/Dth 


• Four different combinations 
Assignment of G&A: 


Allocated vs Incremental 


Summary of Cost per Dth: 


Cumulative vs Annual 


1. Cumulative / Allocated (Exhibit L & L-1 page 1) 


2. Cumulative / Incremental (Exhibit L & L-1 page 5) 


3. Annual/Allocated (Exhibit L & L-1 page 9) 


4. Annual/Incremental (Exhibit L & L-1 page 13) 
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Question I a -


Contract Paragraph 7.6 - Final Settlement Statement. Please indicate 
whether Wexpro's purchase price referenced in the Application reflects the 
Final Settlement Statement received from Linn Energy Holdings Company? 
Will Questar file a copy of the Final Settlement Statement in this docket? 


The final settlement statement is still being completed by Wexpro and Linn 
Energy. Most issues have been resolved with the exception of a pipeline 
imbalance. The estimated imbalance amount is in Wexpro's favor. 


The acquisition price will be slightly reduced when the Final Settlement 
Statement is completed. 
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Question I b -


Please identify where in Exhibit K the following Contract Exhibits and 
Schedules can be found: 


Exhibit 0 - Target Formations 


Schedule 7.6 - Litigation 


Schedule 7.7 - Material Contracts 


Schedule 7.8 - Violation of Laws 


Schedule 7.9 - Preferential Rights 


Schedule 7.10 - Royalties 


Schedule 7.17 - Condemnation Proceedings 


When Exhibit K was prepared some of the exhibits did not scan properly. 
Exhibit 0 identified no target formations. 
Exhibit 7.6 identified a list of litigation/audits that do not impact Wexpro with the 


exception of the Linn lawsuit that was settled in Wexpro's favor. 
Exhibit 7.7 identified the Unit Agreement. 
Exhibit 7.8 can be found on Exhibit K, page 102. 
Exhibit 7.9 identifies the preferential right that allowed Wexpro to acquire this property. 
Exhibit 7.10 identified no royalties. 
Exhibit 7.17 identified no condemnation proceedings. 
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Question I C -


Exhibit 7.18 - Plugging and Abandonment: Please explain this exhibit, 
including the definition of "Shut In" and "Dormant." 


The designation of "shut-in" and "dormant" used by Linn Energy in Exhibit 
7.1 8 is based on inaccurate data provided to Linn from Devon Energy. 


Wexpro operates these wells and disregarded this incorrect 
representation. 
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Question III 


Exhibits M and M-1: Please explain the factors contributing to the change in 
the forecast presented in these graphs from the graph presented in Exhibit M 
of the Trail Unit Application. 
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Question IV 


Exhibits P and P-1, Tabs WEXII COS-R and WEXII COS-I, line 21: Please 
explain how the "MMBTU Price Assumption" was determined. 


The MMBTU Price is determined using the CERA and PIRA five-year average 
forecast. Prices were kept flat after year five. 
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Question V 


Exhibits P and P-1, Tab "ARO PDP Only" - Column G Gross Cost, 
Tab "ARO PUD Only" - Column H Gross Cost: 


A) Please identify the specific costs which are included in the column 
labeled "Gross Cost." If "Gross Cost" does not include the estimated future 
costs associated with the plugging and abandonment of wells, equipment 
removal and land restoration, please identify where they are included in 
the Application. 


The "Gross Cost" in columns G and H of the respective ARO tabs in the 
cost-of-service model are intended to capture the present value of 
estimated costs of plugging and abandoning the wells including equipment 
removal and land restoration. These costs are listed separately from the 
regular book depreciation and this cost is part of the operator service fee. 


aUEST~R" 32 


• • • 







Question V 
Exhibits P and P-1, Tab "ARO PDP Only" - Column G Gross Cost, Tab 
"ARO PUD Only" - Column H Gross Cost: 


C) Please explain the difference between "Accretion Expense" and 
"Depreciation Expense" on these tabs. 


As described in accounting standard SFAS 143 and per Guideline Letter dated 02120/04 " Guideline Letter 
Governing the Adoption of Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement #143, Accounting for Asset Retirement 
Obligations under the Wexpro Agreement: 


Accretion expense is the difference between the present value and future value of the ARO over the life of the well. 


Depreciation expense (associated with the ARO) is the present value of the ARO amortized over the life of the well. 


ARO ARO 
Depreciation Expense Accretion Expense 


$5000 $50,000 - $5,000 = $45,000 
$ 0 $ 5 , 00 0 """""'-.....""""""""""""""""""""!!!!!!!!!!I!"""""""""""""""""""""""""'''''''''''!!!I!!I!!!!I! ........ - $50, 00 0 


Present Value Future Value 
clARO clARO 


Amortization of Depreciation and Accretion Over 30 Years = $50,000 
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Question VI 


Has Questar determined the formula for determining the annual COS price? 
If yes, please identify the formula and data sources (e.g. account numbers 
and how volumes will be determined) which will be used to determine the 
annual cost-of-service price for Wexpro gas. If no, when will Questar 
determine this formula? 


• 
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Question VI 


Purchase Gas vs Cost-of-Service Gas 
8 .00 


7.00 


6.00 


S.OO 


4.00 


3.00 


2.00 1. 
- PurchaseaGas - - -----
--Cost-ol-Service Gas -Into Pipe 


1.00 - -- - Cost-ol-Service Gas - Wellhead 


0.00 


Note: Cost-of-service prices are based on estimated volumes delivered into the interstate pipeline. 
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• Collccn Larkin Bcll (5253) 
JelmilIer Nelson Clark (7947) 
Questar Gas Company 
333 S. State Street 
P.O. Box 45433 
Salt Lake City, UT 84145-0433 
(80 I) 324-5556 
Colleen.bell@questar.eom 
lenniffer.c1ark@questar.eom 


Attorneys/or Questar Gas Company 


Canyon Creck Sctllcmc nl Stipulation 
Qucslar Gas Company 
Dockel o. 15-057- 10 
QGC Exhibil S.O 


BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF UTAH 


IN urn MATTER OF THE 
APPLICATION OF QUESTAR GAS 
COMPANY FOR APPROVAL Of THE 
CANYON CREEK ACQUISiTION AS 
A WEXPRO II PROPERTY 


Docket No. 15-057- 10 
CANYON CREEK 


SETTLEME T STll'ULATION 


Pursuant to Utah Code Ann. § 54-7- 1 and Utah Admin. Code R746-100-10.f.5, and 


pursuant to Wyoming Statute 37-2- 101 et. seq. and Wyoming Procedural Rules and Special 


Regulations Section 119, Questar Gas Company (Qucstar Gas or Company); Wexpro Company 


(Wexpro); the Utah Division of Public · Uti lities (Division); the Utah Office of Con'sumer 


Services (the Utah OCS); and the Wyoming Office of Consumer Advocate (the Wyoming OCA) 


(collectively Parties or singly Party) submit this Settlemcnt Stipulation . This Settlement 


Stipulation shall bc effective upon the entry of a tinal order of approval by the Public Service 


Comm ission of Utah (Utah Commission) and the Wyoming Public Service Commission 


(Wyoming Commission) (together Commissions) as provided in the Wexpro II Agreement, 


Articlc IV-5 and Article IV-9(c). 







PROCEDURAL HISTORY 


SE'nLEMENT STIrULATION 
DOCKET No. 15-057-10 


I. On March 28, 2013, the Utah Commission issued its Report and Order approving 


the Wexpro II Agreement. On April II, 2013, the Wyoming COllullission held a hearing ill the 


matter of the application of Questar Gas Company for approval oflhe Wexpro II Agreement and 


issued a bench ruling approving the Wexpro IT Agreement. On October 16, 2013, the Wyoming 


Commission issued its Memorandum Opinion, Findings and Order approving the Wexpro II 


Agreement. 


2. On January 17, 2014, the Utah Conuuission issued its Report and Order 


approving the Trail Uuit Settlement Stipulation. On March 18,2014 the Wyoming COllUllission 


issued its Memorandum Opinion, Findings and Order approving the Trail Unit Settlement 


Stipulation. 


3. The Wexpro II Agreement and the Trail Unit Settlement Stipulation govern the 


requirements for Wexpro and Questar Gas relating to the Canyon Creek Acquisition. Section 


IV -I of the Wexpro II Agreement provides that "Wexpro will acquire oil and gas properties or 


undeveloped leases at its own risk." Section IV-I(a) provides that "Questar Ga~ shall apply to 


the Utah and Wyoming Conmussions for approval to include under tlus Agreement any oil and 


gas property that Wexpro acquires within the Wexpro I development drilling areas." 


4. On December 19, 2014, Wexpro closed on its $52.7 million acquisition of an 


additional 30% interest in natural-gas producing properties in the Canyon Creek Acquisition 


Area located in the Vermillion Basin in southwest Wyoming. These properties are located 


within the Development Drilling Areas defined in the Wexpro Stipulation and Agreement 


executed October 14, 1981 and approved October 28, 1981 by the Wyoming COllUl1.ission and 


December 3 I, 1981 by the Utah Commission (hereinafter Wexpro I 
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Agreement}. Wexpro already owns a 70% interest in the properties being acquired. This 


acquisition increases Wexpro' s ownership interest to 100%. 


5. On August 31, 2015, Questar Gas filed its Confidential Applicalions seeking 


approval of the Ca.nyon Crcck Acquisition as a Wexpro II property before the Utah and 


Wyoming Commissions. The Canyon Creek Acquisition is an acquisition wilhin a Wexpro [ 


Development Drilling Area and under the tcrms of the Wexpro " Agreement Questar Gas is 


requil'cd to bring this property before both the Utah and Wyoming Conuuissions for approval. 


The Confidential Applications were accompanied by Exhibits A through P and the direct 


testimony of Mr. B arrie L. McKay and Mr. Brady B. Rasmussen. 


6. Questar Gas Company has submitted data ill support of the Confidential 


Applications, including gas pricing asslllllptions, market data, historical production and 


remaining reserves of current wells, forecasted productiou/reserves for future wells, forecasted 


decline curves for current and futurc wells, drilling costs, operating expenses, ownership 


intercsts, taxcs, gathcring and processing costs, forecasted long-tenn cost-of-service analysis, 


impact on Questar Gas' gas supply, geologic data, future devclopment plans, applicable 


guidelinc Icttcrs, aud other data as rcqucsted by the respective agencies through numerous data 


requests. Additionally, the Hydrocarbon Monilor's Report regarding thc Canyon Creek 


Acquisition was filed September 10, 2015 and September 14, 2015 in Wyoming and Utah, 


rcspcctively. 


7. On September 9, 2015, the Utall Conunission issued its Scheduling Order setting 


dates for filing testimony, teclUlical conferences, 811d heruings and on October 8, 20 IS, the 


Wyoming Conullission issued its Scheduling Order setting dates for filing testimony and 


hearings. 
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8. On September 17, 201 5, a technical conference was held in Utah (0 discuss and 


provide information to tile Division, Utah OCS, and Staff of the Utah Commission on tile 


Company's anyon Creek Acquisition and its proposed changes to key critcria of the Wexpro . 


Agreements. 


9. On October 8, 201 5, a technical conference was held in Wyoming (0 discuss and 


provide infolmation to the Wyoming OCA and the Staff of the Wyoming Commission on the 


Company's Canyon Creck Acquisition and its proposed changes to kcy criteria of the Wcxpro 


Agreements. 


10. Since the Confident ial Appl ication' were filed, the Division, Utah OCS, 


Wyoming OCA, Utah Commission StalI, and Wyoming ConU1lission Staff have asked and 


Questar Gas has responded to more than 50 data requests and inquiries. 


II. On October 8, 201 5, the D.ivision and tile Utah OCS fil ed direct testimony and on 


October 13,20 15, thc Wyoming OCA filed direct testimony in their respective dockets. 


TERMS A D CONDITIONS 


12. The Parties agrce for purposes of settlement tilat llie Canyon Creek Aequi ilion, 


as identified in the Canyon Cl'eek Application, shall be apI)roved as a Wexpro II property. 


13. The Parties agree for pUlvoses of settlcment that Wexpro will des ign its arumal 


drilling program or drilling programs that are more frequent than tilC aWlual cycle to provide 


cost-of-service production tbat is, a( the (ime Wcxpro incurs an obligation in connection willi a 


driJling program, on average1
, at or below tJle 5-Year Forward Curve price that was agreed to in 


thc Trail Settlement Stipulation. 


• 


• 


I for purposes of this provision, averagc is defmed as the cost-or-scrvicc for the fLrst five 0 
years of production divided by thc production vo lumes for the first five years. 
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14. The Parties agree for purposes of setllement that the 5-Year Forward Curve 


agreed to in the Trail Settlement Stipulation and used by Wexpro to determine its future drill ing 


plans will be calculated as shown below and as illustratcd in the attachcd Scttlement Stipulation 


Exhibit!. 


Each day, a 60 month forward curve will be calculated as follows: 


A = NYMEXpricc(- on graph) 


B = Northwest Pipeline Rockies Basis ( - on graph) 


C = (A+13) = Rockies-Adjusted Price ( - 011 graph) 


D = (c1 +C'+C3 +····+c.0) 6O-rnonth average Rockies-Adjusted Price (---- on graph) 
60 months 


Each point on line D represents the daily calculation of the 60-momh average o[ the 


Rockies-Adjusted Price. To reduce volatility in the cw-ve, the most recent 20 trading days of line 


D will be used. Detai ls ofthc 20-trading-day average calculation arc as follows: 


E = (D_1+D_,+D_3+····+D_20) = 5-Year Forward Curve (--- on graph) 
20 days 


Eaeh point on line E represents thc average of the most reecnt 20 trading days of the 60-


month average Rockies Adjusted Priee (5-year forward Curve). The point on line E on thc date 


that Wexpro incurs an obligation in cOllJlection with a drilling program will be compared to the 


incremental cost-of-service of thc drilling program to determi.ne whether the drilling program 


meets the requiremeuts established in paragraph 13 abovc. 


l5 . The Parties agree [or purposes of sctl lement that the ratc of return on prc-20 16 


natural gas and oil Developmental Wclls and Appurtenant facilities will be governed over their 


remaining life as set fOlth in thc Wexpro T and Wexpro U Agreements. 


16. The Parties agree for purposcs of sctl.lement that tJle rate of return on po. t-20 15 


Wexpro I and Wexpro II Dcvelopmcnt Drilling or any othcr capital investment, and any 
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associated i\FUDC, for both natural gas and oi l wclls, will be the Commission-AlIowcd Rafe of 


Return as defined in Section 1-3 ! offhe Wexpro II Agreement. 


17. The Parties agree for purposes of settlement that for post-20 15 Development 


Drilling, the Dry Hole and lloll-commercial costs, as defined in the Wexpro I and Wexpro II 


Agreements, will be charged and shared on a 50150 basis between Quester Gas customers and 


Wexpro, subject to the limitations contained in paragraph 19 of this Settlcment Stipulation. Any 


revenue and related expen es from nOll-commercial wells will be shared on a 50150 basis, subject 


to the limitations contained in paragraph 19 of 11lis Settlcmcnt Stipulation. The Partics further 


agrcc that the customers' sharc of the 50150 sharing of Dry Hole and non-eommcrcial well costs 


will be limited to 4.5% of Wexpro's arulUal development drilling program. Any Dry Holc or 


non-commercial welJ costs above 4.5% will be the sole responsibility of Wcxpro. 


18. The Parlies agree for purposes of se!liement that when the actual annua l eost-of-


service price per decathenl1 (COS Price) for Questar Gas' Integmted Resource Plan (IRP) year is 


less than the market price per decathcnl1 for the IRP year (defiJ1Cd below), then savings will be 


shared 50% to Questar Gas customers and 50% to Wexpro using into-thc-intcrstate-pipeline 


volumes from post-2015 Development Wells. 


a. for purposes of this calculation, eost-of-service volumes (COS Volumes) 


are defined as the actual deeathcl"ll1s supplied into the interstate pipeline 


lUlder both Wexpro I and Wexpro II. 


b. The market price for an Uti' ycru' will be calculated as follows: The 


Northwest Pipeline flrst-of-month price for each monll, is multiplied by 


the actual COS Volumcs for each month. These 12 1110nths of costs are 


totaled and then divided by the 12-ll1onth total of into-the-intcrstate-
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pipeline vo lumes. The resulting pnce per decatherm is the Average 


Market Price for the previous IRP year. 


e. The COS Price for the IRP year will include all pre-2016 Wexpro I and 


Wexpro Tl costs and volumes and all post-201S Wexpro r and Wexpro If 


costs and volumes. These costs and volumes wi ll include the customers' 


pOltion of any Dry-Hole cost incurred during the IRP year. 


d. Each year in June, the Average Market Price and COS Price will be 


calculated for tbe previous IRP year to detemline if savings per decathenn 


have occulTed. Tf savings have occurred, Wexpro will calculate thc shared 


savings and separately identify the amount being retumed to Wexpro on 


the July Operator Service Fee (OSP) invoice to Questar Gas. QuestaI' Gas 


will separately identify the portion of the shared savings retumed to 


Wexpro in the Company's 191 Account. These calculations and entries 


are subject to review and audit by the Utah Division and the Wyoming 


OCA. Any dispute regarding related prices and calculations will be 


resolved in the Company's 191 Account proceedings in Utah and 


Wyoming. 


e. The calculation of shared savings is ill ustrated in the attached Settlement 


Stipulation 'xhibit 2. Column A lines 1 - 12 show how the first-of-month 


price for NOlthwest Pipeline will bc multiplied by the COS Volumcs for 


caeh month shown in Column B, lines 1 - 12. Colulllll C, lincs I - 12 


show the comparable market purchase cost by month. The 12-montil total 


comparable market purchase cost, shown in olulll!1 C, line 13 is divided 
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by the 12-month total COS Volumes, shown in Column B, line 13, to 


arrive at the Average Market Price, line 14. The COS Price for the IRP 


year will be the Wcxpro I and Wexpro It costs for pre-2016, post-2015 


proved producing, and post-2015 Development Wells (Col D, line 17) 


divided by the volnmes in Wexpro I and Wcxpro II for pre-2016, post-


2015 proved producing, and post-2015 Development Wclls (Col D, line 


21). This calculation is illustrated on line 25. Line 18 noles that any Dry-


Hole cost assigned to the customer Ihal year must be included in that 


year's calculation of lhe total COS Price. Savings per decatheml, shown 


on line 27, are calculated by taking the difference betwecn the Average 


Markct Price and the lolal COS Price. If tIlis number is positive, then as 


shown on line 28, 50% of this savings ($/dlh) is multiplied by the post-


2015 Development Wells into-the-intcrstate-pipeline volumes (Col C, line 


21) to arrive at the shared savings amount that will be ineluded in the July 


entry in the 191 account. 


19. The Parties agree for purposes of settlement that ill 110 event shall this shared 


savings amount result in Wexpro earning a ratc of return on post-2015 Development Wells 


greater tban the Base Rate of Return (Base ROR) + 8% (Settlement Stipulation Exhibit 2, line 


28). This shall be ensured with an adjustmcnt to the Company's 191 Account. The Parties 


acknowledge the effect of tIlis adjustment may effectively increase Questar Gas' customers' 


share of savings or illcrea~e Wexpro's propoliionate share of Dry Holc or non-commercial well 


costs, set forth in paragraph 17 above. 
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The Parties agree for purposes of settlement tlmt starting with tile 2020 IRP year, 


and for each IRP year thereaOer, Questar Gas and Wexpro will manage the combined eost-of-


service production from Wexpro l and Wexpro 11 properties to: (a) 55% of Questar Gas' 8IUlUal 


forecasted demand idcntified in the TRP; or (b) 55% of the Min.imum Threshold as defmcd in the 


Trai l Settlement Stipulation, Section 12.c, if annual forecastcd demand is below the Minimum 


Threshold. 


2 I. The Parties agree for purposes of settlement that Questru' Gas will maintain on its 


questargas.com web site a current copy of all relevant documents governing tile cost-of-service 


arrangement betwcen Wexpro and Questar Gas. TIlis shall include, but is not limited to: 


The 1981 Wexpro St ipulat ion and Agreement, commonly referred to as 
the Wexpro 1 Agrecmcnt 


Utah and Wyoming Commission Orders approving the Wexpro I 
Agreement 


Wexpro II Agreement 


Utah and Wyoming Orders approving the Wexpro II Agreement 


Trail SetUement Stipulation 


Utah and Wyoming Orders approving the Trail Settlement Stipulation 


Canyon Creek Settlement Stipulation 


Utall and Wyoming Orders approving the Canyon Creek Settlement 
Stipulat ion 


All Guideline Letters 


22. The Parties agree for purposes of settlement that all temlS and conditions of the 


Wexpro I and Wexpro II Agreements and the Trail Settlement Stipulation apply un less oilierwise 


c1arificd or addrcssed by this Sctt lcmcnt Stipulation. Thc Parties further agree that the Wcxpro 1 


Agrccment, thc Wexpro II Agreement, the Trail Settlement Stipulation, and this Settlement 


Stipulation, known as the Canyon Crcck Scttlcmcnt Stipulation, must be read collectively as the 
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Wexpro Agrccmcnt. Under no ci rcumstances will a Party to thc collective Wexpro Agreement • assert tbat any provision of the Wexpro I Agreement, the Wexpro IJ Agreement, the Trai l 


Settlement Stipulat ion, or the Canyon Creek Settlement 'tipulation is severable from the 


collecti ve \!fexpro Agreemcnt. 


23. Thc Parties agree for purposes of selliemcnt tbat under no circumstance will IDly 


Party claim that this Settlcment Stipulation invokes Section 11.2 of the 198 ) Utah Stipulation; 


Section 11.2 of the Wyoming 198 1 'tipulation; or Wcxpro I Agreement, Articlc IV-G(e). The 


Parties further agree that nothing in this Settlement Stipulation may be interpreted or elaimcd by 


any Party lUlder any term or combination of tenns of the 198 1 Utah Stipulat ion and the 198 1 


Wyoming Sti pulation to allow Wexpro to cither revoke any Wexpro I or Wexpro II p ropcrties, 


release Wexpro or the Company from their obligations under either the I/expro I or N'expro n 


Agrcements, or subject Wexpro to the jurisdiction of ei ther the Utah or Wyoming Commissions . • GE ERAL 


24. The Parties agree that settlement of thosc issues identified above is in the publ ic 


interest and that tlle results are just and reasonable. 


25. The Parties agrec that no part of this Settlement Stipulation or the formulae or 


methods used in developing the same, or a Commission order approving the same shall in any 


manner be argued or considered as precedential in any fu tu re case. All negotiations related to 


this Settlement Stipulation are pri vileged and confidential, and no Pmty shall be bound by any 


posit ion asserted in negotiations. Neither tbe execution of this Sett lement StipUlation nor the 


order adopting it shall be deemed to constitute an admission or acknowledgmcnt by any Party of 


the va lidity or inval idity of any principle or practice of ratemakillg; 1I0r shaUlhey be COil. trucd to 


constitute the basis of an estoppel or waiver by any Palty; nor shall they be introduced or used as 
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• evidence [or any other purpose in a future proceeding by any Party except in a proceeding to 


enforce this Settlement Stipulation. 


26. Que tar Gas, Wexpro, the Division, the Utah OCS and the Wyoming OCI\. each 


will make one or more witnesses available to explain and SUppOit this Settlement Stipulation to 


their respective Commissions. Such witnesses will be available for exanl ination. As applied to 


the Division, the Utah oes, and the Wyoming OC , the explaJlation and support shall be 


consistent with their statutory authorities and responsibilities. So that the records in these 


dockets are complete, all Parties' filed testimony, exhibits, and the 'onfidential Applications and 


their exhibits shall be SUbllllttcd as evidence. 


27. Th.eJ'lI}ti~~ agree that if any person challenges the approval of this Settlement 
. : " _ OO: .~ .~. :-:, ,'. .. 


Stipulation or reques!S"iellcarlng or reconsideration of any order of the Conullissions approving 


• tllis Settlement Stipulation, each Party wili use its best efforts to support the temlS and conditions 


of the SetUement Stipulation. As applied to the Utah Division, the Utah oes, and the Wyoming 


o A, the phrase "usc its best efforts" means that they shall do so in a manner consistent with 


their statutory authorities and responsibilities. In the event any person seek' judicial review of a 


COlllmission order approving this Settlement Stipulation, no Party shall take a position in that 


judicial review opposed to the Settlement Stipulation. 


28. Except Witil regard to tile obligations of U1C Parties under paragraphs 25, 26, and 


27, of this Settlement Stipulation, this Settlement Stipulation shall not be final and binding on the 


Parties until it has been approved without material change or condition by the Commissions. 


This Settlement Stipulation is an integrated whole, and any Party Illay withdraw frolll it if it is 


not approved without material change or condition by Ule Commissions or if the Commissions' 


approval is rejected or materially conditioned by a reviewing court. I r the Commissions reject 
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any part ofthis Settlement Stipulation or impose any material ehange or condition on approval of 


this eltlement Stipulation, or if the Commissions' approval of this Settlement Stipulation is 


rejected or materially conditioned by a reviewing court, the Parties agrce to meet and discuss the 


applicable Commission or comt order witllin five business days of its issuance and to attempt in 


good faith to dctermine if they are willing to modiry the Set11el1lent Stipulation consistcnt with 


the order. 10 Party shall withdraw [rol11 the Settlement Stipulation prior to complying with the 


fo regoing sentence. If any Party withdIaws frol11 the Sett lement Stipulation, any Party retains the 


right to seek additional procedures before the Corrunission, including presentation of te timony 


and cross-cxamination o[witnesscs, with respect to issues reso lvcd by tile Settlement St ipulation, 


and no Party shall be bOllnd or prejudiced by the terms and conditions of the Settlement 


Stipulation. 


29. This Settlement Stipulation may be executed by individual Parties through two or 


more separate, eonfonned copies, the aggregate of which will be considered as an integrated 


instrument. 
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RELffiF REQUESTED 


Based on the foregoing, the Patties request that the Commission issue an order approving 


this Settlement Stipulation and adopting its temlS and conditions. 


RESPECTFULLY SUBMTTTED: 


Cillis Parker 
Director 


Utah Divisioll 0/ Public Utilities 


Questar Gas Company 


. Rasmussen 
Exe ive Vice President & 
Chief Opcrating Offieer 


Wexpro Company 


October 7)p ,2015. 
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Director 


Office o/Consumer Services 


Bryce Freeman 
Administrator 


Wyomillg Office o/Consumer Advocate 
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SEnLE~llNT STlPllLATlON 
DOCKET NO. 15-057- 10 


Based on the forego ing. the Parties request that the Commission issue an order approving 


lilis Settlement Stipulation and adopti ng its tenns and condit ions. 


RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: October 26, 20 IS. 


Chris Parker Michele Beck 
Director Director 


Utah Division 0/ Public Utilities 


Craig C. Wagstaff 
Pre ident 


Questar Gas Company 


Brady B. Rasm ussen 
Executi ve Vice President & 
Chief Operating Officer 


Wexpro Company 


Wyoming Office o/Conslimer Advocate 
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 1                    P-R-O-C-E-E-D-I-N-G-S
 2                           --oOo--
 3             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Good morning.  We're on the
 4   record.  We are here for the hearing in the Matter of
 5   the Application of Questar Gas Company for Approval of
 6   the Canyon Creek Acquisition as a Wexpro II Property.
 7             And we're here to consider approval of the
 8   settlement stipulation that was filed in this matter.
 9   We'll start with appearances.  So, of course, for the
10   Utility?
11             MS. LARKIN BELL:  Colleen Larkin Bell for
12   Questar Gas Company.
13             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you.
14             MS. SCHMID:  Patricia E. Schmid with the
15   Attorney General's Office for the Division of Public
16   Utilities.
17             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Thank you.
18             MR. OLSEN:  Rex Olsen with the Office of
19   Consumer Services.
20             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you.  Are there
21   any other preliminary matters before we move forward?
22             MS. LARKIN BELL:  Just a quick question on
23   how you would like us to move for admission of our
24   exhibits.  In the case of the Company, we've provided
25   an exhibit list and a binder with all of the attached
0005
 1   exhibits.
 2             The court reporter has one.  And if we could
 3   move for the admission of those exhibits as indicated
 4   on the list, that's fine, or if you want to read
 5   everything into the record, we can do that.  Just a
 6   preliminary question.
 7             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Is there any
 8   objection to them being entered as the list without
 9   reading each one individually.
10             MR. OLSEN:  We have no objection.
11             MS. SCHMID:  No objection.  And the Division
12   would like to do the same with its list if permitted.
13             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Certainly.
14             MS. LARKIN BELL:  Okay.  With that, if you
15   want to start with the exhibits.  The Company would
16   move for the admission of its exhibits, with the
17   exception of one, and that is a separate handout that
18   we have handed out both to the court reporter, the
19   other parties, and the commissioners.
20             And we have marked this one as QGC Hearing
21   Exhibit 6.0.  It's very similar to Mr. Barrie L.
22   McKay's testimony exhibit, with the exception that we
23   have added a column to indicate what the proposed
24   changes are as agreed to in the stipulation agreement.
25             And I don't want to move for the admission of
0006
 1   that now.  The parties have just now gotten a copy of
 2   that.  I think what I will ask is after Mr. McKay
 3   provides testimony in support of the stipulation, we
 4   would move for admission of that hearing exhibit at
 5   that time.
 6             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.
 7             MS. LARKIN BELL:  If that works.
 8             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Any objection to admitting
 9   all of the exhibits as described with this one
10   exception at this point?
11             MS. SCHMID:  No.
12             MR. OLSEN:  No objection.
13             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  They'll be admitted.
14   Thank you.
15             (Exhibits were admitted.)
16             MS. LARKIN BELL:  With that, I would like to
17   call Mr. Barrie L. McKay as our witness who will
18   support our settlement stipulation in this matter.
19                           --oOo--
20                      BARRIE L. MCKAY,
21        having been first duly sworn to tell the
22        truth, was examined and testified as follows:
23                           --oOo--
24             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you.
25             MS. LARKIN BELL:  Would it be all right for
0007
 1   Mr. McKay to stay here, or would you --
 2             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Oh, yes.  Absolutely.
 3   That's fine.
 4             MS. LARKIN BELL:  Okay.
 5             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  I think is there any
 6   objection if we can just go to all the witnesses, and
 7   then if there's any question from the bench, we save
 8   them until the end?  Any objection to moving forward
 9   that way?
10             MS. SCHMID:  No objection.
11             MR. OLSEN:  No objection, Your Honor.
12             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Thank you.
13                         EXAMINATION
14   BY MS. LARKIN BELL:
15        Q.   Mr. McKay, please state your name and -- name
16   for the record.
17        A.   Barrie L. McKay.
18        Q.   And by whom are you employed?
19        A.   Questar Gas Company.
20        Q.   What is your title, your place of employment?
21        A.   I'm vice president of regulatory affairs and
22   energy efficiency.
23        Q.   And did you file direct testimony in this
24   proceeding consisting of nine pages and pre-marked as
25   QGC Exhibit 1.0, with attached Exhibits 1.1 through 1.3
0008
 1   on August 31, 2015?
 2        A.   Yes I did.
 3        Q.   And if I were to ask you the same questions
 4   today that were asked in your pre-filed direct
 5   testimony, would your answers be the same?
 6        A.   Yes.
 7        Q.   Are you prepared today to summarize for the
 8   commission the settlement stipulation that was filed in
 9   this matter?
10        A.   Yes, I am.
11        Q.   Go ahead.
12        A.   We have been -- I guess I wouldn't mind at
13   this point pointing out this hearing exhibit that is
14   essentially Exhibit 1.II, but was -- my counsel has
15   already pointed we have added an additional column.
16             In our preparation for summary today, we
17   thought it would be a useful tool as we walk through
18   the stipulation itself.  So with that said, I'm going
19   to probably be referring to the stipulation pages, as
20   well as this summary and try to kind of tie those
21   together.  I know we planned to have questions at the
22   end, but if there's anything I'm saying along the way
23   that there's questions about, feel free to --
24             MS. LARKIN BELL:  Additionally, one other
25   comment, if the Commission has any questions with
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 1   regard to confidential exhibits, we are prepared to
 2   discuss those with you today.
 3             But we would ask at that time that we request
 4   that the hearing be closed to the public, given that we
 5   do not believe that the settlement stipulation is
 6   confidential or that Barrie's testimony with regard to
 7   it will be confidential.
 8             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you.  If that
 9   issue arises, we'll deal with it.
10             THE WITNESS:  Okay.  First page of the
11   stipulation is simply in summary form.  I think the
12   recognition that the Questar Gas Company, as well as
13   Wexpro, Division of Public Utilities, Utah Office of
14   Consumer Services, and Wyoming Office of Consumer
15   Advocates were the parties that signed this
16   stipulation.
17             The key takeaway on that first page is the
18   recognition that both the Utah and the Wyoming
19   Commission need to approve the stipulation in order for
20   it to become effective.
21             The pages 2 and 3 I think simply are
22   procedural history summary, recognizing that we have a
23   Wexpro II agreement, which is why we brought the
24   property in the first place.
25             Paragraph 2 is recognition of the Trail 2
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 1   stipulation.  Key reason why that needs to be pointed
 2   out I think in our procedural history is that there was
 3   a settlement in that docket that both Wyoming and Utah
 4   approved that helped to govern the Wexpro property
 5   going into the future.  And that the -- this
 6   application, the Canyon Creek application, complied
 7   with what was required there.
 8             Wexpro did indeed purchase this property at
 9   its own risk.  And they are required, since this
10   property is within the development drilling area, to
11   bring that before the Utah and Wyoming Commissions.
12             It does complete specifically -- when I say
13   "complete," it makes it so that Wexpro now owns -- has
14   100 percent ownership in the Canyon Creek area.
15   Previous to that, we had 70 percent.  It was being
16   provided to Questar Gas as a cost of the service, and
17   this additional 30 percent, it has full ownership now.
18             As required, they also have -- we, Questar
19   Gas, filed with a complete -- complete requirements of
20   the Wexpro II agreement, which is all of the data
21   identified in the Exhibits A through P.  Following our
22   application, the hydrocarbon monitor, according to what
23   was laid out in the Wexpro II agreement, filed his
24   report within the seven business days, both in Utah and
25   in Wyoming.  I think that will become part of the
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 1   record also.
 2             Other takeaway is that in this process of
 3   coming to this stipulation, understanding was improved
 4   through the process of holding two technical
 5   conferences, one here in Utah on September 17th, as
 6   well as on October 8, there was a technical conference
 7   held in Wyoming.
 8             And ultimately the parties through numerous
 9   data requests and opportunity to sit down and walk
10   through and better understand what was being proposed
11   and the significant proposals I think that the parties
12   have focused on have been the changes that accompanied
13   this application.  And this hearing exhibit summary I
14   think is a good way of walking through that.  So I'll
15   refer back and forth to the actual stipulation itself,
16   as well as this hearing exhibit.
17             But the terms and conditions I think is where
18   it really starts to be recognized of what we are
19   agreeing to as settling parties.  In paragraph 12, it's
20   simply recognition that the Canyon Creek acquisition
21   will be approved and improved as a Wexpro II property
22   and will function accordingly with the following
23   additional agreements that have gone forth.
24             And that is in paragraph 13, there's -- that
25   specifically relates to line 1 of this hearing exhibit.
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 1   The parties are essentially -- I would describe it as
 2   doing five things here within this paragraph.
 3   Number 1, we're recognizing that Wexpro is going to
 4   continue to be the one that designs their annual
 5   drilling program.
 6             Next part of that sentence, we're recognizing
 7   that a drilling program might not always happen in the
 8   fall, for example.  It might be a drilling program
 9   that's committed to or decided in the spring or some
10   other time of year.  So we're trying to make it clear
11   that that could happen at a different time of the year.
12             And then the next part is that there is a
13   moment in which Wexpro needs to commit or become
14   obligated to a drilling rig.  So we're recognizing that
15   at that point in time, couple of things have to be
16   taking place.
17             Number 1, the average of what they plan to go
18   out and drill as far as their drilling plan.  And we
19   define the average carefully as the first five years --
20   the costs related to the first five years of
21   production, divided by the production from that first
22   five years' production.  That's going to come up and
23   create a cost per dekatherm.  That cost per dekatherm
24   needs to be at or below the five-year forward curve.
25             Now, the five-year forward curve was a term
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 1   that we agreed to in the Trail stipulation.  But it's
 2   something that we further defined here in the Canyon
 3   Creek stipulation to make sure everybody understood
 4   exactly what was meant by that and how Wexpro had been
 5   calculating it.
 6             So that moves us to paragraph 14, which is
 7   just further defining on this hearing exhibit our line
 8   number 1.  And that is the actual formula that makes up
 9   the five-year forward curve.
10             And the best way I have found to do it, and I
11   think that we put together a pretty good summary, I'm
12   just going to turn to the exhibit -- stipulation
13   Exhibit 1 in what we've put together with the
14   stipulation.
15             And in referring to that, the first part of
16   the formula, which is A, which is identified as the
17   NYMEX forward curve, and that shows up here on the
18   stipulation Exhibit 1 as a blue line.  And that blue
19   line shows 60 months' forecast and has the estimated
20   price as of that date.
21             And then the next part, B, which is the -- we
22   recognize that we have a different price here in the
23   Rockies, and so we have a basis difference that's
24   identified as the next part of the formula.  And that
25   part shows up as a red line on this stipulation
0014
 1   exhibit.  And then these two need to be added together
 2   to come up with the Rockies adjusted price.  That shows
 3   up as the green line on this graph.
 4             And we recognize that that is five years'
 5   worth of forecasts.  Now, the next part is the creation
 6   of the component of the formula D, which is simply
 7   adding up 60 months' worth of forecast, so that would
 8   be that green line, and dividing it by 60 to come up
 9   with that day's average for the next 60 months.
10             And to that, next thing we recognize -- and
11   that is essentially the black line here on Exhibit 1.
12   And you can see that there's some volatility in that
13   black line.  Sometimes it jumps up, sometimes it goes
14   down.
15             And rather than have parties or Wexpro or
16   whoever be looking at, I want to right this right at
17   the low part or hit it at the high part, we then
18   introduced the idea that we would smooth out this line
19   by simply taking the latest 20 trading days and have --
20   so we add up the latest 20, divide that by 20, and
21   that's what you see as the orange line.  And that's our
22   definition of the five-year forward curve.
23             So a point on that line on the day that
24   Wexpro commits to or is obligated to continue forward
25   with their drilling plan is the number that needs to be
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 1   compared with what the forecast is of the next five
 2   years of production.
 3             And essentially that helps to create or
 4   complete that comparison so that we know that that is a
 5   forecast.  It's forecast in the future.  It's comparing
 6   five years of forecasts that an outside third party is
 7   doing, comparing it with five years of forecasts for
 8   what Wexpro anticipates to be able to produce from a
 9   given drilling plan.
10             That has to be at or below in order for
11   Wexpro to move forward.  We like that as a good check
12   to make sure that we're getting properties.  They're
13   coming to Questar Gas that are going to be at or below
14   that on a forecasted basis.  There's also some
15   comparison later on that is also a good check, I think
16   a good safety valve for our customers that we'll talk
17   about later.
18             The next paragraph in the stipulation is --
19   actually, before I move to paragraph 15, let me make an
20   observation is that the parties worked through this
21   very carefully.  And this Exhibit 1 is a -- comes from
22   a worksheet that goes through each day.  And each day
23   that there's a trading day, it can be updated for one
24   more day.  And Wexpro does that.  Company will be doing
25   that.
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 1             We're offering that as something -- we know
 2   we do a lot of reporting, and we didn't come with any
 3   decision exactly of when and how often.  We think it
 4   could be available at any time.  But we think it might
 5   be wise for Questar Gas to be providing that maybe on
 6   at least an annual basis.  Commission can take note of
 7   that.  And however they might feel comfortable, if
 8   that's something they want more often.
 9             But as you'll see here in a bit, we're going
10   to be doing a calculation and an analysis on an annual
11   basis.  That seemed at least an appropriate opportunity
12   to be providing that to all the parties.  But it can be
13   provided at other times during the year if the parties
14   or the Commission wanted it.
15             That moves us to photograph 15.  Paragraph 15
16   specifically relates to line 4 here in this hearing
17   exhibit, and that's the recognition that the property
18   that has already been developed, it's referred to as
19   pre-2016 oil and gas properties, there was -- developed
20   under a previous set of guidelines and terms will be
21   governed over the remaining life of that property, as
22   was set forth in the Wexpro I and II agreements.
23             That moves us to paragraph 16.  And that's
24   the part where there begins to be some significant
25   changes in these models going forward.  And that --
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 1   where the parties agree that the post-2015 properties,
 2   and that's both oil and gas, as well as the allowance
 3   for funds used during construction, all of those under
 4   the Wexpro I or Wexpro II agreement had returns higher
 5   than what is now being proposed.  And what's being
 6   proposed is for the life of all of those properties
 7   going forward, they will be earning a Commission
 8   allowed rate of return as defined in the Wexpro II
 9   agreement.
10             For just memory purposes, that's something
11   that's weighted between -- Utah's usage in a given year
12   and Wyoming's usage, and that's weighted based on what
13   the Commissions have allowed as their most recent
14   allowed rate of return.
15             That moves us I think to paragraph 17.  And
16   17 is doing three specific things.  And it relates to
17   line 6 here in the hearing exhibit.  And as you can see
18   here that the Company proposed just a 50/50 sharing.
19   But as the -- we met with the parties, there was some
20   concerns that we had worked through and have agreed
21   upon.
22             And that's, first of all, we did agree that
23   on a going forward basis that when there's new drilling
24   or development wells that there would be a sharing of
25   the costs.  If, in fact, there happened to be dry hole
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 1   cost, there would be a sharing of those costs 50/50.
 2             Now, we recognize in the next part of this
 3   paragraph that although in the definition in Wexpro I
 4   and Wexpro II, a dry hole cost is identified as being a
 5   plugged and abandoned well or a well that has not
 6   passed the commerciality test.  And that's defined as
 7   dry hole.
 8             We break it out here in this paragraph.  The
 9   reason we do is we recognize on those -- we're going to
10   refer to them as non-commercial wells, they may still
11   be produced if their costs, okay, are covered by the
12   cash that could be received in selling the gas, okay?
13             So it's not such a bad well that it should be
14   plugged and abandoned, but you can actually cover your
15   cash costs.  In that instance in this paragraph, you
16   can see that the parties have agreed that the revenues
17   and the related expenses from a non-commercial well
18   will also be shared on a 50/50 basis.
19             Additionally, the parties have agreed that
20   there will be a cap on what this sharing would be for
21   the customers.  And that cap is going to be limited to
22   4.5 percent of Wexpro's annual developed drilling that
23   the customer would be responsible for.  Now, there's
24   also some additional parameters as it relates to dry
25   hole that will come up here in paragraph 19, but I'm
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 1   going to wait until we get there.
 2             So let's move to paragraph 18.  And 18 is
 3   dealing with line 7 here in the hearing exhibit.  It's
 4   where the Company had proposed that there would be an
 5   opportunity for sharing of savings that resulted from
 6   wells that would be drilled after 2015 if certain
 7   parameters had been met.
 8             And the biggest parameter is that the overall
 9   cost of service needed to be lower than the market
10   price.  That sounds really good until you get into
11   figuring out, okay, what does market price really
12   represent here?  What all is included in the cost of
13   service?
14             And so we go through an effort in this
15   paragraph 18 to try to define all of the components
16   that would go into this calculation so that it's
17   clearly understood what the intent was.  So
18   paragraph 18(a) simply recognizes that we need to use
19   the volumes that are going into the interstate
20   pipeline.
21             In the past, there have been some variances
22   or differences in that, but we are clarifying that
23   those are the volumes that are intended to be used in
24   this calculation.  Paragraph B goes through the process
25   of what needs to take place to determine what a market
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 1   price is going to be.
 2             And I should identify here, too, that we're
 3   trying to identify what this market price is and this
 4   cost of service price is for an IRP year.  So we
 5   actually have an exhibit that we'll walk through here
 6   in a minute, but it's illustrative of calculating these
 7   rates or these prices for an IRP year.
 8             I don't want people to think that they
 9   couldn't be calculated for some other 12-month period
10   of time.  It does need to be over a 12-month period for
11   the comparison.  And that will probably -- even be
12   doing that as a company.  But for this calculation to
13   determine if there has been sharing occur, it will be
14   the end of an IRP year.
15             Paragraph 18(c) specifically relates to how
16   in cost of service price is going to be calculated.
17   And it also recognizes that in this calculation that
18   the cost for dry hole, that would be both those that
19   are plugged and abandoned, as well as commercial, would
20   be included in as a hurdle that would need to be able
21   to be met before Wexpro begins to be able to receive
22   any sharing of savings.
23             Paragraph D is simply an identification of
24   timing and review rights, if you will.  And that is
25   each June, which would be following the IRP year, IRP
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 1   year ends on May 31st, so in the month of June, we'll
 2   be calculating, Questar Gas, along with help from the
 3   records of Wexpro, what the market price is, what the
 4   cost of service price is.
 5             Then after we go through this calculation,
 6   it's specifically pointed out that if there is indeed
 7   savings, that will show up as a separate line item that
 8   Wexpro will have on their operator service fee that we,
 9   Questar Gas, will be able to see.  Questar Gas, in
10   turn, will be separately identifying that for all
11   parties to see in 191 account entry.
12             Then we recognize that the parties,
13   particularly the Division here in Utah, as well as the
14   Wyoming OCA, have the opportunity to audit and review
15   that calculation.  And if there is any concerns or
16   disputes, that they would be resolved in front of the
17   Commissions who have jurisdiction over the managing of
18   the 191 account.
19             It's kind of a high-level summary of what
20   we're trying to accomplish there.  Parties then went
21   through and tried to develop, just so there wouldn't be
22   any doubt in anybody's mind, an illustration of how
23   this calculation is going to work.  So that shows up in
24   settlement stipulation Exhibit 2.
25             I thought I'd just run through that example
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 1   here as you look at that page.  You can see that the
 2   first part of it, lines 1 through 14, is an
 3   illustration of how the market price, the average
 4   market price, will be calculated.  That shows that
 5   we'll go out and we'll collect from June through May in
 6   column A what the first of the month index price has
 7   been on Northwest Pipeline.
 8             Want to pause here for a minute.  A key thing
 9   that at least in my mind I do in trying to
10   differentiate parts of this agreement that we are --
11   have agreed on is this part that we're dealing with
12   right now, which is a calculation of savings and how
13   they might be shared, is all based on actual.  And so
14   it's outside verifiable numbers that really did happen.
15             Wexpro, on the other hand, tries its best up
16   front when they're going through determining whether or
17   not to drill and what those costs would be, that's
18   based on forecasts.  That's a five-year forecast that's
19   out there.  They're going to doing this.  We're going
20   to be able to review that.  But as far as savings and
21   everything, that's going to be verified and done on an
22   actual basis.  Here in A, we're picking up what the
23   actual first month index price is again.
24             In column B, we're picking up what the actual
25   cost of service into the interstate pipeline volumes
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 1   have been.  There's one thing to estimate but now we're
 2   picking up what actually had happened.  We multiply
 3   those together for each month to come up with what a
 4   comparable market price may have been if Questar Gas
 5   would have gone out and purchased that gas on the open
 6   market rather than receiving it from Wexpro.
 7             It's the total of all of those comparable
 8   market prices that you can see there in column C
 9   that -- line 13 -- is then divided by the total of cost
10   of service volumes to come up with what we're defining
11   as the average market price.
12             So we now have got one component of our
13   formula, which is going to be the cost per dekatherm
14   for the market price.  Now we're looking to figure out
15   and compare that to a cost of service price per
16   dekatherm.
17             We've tried to show here the components that
18   go into the calculation of that cost and what is
19   needed.  Obviously it's going to be the costs
20   themselves.  We recognize that there's going to be
21   different components being brought together here.  We
22   wanted to give the impression that all of Wexpro I and
23   II costs would be being brought into this calculation,
24   that all of the pre-2016 plans or investment will be in
25   there, all of the approved developed producing is going
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 1   to be there, as well as new development wells.
 2             We chose to break out those post-2015 into
 3   two different categories so that people could see
 4   particularly which volumes we're going to be comparing
 5   this and applying it to in the calculation of savings.
 6             Also recognize that you could be adding
 7   additional properties that are approved and already
 8   developed.  And then you're also adding properties
 9   through drilling in the future.  That's why I wanted to
10   break those two out on the post-2015.
11             Key thing to also remember is we're including
12   any of the costs that have been incurred in that year
13   related to dry hole in this calculation.  You can see
14   that in the asterisks there on line 18.
15             And to that we need to make sure that we are
16   including the representative volumes.  So, again, it's
17   just a mirroring of that.  All the volumes from those
18   properties need to be included in this calculation.
19   And then you can see in lines 23 through 25, we're
20   simply going through and trying to illustrate the
21   calculation of a cost per dekatherm.
22             It shows that you could calculate this cost
23   per dekatherm for some subpart, but the key cost per
24   dekatherm we're after here is the total.  And so it is
25   line 17, D-17, that number there that's going to be
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 1   divided by the total volumes, which is in column D,
 2   line 21 that then calculates what the cost of service
 3   price per dekatherm ends up being.  That I just
 4   described is illustrated in line 25.
 5             So now that we've got these two components,
 6   we have a market price, we have a cost of service
 7   price, we're ready to check to see if, in fact, there's
 8   going to be savings, and that's what we're trying to
 9   illustrate in line 26.
10             So if that cost of service price is less than
11   the average market price, then we're going to go
12   through the calculation of what was shared and how that
13   is determined.  It would be -- it is taking what that
14   savings amount is on a cost-per-dekatherm basis as
15   showing in line 27.  You're going to share this on a
16   50/50 basis, so you multiply it by 50 percent.
17             Then it's applied only to the post-2015
18   development well volumes.  And then that dollar amount
19   would be an entry that Wexpro would be doing in their
20   operating service fee bill that we, Questar Gas, would
21   also be making in the 191 account.
22             That essentially takes us through what we
23   were trying to illustrate or show in paragraph 18(e).
24   Now, while we're still on this page, the parties I
25   think fairly observed that we don't want to with this
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 1   change in this agreement make it so Wexpro by un --
 2   some unforeseen thing in the moment was able to all of
 3   a sudden earn higher returns than had ever been
 4   anticipated even in the old agreement.
 5             So there was a cap put on this, and that's in
 6   paragraph 19.  And the parties agreed that in no event
 7   shall this shared savings ever have -- be a result of
 8   Wexpro earning higher than the base plus the 8 percent.
 9             So we put a cap on that.  That's identified
10   on this worksheet or this Exhibit 2 of the settlement
11   stipulation on line 29.  We're trying to make
12   everything be consistent, and we have accomplished that
13   at that point.
14             But there's one other thing that we do here
15   in paragraph 19, and that is related back to dry hole.
16   And that the parties' intent here is that they
17   recognize that as -- if, in fact, Wexpro were able to
18   achieve that level of savings and were able to get back
19   to the base plus 8 percent, during the era of Wexpro I
20   and II, when they were earning that level of return,
21   they, Wexpro, were taking on 100 percent of the dry
22   hole costs.
23             So we recognize as they get to that point, we
24   want to make sure that Wexpro again assumes that dry
25   hole cost, all of it.  So we make a statement here, the
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 1   parties acknowledge that the effect of this cap and
 2   them assuming the dry hole costs could have a -- the
 3   effect of Wexpro assuming a greater portion than 50/50
 4   on a dry hole, and customers assuming a lesser portion
 5   on that as you approach this cap on the earnings.
 6             I should observe that I don't know if any of
 7   the parties think that that's necessarily going to
 8   happen tomorrow, but we wanted to make sure that as
 9   those that have identified and made a change that we're
10   recommending to the Commission, we wanted that intent
11   to take place if and when that happens down the road.
12   So that's why we've tried to spell that out clearly
13   there.
14             So that essentially takes us through
15   paragraph 19.  And paragraph 19, as you can see, it
16   helps to clarify what we're showing here on hearing
17   exhibit in both lines 6 related to the dry hole and
18   line 7, which is the incentive and the -- incentive for
19   Wexpro to help bring costs down.  As they do, if they
20   can do it below the market price, then there's an
21   opportunity for sharing of those savings on just the
22   post-2015 development wells.
23             That takes us to paragraph 20, which will
24   correlate with line 2 from our hearing exhibit.  And
25   that's where the parties have agreed that over the next
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 1   five years, so by year 2020, Wexpro will be moving
 2   their overall production of what they provide to
 3   Questar Gas down to 55 percent.  So that in 2020, the
 4   cap, if you will, of the amount that they're providing
 5   to Questar Gas needs to be at 55 percent.
 6             Last part of that paragraph recognizes that
 7   the minimum threshold that is specifically identified
 8   in the Trail stipulation continues to be in place as it
 9   relates to that.  Should just add here we point this
10   out later in the stipulation that other parts of that
11   stipulation that may not be specifically called out
12   here or being proposed be modified will continue to be
13   in place.
14             So in this particular area, the calculations
15   that go into making sure that Questar Gas is paying the
16   minimum of cost of service or market, whichever's
17   lower, as we reach this cap still stays in place.
18             Next paragraph 21 is the recognition that we
19   wanted to try to bring a lot of what's now beginning to
20   be a few more documents than one.  In fact, it's going
21   to be quite a few documents.  We recognize that for
22   someone to totally understand how all these properties
23   should be handled and treated needed to read them
24   collectively.
25             So we agreed that we will provide as a place
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 1   on our website, and just in talking through it, it
 2   would be our Questar Gas website, as well as Wexpro's
 3   website, all relevant documents pertaining to
 4   management and implementation of cost of service
 5   production.  We list those here, and recognize in
 6   paragraph 22 that they need to be read collectively to
 7   make sure that we have the proper understanding of
 8   that.
 9             And, also, in paragraph 22, we recognize that
10   anything else that hasn't been specifically called out
11   in this stipulation continues in effect as it was
12   intended to in any of the original documents.
13             And that essentially goes back and covers
14   line 3 here in this hearing because we don't have a
15   paragraph that specifically calls that out.  But we
16   recognize here in paragraph 22 that we will continue to
17   have all approved, developed, producing, or pre-81
18   wells be at the Commission-allowed return.
19             I think those are the general -- the
20   specific -- I shouldn't say "general."  Those are the
21   specific highlights related to this stipulation.
22   There's some other paragraphs in here that I think are
23   more general in nature.
24             But I would observe that I think that the
25   results of this stipulation and what we've been able to
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 1   work with with the parties produce what I would
 2   describe as the checks and the balances and the
 3   incentives to provide a cost-of-service relationship
 4   with -- I'm going to represent is Questar Gas -- with
 5   an exploration production Company, Wexpro, that provide
 6   the opportunity for continued savings.
 7             We've enjoyed some wonderful savings through
 8   the years.  We had significant change in the gas market
 9   that none of the people here in this room probably
10   could have forecast, nor could anyone else, that
11   occurred about a year ago.  I think we've worked
12   through a process that sets us up for opportunities to
13   be able to have those savings in the future.
14             There's no guarantee.  Wexpro is going to
15   have a challenge to be able to meet, beat that
16   five-year forward curve.  But it's a great incentive,
17   and we feel confident that we're going to be bringing
18   gas that again is able to provide savings for us in the
19   future.
20             Like the incentives that are set up for
21   Wexpro to be able to go forward and be able to be
22   incentivized to do good things for both of them,
23   because they're going to get rewarded.  We're going to
24   get rewarded as customers and be able to receive lower
25   than market price gas.
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 1             I think the result of this is in the public
 2   interest and is just and reasonable, and observe that I
 3   think that summarizes our testimony related to the
 4   stipulation.
 5        Q.   Thank you, Mr. McKay.
 6             MS. LARKIN BELL:  Before I forget, I would
 7   like to move then for the admission of QGC Hearing
 8   Exhibit 6.0?
 9             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Any objection?
10             MR. OLSEN:  No objection.
11             MS. SCHMID:  Objection.
12             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  That will be entered.  Thank
13   you.
14             (Exhibit was received.)
15             MS. LARKIN BELL:  I failed to introduce
16   Mr. Brady Rasmussen, who is the executive
17   vice president of Wexpro.  He is also available today
18   should the commissioners or parties have questions.
19   With that, I think our summary is concluded.
20             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Thank you.  Any -- any
21   questions for them from the Division or Office, or
22   shall we just move on?
23             MS. SCHMID:  No questions.
24             MR. OLSEN:  No questions.
25             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Thank you.  Ms. Schmid?
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 1             MS. SCHMID:  Thank you.  The Division would
 2   like to call Mr. Douglas D. Wheelwright as its witness.
 3                           --oOo--
 4                   DOUGLAS D. WHEELWRIGHT,
 5        having been first duly sworn to tell the
 6        truth, was examined and testified as follows:
 7                         EXAMINATION
 8   BY MS. SCHMID:
 9        Q.   Good morning, could you please state your
10   employer, title, and place of business for the record?
11        A.   Yes.  I am the technical consultant for the
12   Division of Public Utilities.  My business address is
13   160 East, 300 South.
14        Q.   Could you briefly describe your activities on
15   behalf of the Division in this docket?
16        A.   Yes.  I reviewed the application and
17   participated in meetings with the Company, filed
18   numerous data requests to obtain additional information
19   concerning the filing and filed testimony.
20        Q.   Do you have any changes to your testimony
21   which was filed with the Commission pre-marked as DPU
22   Exhibit No. 1.0D with associated exhibits?
23        A.   No changes.
24        Q.   If I were to ask you the same questions today
25   as contained in that testimony, would your answers be
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 1   the same?
 2        A.   Yes, they would.
 3             MS. SCHMID:  The Division would like to move
 4   for the admission of Division Exhibits DPU Exhibit
 5   No. 1.0D through DPU Exhibit No. 1.5D as memorialized
 6   on the DPU witness list given to the parties and the
 7   court reporter in this docket.
 8             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Any objection to that
 9   motion?
10             MS. LARKIN BELL:  No objection.
11             MR. OLSEN:  No objection.
12             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Thank you.  That will be
13   entered.
14             (Exhibits were received.)
15        Q.   (By Ms. Schmid) Do you have a summary to
16   give?
17        A.   Yes, I do.
18        Q.   Please proceed.
19        A.   Thank you.  Thank you, Commissioners.  The
20   objective of the Wexpro II agreement was to create a
21   structure and a mechanism that could potentially allow
22   additional properties to be included in future cost of
23   service gas production.
24             The Canyon Creek acquisition, which is
25   described in detail by the Company, is within the
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 1   Wexpro I development drilling area.  And under the
 2   terms of the Wexpro II agreement, Questar Gas is
 3   required to bring this property before the Commission
 4   for approval.
 5             This purchase includes an increased ownership
 6   in 110 existing and producing wells, along with 30
 7   future well locations.  The future drilling locations
 8   are in a field that is with known production and where
 9   Wexpro has experience with previous drilling in this
10   field.
11             The calculations and assumptions used in this
12   acquisition have been reviewed and evaluated by
13   David Evans, the independent hydrocarbon monitor.  On
14   September 10th, 2015, Mr. Evans filed a report with the
15   Division and indicated that in his opinion, the
16   reserves and associated economic information presented
17   by Wexpro were reasonable.
18             The specifics of the cost of service price
19   projections from this acquisition are confidential but
20   have been included in Exhibit L and L-1 of the filing.
21   The natural gas from the additional Canyon Creek wells
22   represent a small percentage of the total Wexpro
23   production and will have a minor impact on the total
24   price of cost of service gas.
25             A comparison of the total cost of service
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 1   price from all Wexpro production and the projected
 2   market price for the next five years has been included
 3   as Exhibit 1.1 of my direct testimony.
 4             As part of this application, the Company has
 5   included significant changes to the Wexpro agreements.
 6   The proposed changes would reduce the allowed rate of
 7   return for new development from the base rate of
 8   return, plus an 8 percent premium currently calculated
 9   at 20 percent to the Commission-allowed rate of return,
10   currently 7.64 percent.
11             This lower rate of return will apply to new
12   development in all fields and will allow Wexpro to
13   begin drilling as early as next year.  The lower rate
14   of return will allow future drilling not only in Canyon
15   Creek, but also in other fields, such as Pinedale and
16   Trail.  Additional wells can be drilled if the cost of
17   service production is at or below the five-year forward
18   price curve.
19             Another change calls for ratepayers to share
20   50 percent of the dry hole or non-commercial well costs
21   and to potentially bear additional costs under a shared
22   savings arrangement.  The recommended changes to the
23   Wexpro agreements have been discussed in detail with
24   parties in Utah and Wyoming and are outlined in the
25   settlement stipulation.
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 1             One of the primary concerns for this in the
 2   previous acquisition is the volume or percentage of the
 3   Questar Gas requirement that is provided by Wexpro.  As
 4   part of the stipulation, Questar and Wexpro will
 5   continue to manage the combined cost of service
 6   production volume to 65 percent through 2019, but will
 7   limit the -- but will be limited to 55 percent
 8   beginning in the 2020 IRP year.
 9             By managing to a specific volume target,
10   Questar and Wexpro will be able to determine the pace
11   of future drilling.  The Division has reviewed the
12   Company's analysis and recommends that the Canyon Creek
13   acquisition be included under the Wexpro II agreement.
14             Approval of the Canyon Creek acquisition as a
15   Wexpro II property represents the purchase of a
16   long-term resource that could be advantageous to
17   ratepayers for many years.  The Division also supports
18   the proposed changes to the Wexpro agreements as
19   outlined.  The Division believes that the terms of the
20   stipulation agreement are just and reasonable and are
21   in the public interest.  That concludes my summary.
22             MS. SCHMID:  Mr. Wheelwright is now available
23   for questions.  And before, however, you leave the
24   Division, I would like to move for the admission of one
25   additional exhibit.
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 1             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.
 2             MS. SCHMID:  In his summary, Mr. Wheelwright
 3   referenced a report from David Evans, the hydrocarbon
 4   monitor.  That report was dated September 10, 2015, and
 5   filed with the Commission on September 14th as a highly
 6   confidential document.  The Division would like to move
 7   for the admission of that report.
 8             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Any objection?
 9             MS. LARKIN BELL:  No objection.
10             MR. OLSEN:  No objection.
11             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  That will be entered.  Thank
12   you.
13             MS. SCHMID:  Thank you.
14             (The report was received.)
15             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Anything further from the
16   Division?
17             MS. SCHMID:  Nothing further.
18             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Then we'll move on to the
19   Office and come back to all witnesses for questions
20   afterwards.
21             Mr. Olsen?
22             MR. OLSEN:  Thank you.  The Division would
23   like to call --
24             MS. SCHMID:  Office --
25             MR. OLSEN:  Office.  Excuse me.
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 1                           --oOo--
 2                      GAVIN MANGELSON,
 3        having been first duly sworn to tell the
 4        truth, was examined and testified as follows:
 5                         EXAMINATION
 6   BY MR. OLSEN:
 7        Q.   Could you for the record state your name and
 8   your position with the Office, please?
 9        A.   Gavin Mangelson, a utility analyst.
10        Q.   During the course of -- did you participate
11   in the review of the proposal from Questar Gas that's
12   under consideration right now?
13        A.   Yes.
14        Q.   And as part of that, did you prepare
15   testimony, direct testimony, on October 8, 2015?
16        A.   Yes.
17        Q.   Do you have any -- any summary you'd like to
18   present at this time?
19        A.   I do.
20        Q.   Proceed, please.
21        A.   The Office reviewed the Company's
22   application, the report from the hydrocarbon monitor,
23   and the Company's response to numerous discovery
24   requests.  We filed direct testimony raising certain
25   concerns about the Company to include the Canyon Creek
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 1   acquisition under the Wexpro II agreement.
 2             During the drafting of this stipulation, the
 3   Office and others focused on crafting an agreement that
 4   would be durable and benefit and protect ratepayers for
 5   as long as natural gas is being extracted and provided
 6   under this agreement and not just for the foreseeable
 7   future.
 8             Some of the specific provisions in this
 9   settlement that are important to the Office include
10   maintaining the advantageous provisions of the Trail 2
11   stipulation that I identified in my direct testimony,
12   more adequately defining the five-year forward price
13   curve definition and the calculation of shared savings,
14   resolving concerns identified in my direct testimony,
15   and moving from managing Wexpro to a maximum of
16   65 percent of the IRP forecast demand to 55 percent in
17   2020.
18             I'd like to speak more specifically to the
19   change in management of gas supply.  I noted in my
20   direct testimony that according to confidential
21   Exhibits M and M-1, cost of service gas supply as a
22   percentage of total gas supply is not expected to be
23   near the historically high levels.
24             However, an updated version of Exhibit M-1
25   had been provided in response to a data request from
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 1   the Division of Public Utilities.  This updated exhibit
 2   demonstrates that new drilling across all existing
 3   properties will increase the cost of service gas
 4   supplies -- supply to levels higher than those cited in
 5   my testimony.
 6             Therefore, the Office's earlier concerns
 7   about the high total percentage of Wexpro gas supplies
 8   remain at issue in this case.  The settlement
 9   stipulation terms adequately address the Office's
10   concerns.
11             The Office is confident that the proposed
12   sharing of costs and savings as defined in the
13   settlement stipulation will more closely align the
14   operating incentives to Wexpro with what will be most
15   beneficial to ratepayers.
16             In summary, the Office believes that adding
17   the Canyon Creek acquisition to the Wexpro II
18   agreement, coupled with the other provisions of the
19   stipulation, is in the public interest and will result
20   in just and reasonable rates.  Accordingly, the Office
21   respectfully requests that the Commission approve this
22   stipulation.
23        Q.   Mr. Mangelson, subject to the clarifications
24   you've just provided in your sworn summary, would
25   you -- and with the modifications inherent therein,
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 1   would you affirm the voracity of your prior testimony?
 2        A.   Yes, with the -- yeah.
 3        Q.   On October 8th?
 4        A.   Yes, in light of the issues that I've
 5   addressed in my statement.
 6             MR. OLSEN:  And with that caveat -- with that
 7   understanding, Your Honor, we'd like to submit the
 8   testimony.
 9             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Any objections?
10             MS. LARKIN BELL:  No objection.
11             MS. SCHMID:  No objection.
12             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  They will be entered.
13             (The testimony was received.)
14             MR. OLSEN:  Mr. Mangelson has nothing further
15   so --
16             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you.
17             Commissioner White, do you have any questions
18   for any of the witnesses?
19             MR. WHITE:  Just a couple.  This is -- I'll
20   direct this initially to Mr. McKay, but some of these
21   may be convenient for others to opine on.  The first
22   one refers to paragraph 4 of the settlement stipulation
23   with the closing price referenced of 52.7 million.
24             My question is is this the -- is this price
25   the final price, or is there any potential change
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 1   beyond that, date of acquisition?
 2             MR. McKAY:  That would not be the final
 3   price.  I would refer this to an exhibit that helps to
 4   walk through what would be closer to the final price.
 5   And then I'm going to pitch things to Mr. Rasmussen
 6   because it's in his testimony.
 7             But if you'll turn to his Exhibit 2.2, I
 8   recognize that we're now going to confidential -- in a
 9   confidential exhibit, but I think we can have a
10   discussion around this without bringing out the
11   specific confidentiality points.  It is public
12   knowledge that it's 52.7, and that's what you're seeing
13   there in testimony.
14             As you look at this exhibit, you can see that
15   it needs to be adjusted for some revenue and O&M
16   adjustments that happened at closing, and then also it
17   needs to be adjusted for the dekatherms or, shall we
18   say, the depreciation and depletion that has occurred
19   since Wexpro has taken ownership.
20             So we've tried to illustrate that in line 5,
21   which shows the depreciation amount up to the time that
22   we filed.  We estimated some -- the -- what the
23   depreciation would be from August, September, and
24   October.
25             And we now recognize that we're into
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 1   November.  So we would need to -- I don't know if
 2   that -- I don't want to be bold -- I'll just -- the
 3   assumption is this, that if the property were approved,
 4   and let's say it went into effect on December 1, there
 5   would need to be at least one more month's worth of
 6   depreciation taken into fact and would impact what
 7   those final numbers would be.
 8             And also recognize that these were estimates
 9   that were provided on what we thought the closing
10   between the previous owner and ending up with the
11   balancing of whether they were in balance or out of
12   balance.  So those numbers also would be updated for
13   actual.
14             Then that's the dollar amount that you're
15   seeing there on line 10.  We're pointing out that that
16   dollar amount would change, but it would be a reduced
17   amount from that that would then go on Wexpro's books
18   as the Canyon Creek Wexpro II property.
19             MR. WHITE:  Thank you.  That's helpful.
20             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Nothing else from you?
21             MR. WHITE:  Just a couple more, sorry.
22             Then on paragraph 13, this one might be
23   appropriate for other parties to opine also, but in
24   paragraphs 13 and 14, it refers to wording that states
25   at the time Wexpro incurs obligation in connection with
0044
 1   the drilling program.
 2             I guess my question is there a common
 3   understanding -- I mean, is that a term of art that
 4   incurs obligation, or is there common understanding
 5   among the parties of what that would -- would entail or
 6   mean?
 7             MR. McKAY:  I would think that we absolutely
 8   talked about that.  So we tried to word this to
 9   recognize that Wexpro can have an estimate of what
10   might happen, and it can be out there looking in a
11   field with a heavy drilling plan.
12             And they say, Hey, let's -- we're going to
13   drill this many wells.  We think this is what the costs
14   are going to be.  Now we need to have a drilling rig,
15   and we need to be getting everything in line to be able
16   to say, Yeah, let's go ahead and do this, assuming that
17   we can meet the criteria.
18             They're going to go through all of that
19   process.  Then they're going to come to a point where
20   they now are committing dollars.  They're committing
21   things that they will be doing going into the future.
22   That's where we're saying "incur an obligation."
23             We recognize that typically happens during
24   their fall planning season, and then those rigs are
25   going to be up and drilling come next spring.  But we
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 1   also on the second part of that paragraph try to
 2   identify that maybe some other opportunities come up.
 3   They have an opportunity to go in with another partner
 4   on some wells.  So it might not always be at that time.
 5             But the key thing is when they incur and are
 6   now committed to where they're going to be paying out
 7   dollars for that obligation is what the intent of that
 8   would be, but I'll let others weigh in on it.
 9             MR. WHEELWRIGHT:  We did participate in those
10   discussions, and that's in agreement with what we
11   understood, that at some point Wexpro will need to make
12   a decision and commit some resources, recognize that
13   this will be a forecast.
14             They're looking at future prices and -- but
15   at some point they do need to make a commitment to the
16   drilling rig.  That's what we understood would be the
17   point where they would make a commitment for -- for
18   future activity.
19             MR. MANGELSON:  This paragraph is part of the
20   Office's concern about better definition for the
21   five-year forward curve.  Previously it was explained
22   that they would have to beat the five-year forward
23   curve, but we wanted to understand at what moment in
24   time those numbers needed to match.
25             And the Company explained that they might
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 1   determine that they had -- that they could match those
 2   numbers at or better than the five-year curve, but then
 3   they would need to make the agreements to have the
 4   appropriate equipment, and the prices would change
 5   after that.  So this is just designed to be a
 6   clarification.
 7             MR. WHITE:  Thank you.
 8             MR. McKAY:  Just for illustration -- okay,
 9   hasn't happened yet.  Going forward, this is something
10   that will be produced.  There will be some day on this
11   graph that you'll be able to put a circle around that
12   point on that orange line that contractually Wexpro is
13   obligated for a drilling rig things going forward.
14             That's what would need to be produced by
15   Wexpro to show that they had met the criteria that the
16   Office and the Division had been concerned about we
17   wanted to have clarity on.
18             MR. WHITE:  That actually is helpful.  It
19   sounds like it's more specifically defined as a
20   contractual obligation that's incurred with them?
21             MR. OLSEN:  For the record, perhaps, he was
22   holding up a document that I think we need just to
23   identify for the record.
24             MR. WHITE:  Is that Exhibit --
25             MR. McKAY:  This is Stipulation Exhibit --
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 1   well, Settlement Stipulation Exhibit 1.  I'm sorry.
 2   That's a good point.
 3             MR. WHITE:  Thanks.
 4             The last question I have is also with respect
 5   to paragraph 13, the discussion of potential more
 6   frequent than annual drilling programs.  Is there -- I
 7   mean, is there potentially an example of, you know,
 8   when that might occur, what those circumstances would
 9   be around, more frequent?
10             MS. LARKIN BELL:  Commissioner White, that
11   may be a good question for Mr. Brady Rasmussen.
12   Mr. Rasmussen has not yet been sworn.  Shall we have
13   him sworn and, perhaps, he can answer that question?
14             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Sure.
15                           --oOo--
16                      BRADY RASMUSSEN,
17        having been first duly sworn to tell the
18        truth, testified as follows:
19                           --oOo--
20             MR. RASMUSSEN:  As Barrie said, we typically
21   format our drilling program in the fall, but with a
22   smaller drilling program that might be likely here
23   with -- with lower prices.  And we're also -- we may
24   have to look at that more frequently, do a smaller
25   program.
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 1             Typically in the past, we could go --
 2   contract out a rig for a year straight.  We may not be
 3   doing that in view of our inventory of properties out
 4   there.  We might have to focus on one field at a time.
 5             It might make that drilling commitment
 6   smaller from time to time.  You could have, you know,
 7   multiple times in the year where you'd actually have a
 8   rig contracted out for one portion of the first half of
 9   the year, a separate rig, if you got to that point, you
10   could still beat that hurdle for the second half.
11             Also, you're dealing with recompletions where
12   the rig commitment not -- is very short.  We would have
13   to still meet these obligations on a contract
14   obligation on a recompletion well.  It might just be
15   one or two wells at a time.
16             And also on any outside operated wells that
17   we are not the driller out there, we would be -- once
18   we commit to drilling that well, we are -- we're kind
19   of following their plans of the drilling program.  We
20   still have to meet these obligations, but we're kind of
21   at the disposal of when that's proposed to us.
22             MR. WHITE:  Thank you.  I have -- I have no
23   further questions.
24             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Thank you, Commissioner
25   Clark?
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 1             MR. CLARK:  Thanks, Chair LeVar.  I've got a
 2   question about paragraph 13 also.  As you look at the
 3   drilling program in relation to the five-year forward
 4   price curve, how do you consider G&A costs in that
 5   evaluation?  Are you looking at incremental costs?  Are
 6   you looking at previously allocated cost?
 7             MR. RASMUSSEN:  Yes.  On G&A on the drilling
 8   decision, we are looking at incremental costs on there.
 9   We do -- we are -- you know, which has a combination of
10   Wexpro direct costs, corporate allocated costs, and the
11   changes in that with the addition -- additional
12   investment.  And we're only capturing the true
13   incremental costs to that drilling program that will be
14   calculated on that.
15             MR. CLARK:  Thank you.  Now to
16   paragraph 18(a).  There's a reference there to the
17   interstate pipeline.  Is that Northwest Pipeline?  Is
18   it more or less than that?  What -- help me in defining
19   that term.
20             MR. McKAY:  We left it so that it could be
21   any interstate pipeline.  But the key thing is that
22   it's at that point that it's transferring from a
23   gathering facility or a tail plant or a processing
24   facility.
25             It's those volumes at that point that we're
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 1   trying to identify there and not a summary of volumes
 2   upstream from there.  And the purpose for that is we
 3   want them to be able to be comparable to where we
 4   typically, Questar Gas, are purchasing other gas, which
 5   is into the interstate pipeline.
 6             MR. CLARK:  Does Questar deliver volumes
 7   upstream of the pipeline?
 8             MR. McKAY:  Now Questar?  You mean does
 9   Wexpro deliver volumes?  They do from their wells
10   depending on how things are gathered, okay?  We,
11   Questar Gas, need to take responsibility of how we're
12   going to be getting those volumes to the interstate
13   pipeline.
14             Sometimes we're getting those volumes at the
15   tailgate of a Vermillion plant that Wexpro is a joint
16   owner in, and that's right when it's going into an
17   interstate pipeline.
18             Other times we're getting them upstream, and
19   we need to have gathering -- we have gathering from a
20   systemwide gathering agreement that we've had now with
21   Tesoro.  We also have other contracts with other
22   gathering providers.
23             All of those, whatever volumes or dekatherms
24   might be used in the transportation on the gathering or
25   in the processing need to be removed out.  That's why
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 1   we're wanting to have it specifically be the volumes of
 2   when it goes into the interstate pipeline.
 3             MR. CLARK:  So -- so you're confident you can
 4   capture that discrete value?
 5             THE WITNESS:  That's a good -- good point.
 6   Let's be very forthright in that as we've tried to
 7   calculate that -- those numbers going back in the past,
 8   let's say the past 30 years here, we had not summarized
 9   those numbers or kept track specifically of what those
10   volumes were in the past.
11             We can.  On the record, we'll say this out
12   loud, we can calculate on an actual basis today and
13   going forward the volumes that are related to cost of
14   service gas at the -- what's going into the pipeline,
15   interstate pipeline.  So we're going to be able to
16   consistently have that information going forward.
17             We're still in the process of trying to
18   verify and calculate what they actually were in the
19   past.  We think we have a pretty good estimate that we
20   provided to the Division and the Commission,
21   specifically in our IRP variance report.
22             We'll continue to do that.  And if we can get
23   more accurate information, we'll provide that at the
24   time we have verified actual numbers.  But going
25   forward, we're confident that we'll be able to do that.
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 1             MR. CLARK:  Be able to and you intend to?
 2             MR. McKAY:  Yes, by the intent of this
 3   stipulation, which I think the parties wanted to see,
 4   also.  Yes, we do intend to.
 5             MR. CLARK:  Okay.  Now in reference to
 6   paragraph 21, just a procedural matter.  I think it's
 7   very useful that these reference documents are going to
 8   be available in -- as they've been described here.
 9             Is any of this information confidential?  For
10   example, confidential information in guideline letters?
11   And, if so, how do you intend to address that?
12             MR. McKAY:  It's recognized that in the past,
13   we had provided guideline letters under the umbrella of
14   them all being confidential.  Through our process of
15   analysis and discussion and coming up with this
16   stipulation, we, Company and Wexpro, have taken a more
17   specific and careful review of all of those guideline
18   letters and feel that they will be able to be provided
19   without them needing to be confidential.
20             And so at this moment, our anticipation is
21   that they will be able to be provided there.  We did
22   reference this in our discussion and thought that if,
23   in fact, there were something, we can't promise things
24   on future guideline letters, for example, that we would
25   simply be providing that document in a redacted form on
0053
 1   that website so that they'd be able to see everything
 2   else they could.
 3             But, again, we would want to be able to have
 4   the reference for that guideline letter out there and
 5   people be able to see that it existed.  Right now it's
 6   anticipated that they would not be confidential.
 7             MR. CLARK:  And then regarding the -- the
 8   availability of information about the actual cost of
 9   the Wexpro gas, I think you addressed this toward the
10   end of your summary, Mr. McKay, but could you review
11   again what's the -- what's the Company's intent -- if
12   you need to consult, I'm happy to -- is there an
13   understanding among the parties or does the Company
14   have an intent regarding when and how and what
15   intervals that information would be provided?
16             I think this was addressed at a technical
17   conference recently, and -- and I'm interested in
18   whether you're looking for direction from the
19   Commission on that in this order?
20             MR. McKAY:  Sure.  To respond to that, I
21   think it would be best if we were to return -- not
22   return.  Let's turn to my exhibit, and that's
23   Exhibit 1.3.  And for illustrative purposes, you don't
24   have to, but this was an updated exhibit, so you can
25   turn to Exhibit 1.3 updated, or if you have the
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 1   other -- if you don't have that, I think the point I'm
 2   going to make can be illustrated off of the original
 3   1.3.
 4             But what I want to point out in this exhibit,
 5   it's a two-page exhibit, and the first page is the
 6   calculation that shows the cost of service price, which
 7   is I think what your question is referring to.  We're
 8   also showing what the purchase price is.
 9             So the reason I wanted us to turn here is
10   that we, Questar Gas, are calculating this cost of
11   service price using into-the-pipe volumes on a monthly
12   basis.  When I say "monthly," I want to make sure that
13   that's understood that you need to calculate a cost of
14   service price using 12 months' worth of data.  So it's
15   a 12-month moving total if you will.
16             We calculate that every month.  We intend and
17   have been providing that information in our quarterly
18   reports in the IRP.  And we would assume that that
19   would be something we would continue to do with the
20   backup behind those calculations.
21             If the Commission desired it more often than
22   that, we also could do that.  Right now that seems like
23   a good standard to continue to have going forward.  And
24   all parties will be able to weigh in and look at it and
25   view it.
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 1             MR. CLARK:  So quarterly in the IRP with
 2   supporting documents?
 3             MR. McKAY:  Yes.
 4             MR. CLARK:  Thank you.  That's helpful.
 5   That's all my questions --
 6             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you.
 7             MR. CLARK:  -- Chair LeVar.
 8             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  I was just wondering in
 9   paragraph 17, the stipulation, if there was a minor
10   typographical error on the second line.  Should there
11   be the word "well" before the word "costs" on the
12   second line of paragraph 17?
13             MS. SCHMID:  Yes.  Yes.
14             MR. McKAY:  We would feel pretty comfortable
15   if that were to be added there.
16             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  That term is defined in the
17   Wexpro I and II agreements?
18             MR. McKAY:  It is.  You could say dry hole
19   cost or non-commercial costs, but it is specifically.
20   I think that's the point here is it's associated with
21   wells.  So I don't know if that it would be incorrect
22   if people -- but that is the intent.
23             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Thank you.  My only other
24   question is when is this stipulation scheduled to be
25   considered by the Wyoming Commission?
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 1             MS. LARKIN BELL:  November 18th.
 2             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you.  I think
 3   that's all from us then.  Anything further from any
 4   party?
 5             MS. SCHMID:  Nothing further from the
 6   Division.
 7             MR. OLSEN:  We have nothing further.
 8             MS. LARKIN BELL:  Nothing further.
 9             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  We are adjourned.  Thank
10   you.
11             (The proceedings concluded at 10:12.)
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		96						LN		4		2		false		           2                           --oOo--				false

		97						LN		4		3		false		           3             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Good morning.  We're on the				false

		98						LN		4		4		false		           4   record.  We are here for the hearing in the Matter of				false

		99						LN		4		5		false		           5   the Application of Questar Gas Company for Approval of				false

		100						LN		4		6		false		           6   the Canyon Creek Acquisition as a Wexpro II Property.				false

		101						LN		4		7		false		           7             And we're here to consider approval of the				false

		102						LN		4		8		false		           8   settlement stipulation that was filed in this matter.				false

		103						LN		4		9		false		           9   We'll start with appearances.  So, of course, for the				false

		104						LN		4		10		false		          10   Utility?				false

		105						LN		4		11		false		          11             MS. LARKIN BELL:  Colleen Larkin Bell for				false

		106						LN		4		12		false		          12   Questar Gas Company.				false

		107						LN		4		13		false		          13             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you.				false

		108						LN		4		14		false		          14             MS. SCHMID:  Patricia E. Schmid with the				false

		109						LN		4		15		false		          15   Attorney General's Office for the Division of Public				false

		110						LN		4		16		false		          16   Utilities.				false

		111						LN		4		17		false		          17             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Thank you.				false

		112						LN		4		18		false		          18             MR. OLSEN:  Rex Olsen with the Office of				false

		113						LN		4		19		false		          19   Consumer Services.				false

		114						LN		4		20		false		          20             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you.  Are there				false

		115						LN		4		21		false		          21   any other preliminary matters before we move forward?				false

		116						LN		4		22		false		          22             MS. LARKIN BELL:  Just a quick question on				false

		117						LN		4		23		false		          23   how you would like us to move for admission of our				false

		118						LN		4		24		false		          24   exhibits.  In the case of the Company, we've provided				false

		119						LN		4		25		false		          25   an exhibit list and a binder with all of the attached				false

		120						PG		5		0		false		page 5				false

		121						LN		5		1		false		           1   exhibits.				false

		122						LN		5		2		false		           2             The court reporter has one.  And if we could				false

		123						LN		5		3		false		           3   move for the admission of those exhibits as indicated				false

		124						LN		5		4		false		           4   on the list, that's fine, or if you want to read				false

		125						LN		5		5		false		           5   everything into the record, we can do that.  Just a				false

		126						LN		5		6		false		           6   preliminary question.				false

		127						LN		5		7		false		           7             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Is there any				false

		128						LN		5		8		false		           8   objection to them being entered as the list without				false

		129						LN		5		9		false		           9   reading each one individually.				false

		130						LN		5		10		false		          10             MR. OLSEN:  We have no objection.				false

		131						LN		5		11		false		          11             MS. SCHMID:  No objection.  And the Division				false

		132						LN		5		12		false		          12   would like to do the same with its list if permitted.				false

		133						LN		5		13		false		          13             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Certainly.				false

		134						LN		5		14		false		          14             MS. LARKIN BELL:  Okay.  With that, if you				false

		135						LN		5		15		false		          15   want to start with the exhibits.  The Company would				false

		136						LN		5		16		false		          16   move for the admission of its exhibits, with the				false

		137						LN		5		17		false		          17   exception of one, and that is a separate handout that				false

		138						LN		5		18		false		          18   we have handed out both to the court reporter, the				false

		139						LN		5		19		false		          19   other parties, and the commissioners.				false

		140						LN		5		20		false		          20             And we have marked this one as QGC Hearing				false

		141						LN		5		21		false		          21   Exhibit 6.0.  It's very similar to Mr. Barrie L.				false

		142						LN		5		22		false		          22   McKay's testimony exhibit, with the exception that we				false

		143						LN		5		23		false		          23   have added a column to indicate what the proposed				false

		144						LN		5		24		false		          24   changes are as agreed to in the stipulation agreement.				false

		145						LN		5		25		false		          25             And I don't want to move for the admission of				false

		146						PG		6		0		false		page 6				false

		147						LN		6		1		false		           1   that now.  The parties have just now gotten a copy of				false

		148						LN		6		2		false		           2   that.  I think what I will ask is after Mr. McKay				false

		149						LN		6		3		false		           3   provides testimony in support of the stipulation, we				false

		150						LN		6		4		false		           4   would move for admission of that hearing exhibit at				false

		151						LN		6		5		false		           5   that time.				false

		152						LN		6		6		false		           6             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.				false

		153						LN		6		7		false		           7             MS. LARKIN BELL:  If that works.				false

		154						LN		6		8		false		           8             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Any objection to admitting				false

		155						LN		6		9		false		           9   all of the exhibits as described with this one				false

		156						LN		6		10		false		          10   exception at this point?				false

		157						LN		6		11		false		          11             MS. SCHMID:  No.				false

		158						LN		6		12		false		          12             MR. OLSEN:  No objection.				false

		159						LN		6		13		false		          13             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  They'll be admitted.				false

		160						LN		6		14		false		          14   Thank you.				false

		161						LN		6		15		false		          15             (Exhibits were admitted.)				false

		162						LN		6		16		false		          16             MS. LARKIN BELL:  With that, I would like to				false

		163						LN		6		17		false		          17   call Mr. Barrie L. McKay as our witness who will				false

		164						LN		6		18		false		          18   support our settlement stipulation in this matter.				false

		165						LN		6		19		false		          19                           --oOo--				false

		166						LN		6		20		false		          20                      BARRIE L. MCKAY,				false

		167						LN		6		21		false		          21        having been first duly sworn to tell the				false

		168						LN		6		22		false		          22        truth, was examined and testified as follows:				false

		169						LN		6		23		false		          23                           --oOo--				false

		170						LN		6		24		false		          24             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you.				false

		171						LN		6		25		false		          25             MS. LARKIN BELL:  Would it be all right for				false

		172						PG		7		0		false		page 7				false

		173						LN		7		1		false		           1   Mr. McKay to stay here, or would you --				false

		174						LN		7		2		false		           2             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Oh, yes.  Absolutely.				false

		175						LN		7		3		false		           3   That's fine.				false

		176						LN		7		4		false		           4             MS. LARKIN BELL:  Okay.				false

		177						LN		7		5		false		           5             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  I think is there any				false

		178						LN		7		6		false		           6   objection if we can just go to all the witnesses, and				false

		179						LN		7		7		false		           7   then if there's any question from the bench, we save				false

		180						LN		7		8		false		           8   them until the end?  Any objection to moving forward				false

		181						LN		7		9		false		           9   that way?				false

		182						LN		7		10		false		          10             MS. SCHMID:  No objection.				false

		183						LN		7		11		false		          11             MR. OLSEN:  No objection, Your Honor.				false

		184						LN		7		12		false		          12             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Thank you.				false

		185						LN		7		13		false		          13                         EXAMINATION				false

		186						LN		7		14		false		          14   BY MS. LARKIN BELL:				false

		187						LN		7		15		false		          15        Q.   Mr. McKay, please state your name and -- name				false

		188						LN		7		16		false		          16   for the record.				false

		189						LN		7		17		false		          17        A.   Barrie L. McKay.				false

		190						LN		7		18		false		          18        Q.   And by whom are you employed?				false

		191						LN		7		19		false		          19        A.   Questar Gas Company.				false

		192						LN		7		20		false		          20        Q.   What is your title, your place of employment?				false

		193						LN		7		21		false		          21        A.   I'm vice president of regulatory affairs and				false

		194						LN		7		22		false		          22   energy efficiency.				false

		195						LN		7		23		false		          23        Q.   And did you file direct testimony in this				false

		196						LN		7		24		false		          24   proceeding consisting of nine pages and pre-marked as				false

		197						LN		7		25		false		          25   QGC Exhibit 1.0, with attached Exhibits 1.1 through 1.3				false

		198						PG		8		0		false		page 8				false

		199						LN		8		1		false		           1   on August 31, 2015?				false

		200						LN		8		2		false		           2        A.   Yes I did.				false

		201						LN		8		3		false		           3        Q.   And if I were to ask you the same questions				false

		202						LN		8		4		false		           4   today that were asked in your pre-filed direct				false

		203						LN		8		5		false		           5   testimony, would your answers be the same?				false

		204						LN		8		6		false		           6        A.   Yes.				false

		205						LN		8		7		false		           7        Q.   Are you prepared today to summarize for the				false

		206						LN		8		8		false		           8   commission the settlement stipulation that was filed in				false

		207						LN		8		9		false		           9   this matter?				false

		208						LN		8		10		false		          10        A.   Yes, I am.				false

		209						LN		8		11		false		          11        Q.   Go ahead.				false

		210						LN		8		12		false		          12        A.   We have been -- I guess I wouldn't mind at				false

		211						LN		8		13		false		          13   this point pointing out this hearing exhibit that is				false

		212						LN		8		14		false		          14   essentially Exhibit 1.II, but was -- my counsel has				false

		213						LN		8		15		false		          15   already pointed we have added an additional column.				false

		214						LN		8		16		false		          16             In our preparation for summary today, we				false

		215						LN		8		17		false		          17   thought it would be a useful tool as we walk through				false

		216						LN		8		18		false		          18   the stipulation itself.  So with that said, I'm going				false

		217						LN		8		19		false		          19   to probably be referring to the stipulation pages, as				false

		218						LN		8		20		false		          20   well as this summary and try to kind of tie those				false

		219						LN		8		21		false		          21   together.  I know we planned to have questions at the				false

		220						LN		8		22		false		          22   end, but if there's anything I'm saying along the way				false

		221						LN		8		23		false		          23   that there's questions about, feel free to --				false

		222						LN		8		24		false		          24             MS. LARKIN BELL:  Additionally, one other				false

		223						LN		8		25		false		          25   comment, if the Commission has any questions with				false

		224						PG		9		0		false		page 9				false

		225						LN		9		1		false		           1   regard to confidential exhibits, we are prepared to				false

		226						LN		9		2		false		           2   discuss those with you today.				false

		227						LN		9		3		false		           3             But we would ask at that time that we request				false

		228						LN		9		4		false		           4   that the hearing be closed to the public, given that we				false

		229						LN		9		5		false		           5   do not believe that the settlement stipulation is				false

		230						LN		9		6		false		           6   confidential or that Barrie's testimony with regard to				false

		231						LN		9		7		false		           7   it will be confidential.				false

		232						LN		9		8		false		           8             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you.  If that				false

		233						LN		9		9		false		           9   issue arises, we'll deal with it.				false

		234						LN		9		10		false		          10             THE WITNESS:  Okay.  First page of the				false

		235						LN		9		11		false		          11   stipulation is simply in summary form.  I think the				false

		236						LN		9		12		false		          12   recognition that the Questar Gas Company, as well as				false

		237						LN		9		13		false		          13   Wexpro, Division of Public Utilities, Utah Office of				false

		238						LN		9		14		false		          14   Consumer Services, and Wyoming Office of Consumer				false

		239						LN		9		15		false		          15   Advocates were the parties that signed this				false

		240						LN		9		16		false		          16   stipulation.				false

		241						LN		9		17		false		          17             The key takeaway on that first page is the				false

		242						LN		9		18		false		          18   recognition that both the Utah and the Wyoming				false

		243						LN		9		19		false		          19   Commission need to approve the stipulation in order for				false

		244						LN		9		20		false		          20   it to become effective.				false

		245						LN		9		21		false		          21             The pages 2 and 3 I think simply are				false

		246						LN		9		22		false		          22   procedural history summary, recognizing that we have a				false

		247						LN		9		23		false		          23   Wexpro II agreement, which is why we brought the				false

		248						LN		9		24		false		          24   property in the first place.				false

		249						LN		9		25		false		          25             Paragraph 2 is recognition of the Trail 2				false

		250						PG		10		0		false		page 10				false

		251						LN		10		1		false		           1   stipulation.  Key reason why that needs to be pointed				false

		252						LN		10		2		false		           2   out I think in our procedural history is that there was				false

		253						LN		10		3		false		           3   a settlement in that docket that both Wyoming and Utah				false

		254						LN		10		4		false		           4   approved that helped to govern the Wexpro property				false

		255						LN		10		5		false		           5   going into the future.  And that the -- this				false

		256						LN		10		6		false		           6   application, the Canyon Creek application, complied				false

		257						LN		10		7		false		           7   with what was required there.				false

		258						LN		10		8		false		           8             Wexpro did indeed purchase this property at				false

		259						LN		10		9		false		           9   its own risk.  And they are required, since this				false

		260						LN		10		10		false		          10   property is within the development drilling area, to				false

		261						LN		10		11		false		          11   bring that before the Utah and Wyoming Commissions.				false

		262						LN		10		12		false		          12             It does complete specifically -- when I say				false

		263						LN		10		13		false		          13   "complete," it makes it so that Wexpro now owns -- has				false

		264						LN		10		14		false		          14   100 percent ownership in the Canyon Creek area.				false

		265						LN		10		15		false		          15   Previous to that, we had 70 percent.  It was being				false

		266						LN		10		16		false		          16   provided to Questar Gas as a cost of the service, and				false

		267						LN		10		17		false		          17   this additional 30 percent, it has full ownership now.				false

		268						LN		10		18		false		          18             As required, they also have -- we, Questar				false

		269						LN		10		19		false		          19   Gas, filed with a complete -- complete requirements of				false

		270						LN		10		20		false		          20   the Wexpro II agreement, which is all of the data				false

		271						LN		10		21		false		          21   identified in the Exhibits A through P.  Following our				false

		272						LN		10		22		false		          22   application, the hydrocarbon monitor, according to what				false

		273						LN		10		23		false		          23   was laid out in the Wexpro II agreement, filed his				false

		274						LN		10		24		false		          24   report within the seven business days, both in Utah and				false

		275						LN		10		25		false		          25   in Wyoming.  I think that will become part of the				false

		276						PG		11		0		false		page 11				false

		277						LN		11		1		false		           1   record also.				false

		278						LN		11		2		false		           2             Other takeaway is that in this process of				false

		279						LN		11		3		false		           3   coming to this stipulation, understanding was improved				false

		280						LN		11		4		false		           4   through the process of holding two technical				false

		281						LN		11		5		false		           5   conferences, one here in Utah on September 17th, as				false

		282						LN		11		6		false		           6   well as on October 8, there was a technical conference				false

		283						LN		11		7		false		           7   held in Wyoming.				false

		284						LN		11		8		false		           8             And ultimately the parties through numerous				false

		285						LN		11		9		false		           9   data requests and opportunity to sit down and walk				false

		286						LN		11		10		false		          10   through and better understand what was being proposed				false

		287						LN		11		11		false		          11   and the significant proposals I think that the parties				false

		288						LN		11		12		false		          12   have focused on have been the changes that accompanied				false

		289						LN		11		13		false		          13   this application.  And this hearing exhibit summary I				false

		290						LN		11		14		false		          14   think is a good way of walking through that.  So I'll				false

		291						LN		11		15		false		          15   refer back and forth to the actual stipulation itself,				false

		292						LN		11		16		false		          16   as well as this hearing exhibit.				false

		293						LN		11		17		false		          17             But the terms and conditions I think is where				false

		294						LN		11		18		false		          18   it really starts to be recognized of what we are				false

		295						LN		11		19		false		          19   agreeing to as settling parties.  In paragraph 12, it's				false

		296						LN		11		20		false		          20   simply recognition that the Canyon Creek acquisition				false

		297						LN		11		21		false		          21   will be approved and improved as a Wexpro II property				false

		298						LN		11		22		false		          22   and will function accordingly with the following				false

		299						LN		11		23		false		          23   additional agreements that have gone forth.				false

		300						LN		11		24		false		          24             And that is in paragraph 13, there's -- that				false

		301						LN		11		25		false		          25   specifically relates to line 1 of this hearing exhibit.				false

		302						PG		12		0		false		page 12				false

		303						LN		12		1		false		           1   The parties are essentially -- I would describe it as				false

		304						LN		12		2		false		           2   doing five things here within this paragraph.				false

		305						LN		12		3		false		           3   Number 1, we're recognizing that Wexpro is going to				false

		306						LN		12		4		false		           4   continue to be the one that designs their annual				false

		307						LN		12		5		false		           5   drilling program.				false

		308						LN		12		6		false		           6             Next part of that sentence, we're recognizing				false

		309						LN		12		7		false		           7   that a drilling program might not always happen in the				false

		310						LN		12		8		false		           8   fall, for example.  It might be a drilling program				false

		311						LN		12		9		false		           9   that's committed to or decided in the spring or some				false

		312						LN		12		10		false		          10   other time of year.  So we're trying to make it clear				false

		313						LN		12		11		false		          11   that that could happen at a different time of the year.				false

		314						LN		12		12		false		          12             And then the next part is that there is a				false

		315						LN		12		13		false		          13   moment in which Wexpro needs to commit or become				false

		316						LN		12		14		false		          14   obligated to a drilling rig.  So we're recognizing that				false

		317						LN		12		15		false		          15   at that point in time, couple of things have to be				false

		318						LN		12		16		false		          16   taking place.				false

		319						LN		12		17		false		          17             Number 1, the average of what they plan to go				false

		320						LN		12		18		false		          18   out and drill as far as their drilling plan.  And we				false

		321						LN		12		19		false		          19   define the average carefully as the first five years --				false

		322						LN		12		20		false		          20   the costs related to the first five years of				false

		323						LN		12		21		false		          21   production, divided by the production from that first				false

		324						LN		12		22		false		          22   five years' production.  That's going to come up and				false

		325						LN		12		23		false		          23   create a cost per dekatherm.  That cost per dekatherm				false

		326						LN		12		24		false		          24   needs to be at or below the five-year forward curve.				false

		327						LN		12		25		false		          25             Now, the five-year forward curve was a term				false

		328						PG		13		0		false		page 13				false

		329						LN		13		1		false		           1   that we agreed to in the Trail stipulation.  But it's				false

		330						LN		13		2		false		           2   something that we further defined here in the Canyon				false

		331						LN		13		3		false		           3   Creek stipulation to make sure everybody understood				false

		332						LN		13		4		false		           4   exactly what was meant by that and how Wexpro had been				false

		333						LN		13		5		false		           5   calculating it.				false

		334						LN		13		6		false		           6             So that moves us to paragraph 14, which is				false

		335						LN		13		7		false		           7   just further defining on this hearing exhibit our line				false

		336						LN		13		8		false		           8   number 1.  And that is the actual formula that makes up				false

		337						LN		13		9		false		           9   the five-year forward curve.				false

		338						LN		13		10		false		          10             And the best way I have found to do it, and I				false

		339						LN		13		11		false		          11   think that we put together a pretty good summary, I'm				false

		340						LN		13		12		false		          12   just going to turn to the exhibit -- stipulation				false

		341						LN		13		13		false		          13   Exhibit 1 in what we've put together with the				false

		342						LN		13		14		false		          14   stipulation.				false

		343						LN		13		15		false		          15             And in referring to that, the first part of				false

		344						LN		13		16		false		          16   the formula, which is A, which is identified as the				false

		345						LN		13		17		false		          17   NYMEX forward curve, and that shows up here on the				false

		346						LN		13		18		false		          18   stipulation Exhibit 1 as a blue line.  And that blue				false

		347						LN		13		19		false		          19   line shows 60 months' forecast and has the estimated				false

		348						LN		13		20		false		          20   price as of that date.				false

		349						LN		13		21		false		          21             And then the next part, B, which is the -- we				false

		350						LN		13		22		false		          22   recognize that we have a different price here in the				false

		351						LN		13		23		false		          23   Rockies, and so we have a basis difference that's				false

		352						LN		13		24		false		          24   identified as the next part of the formula.  And that				false

		353						LN		13		25		false		          25   part shows up as a red line on this stipulation				false

		354						PG		14		0		false		page 14				false

		355						LN		14		1		false		           1   exhibit.  And then these two need to be added together				false

		356						LN		14		2		false		           2   to come up with the Rockies adjusted price.  That shows				false

		357						LN		14		3		false		           3   up as the green line on this graph.				false

		358						LN		14		4		false		           4             And we recognize that that is five years'				false

		359						LN		14		5		false		           5   worth of forecasts.  Now, the next part is the creation				false

		360						LN		14		6		false		           6   of the component of the formula D, which is simply				false

		361						LN		14		7		false		           7   adding up 60 months' worth of forecast, so that would				false

		362						LN		14		8		false		           8   be that green line, and dividing it by 60 to come up				false

		363						LN		14		9		false		           9   with that day's average for the next 60 months.				false

		364						LN		14		10		false		          10             And to that, next thing we recognize -- and				false

		365						LN		14		11		false		          11   that is essentially the black line here on Exhibit 1.				false

		366						LN		14		12		false		          12   And you can see that there's some volatility in that				false

		367						LN		14		13		false		          13   black line.  Sometimes it jumps up, sometimes it goes				false

		368						LN		14		14		false		          14   down.				false

		369						LN		14		15		false		          15             And rather than have parties or Wexpro or				false

		370						LN		14		16		false		          16   whoever be looking at, I want to right this right at				false

		371						LN		14		17		false		          17   the low part or hit it at the high part, we then				false

		372						LN		14		18		false		          18   introduced the idea that we would smooth out this line				false

		373						LN		14		19		false		          19   by simply taking the latest 20 trading days and have --				false

		374						LN		14		20		false		          20   so we add up the latest 20, divide that by 20, and				false

		375						LN		14		21		false		          21   that's what you see as the orange line.  And that's our				false

		376						LN		14		22		false		          22   definition of the five-year forward curve.				false

		377						LN		14		23		false		          23             So a point on that line on the day that				false

		378						LN		14		24		false		          24   Wexpro commits to or is obligated to continue forward				false

		379						LN		14		25		false		          25   with their drilling plan is the number that needs to be				false

		380						PG		15		0		false		page 15				false

		381						LN		15		1		false		           1   compared with what the forecast is of the next five				false

		382						LN		15		2		false		           2   years of production.				false

		383						LN		15		3		false		           3             And essentially that helps to create or				false

		384						LN		15		4		false		           4   complete that comparison so that we know that that is a				false

		385						LN		15		5		false		           5   forecast.  It's forecast in the future.  It's comparing				false

		386						LN		15		6		false		           6   five years of forecasts that an outside third party is				false

		387						LN		15		7		false		           7   doing, comparing it with five years of forecasts for				false

		388						LN		15		8		false		           8   what Wexpro anticipates to be able to produce from a				false

		389						LN		15		9		false		           9   given drilling plan.				false

		390						LN		15		10		false		          10             That has to be at or below in order for				false

		391						LN		15		11		false		          11   Wexpro to move forward.  We like that as a good check				false

		392						LN		15		12		false		          12   to make sure that we're getting properties.  They're				false

		393						LN		15		13		false		          13   coming to Questar Gas that are going to be at or below				false

		394						LN		15		14		false		          14   that on a forecasted basis.  There's also some				false

		395						LN		15		15		false		          15   comparison later on that is also a good check, I think				false

		396						LN		15		16		false		          16   a good safety valve for our customers that we'll talk				false

		397						LN		15		17		false		          17   about later.				false

		398						LN		15		18		false		          18             The next paragraph in the stipulation is --				false

		399						LN		15		19		false		          19   actually, before I move to paragraph 15, let me make an				false

		400						LN		15		20		false		          20   observation is that the parties worked through this				false

		401						LN		15		21		false		          21   very carefully.  And this Exhibit 1 is a -- comes from				false

		402						LN		15		22		false		          22   a worksheet that goes through each day.  And each day				false

		403						LN		15		23		false		          23   that there's a trading day, it can be updated for one				false

		404						LN		15		24		false		          24   more day.  And Wexpro does that.  Company will be doing				false

		405						LN		15		25		false		          25   that.				false

		406						PG		16		0		false		page 16				false

		407						LN		16		1		false		           1             We're offering that as something -- we know				false

		408						LN		16		2		false		           2   we do a lot of reporting, and we didn't come with any				false

		409						LN		16		3		false		           3   decision exactly of when and how often.  We think it				false

		410						LN		16		4		false		           4   could be available at any time.  But we think it might				false

		411						LN		16		5		false		           5   be wise for Questar Gas to be providing that maybe on				false

		412						LN		16		6		false		           6   at least an annual basis.  Commission can take note of				false

		413						LN		16		7		false		           7   that.  And however they might feel comfortable, if				false

		414						LN		16		8		false		           8   that's something they want more often.				false

		415						LN		16		9		false		           9             But as you'll see here in a bit, we're going				false

		416						LN		16		10		false		          10   to be doing a calculation and an analysis on an annual				false

		417						LN		16		11		false		          11   basis.  That seemed at least an appropriate opportunity				false

		418						LN		16		12		false		          12   to be providing that to all the parties.  But it can be				false

		419						LN		16		13		false		          13   provided at other times during the year if the parties				false

		420						LN		16		14		false		          14   or the Commission wanted it.				false

		421						LN		16		15		false		          15             That moves us to photograph 15.  Paragraph 15				false

		422						LN		16		16		false		          16   specifically relates to line 4 here in this hearing				false

		423						LN		16		17		false		          17   exhibit, and that's the recognition that the property				false

		424						LN		16		18		false		          18   that has already been developed, it's referred to as				false

		425						LN		16		19		false		          19   pre-2016 oil and gas properties, there was -- developed				false

		426						LN		16		20		false		          20   under a previous set of guidelines and terms will be				false

		427						LN		16		21		false		          21   governed over the remaining life of that property, as				false

		428						LN		16		22		false		          22   was set forth in the Wexpro I and II agreements.				false

		429						LN		16		23		false		          23             That moves us to paragraph 16.  And that's				false

		430						LN		16		24		false		          24   the part where there begins to be some significant				false

		431						LN		16		25		false		          25   changes in these models going forward.  And that --				false

		432						PG		17		0		false		page 17				false

		433						LN		17		1		false		           1   where the parties agree that the post-2015 properties,				false

		434						LN		17		2		false		           2   and that's both oil and gas, as well as the allowance				false

		435						LN		17		3		false		           3   for funds used during construction, all of those under				false

		436						LN		17		4		false		           4   the Wexpro I or Wexpro II agreement had returns higher				false

		437						LN		17		5		false		           5   than what is now being proposed.  And what's being				false

		438						LN		17		6		false		           6   proposed is for the life of all of those properties				false

		439						LN		17		7		false		           7   going forward, they will be earning a Commission				false

		440						LN		17		8		false		           8   allowed rate of return as defined in the Wexpro II				false

		441						LN		17		9		false		           9   agreement.				false

		442						LN		17		10		false		          10             For just memory purposes, that's something				false

		443						LN		17		11		false		          11   that's weighted between -- Utah's usage in a given year				false

		444						LN		17		12		false		          12   and Wyoming's usage, and that's weighted based on what				false

		445						LN		17		13		false		          13   the Commissions have allowed as their most recent				false

		446						LN		17		14		false		          14   allowed rate of return.				false

		447						LN		17		15		false		          15             That moves us I think to paragraph 17.  And				false

		448						LN		17		16		false		          16   17 is doing three specific things.  And it relates to				false

		449						LN		17		17		false		          17   line 6 here in the hearing exhibit.  And as you can see				false

		450						LN		17		18		false		          18   here that the Company proposed just a 50/50 sharing.				false

		451						LN		17		19		false		          19   But as the -- we met with the parties, there was some				false

		452						LN		17		20		false		          20   concerns that we had worked through and have agreed				false

		453						LN		17		21		false		          21   upon.				false

		454						LN		17		22		false		          22             And that's, first of all, we did agree that				false

		455						LN		17		23		false		          23   on a going forward basis that when there's new drilling				false

		456						LN		17		24		false		          24   or development wells that there would be a sharing of				false

		457						LN		17		25		false		          25   the costs.  If, in fact, there happened to be dry hole				false

		458						PG		18		0		false		page 18				false

		459						LN		18		1		false		           1   cost, there would be a sharing of those costs 50/50.				false

		460						LN		18		2		false		           2             Now, we recognize in the next part of this				false

		461						LN		18		3		false		           3   paragraph that although in the definition in Wexpro I				false

		462						LN		18		4		false		           4   and Wexpro II, a dry hole cost is identified as being a				false

		463						LN		18		5		false		           5   plugged and abandoned well or a well that has not				false

		464						LN		18		6		false		           6   passed the commerciality test.  And that's defined as				false

		465						LN		18		7		false		           7   dry hole.				false

		466						LN		18		8		false		           8             We break it out here in this paragraph.  The				false

		467						LN		18		9		false		           9   reason we do is we recognize on those -- we're going to				false

		468						LN		18		10		false		          10   refer to them as non-commercial wells, they may still				false

		469						LN		18		11		false		          11   be produced if their costs, okay, are covered by the				false

		470						LN		18		12		false		          12   cash that could be received in selling the gas, okay?				false

		471						LN		18		13		false		          13             So it's not such a bad well that it should be				false

		472						LN		18		14		false		          14   plugged and abandoned, but you can actually cover your				false

		473						LN		18		15		false		          15   cash costs.  In that instance in this paragraph, you				false

		474						LN		18		16		false		          16   can see that the parties have agreed that the revenues				false

		475						LN		18		17		false		          17   and the related expenses from a non-commercial well				false

		476						LN		18		18		false		          18   will also be shared on a 50/50 basis.				false

		477						LN		18		19		false		          19             Additionally, the parties have agreed that				false

		478						LN		18		20		false		          20   there will be a cap on what this sharing would be for				false

		479						LN		18		21		false		          21   the customers.  And that cap is going to be limited to				false

		480						LN		18		22		false		          22   4.5 percent of Wexpro's annual developed drilling that				false

		481						LN		18		23		false		          23   the customer would be responsible for.  Now, there's				false

		482						LN		18		24		false		          24   also some additional parameters as it relates to dry				false

		483						LN		18		25		false		          25   hole that will come up here in paragraph 19, but I'm				false

		484						PG		19		0		false		page 19				false

		485						LN		19		1		false		           1   going to wait until we get there.				false

		486						LN		19		2		false		           2             So let's move to paragraph 18.  And 18 is				false

		487						LN		19		3		false		           3   dealing with line 7 here in the hearing exhibit.  It's				false

		488						LN		19		4		false		           4   where the Company had proposed that there would be an				false

		489						LN		19		5		false		           5   opportunity for sharing of savings that resulted from				false

		490						LN		19		6		false		           6   wells that would be drilled after 2015 if certain				false

		491						LN		19		7		false		           7   parameters had been met.				false

		492						LN		19		8		false		           8             And the biggest parameter is that the overall				false

		493						LN		19		9		false		           9   cost of service needed to be lower than the market				false

		494						LN		19		10		false		          10   price.  That sounds really good until you get into				false

		495						LN		19		11		false		          11   figuring out, okay, what does market price really				false

		496						LN		19		12		false		          12   represent here?  What all is included in the cost of				false

		497						LN		19		13		false		          13   service?				false

		498						LN		19		14		false		          14             And so we go through an effort in this				false

		499						LN		19		15		false		          15   paragraph 18 to try to define all of the components				false

		500						LN		19		16		false		          16   that would go into this calculation so that it's				false

		501						LN		19		17		false		          17   clearly understood what the intent was.  So				false

		502						LN		19		18		false		          18   paragraph 18(a) simply recognizes that we need to use				false

		503						LN		19		19		false		          19   the volumes that are going into the interstate				false

		504						LN		19		20		false		          20   pipeline.				false

		505						LN		19		21		false		          21             In the past, there have been some variances				false

		506						LN		19		22		false		          22   or differences in that, but we are clarifying that				false

		507						LN		19		23		false		          23   those are the volumes that are intended to be used in				false

		508						LN		19		24		false		          24   this calculation.  Paragraph B goes through the process				false

		509						LN		19		25		false		          25   of what needs to take place to determine what a market				false

		510						PG		20		0		false		page 20				false

		511						LN		20		1		false		           1   price is going to be.				false

		512						LN		20		2		false		           2             And I should identify here, too, that we're				false

		513						LN		20		3		false		           3   trying to identify what this market price is and this				false

		514						LN		20		4		false		           4   cost of service price is for an IRP year.  So we				false

		515						LN		20		5		false		           5   actually have an exhibit that we'll walk through here				false

		516						LN		20		6		false		           6   in a minute, but it's illustrative of calculating these				false

		517						LN		20		7		false		           7   rates or these prices for an IRP year.				false

		518						LN		20		8		false		           8             I don't want people to think that they				false

		519						LN		20		9		false		           9   couldn't be calculated for some other 12-month period				false

		520						LN		20		10		false		          10   of time.  It does need to be over a 12-month period for				false

		521						LN		20		11		false		          11   the comparison.  And that will probably -- even be				false

		522						LN		20		12		false		          12   doing that as a company.  But for this calculation to				false

		523						LN		20		13		false		          13   determine if there has been sharing occur, it will be				false

		524						LN		20		14		false		          14   the end of an IRP year.				false

		525						LN		20		15		false		          15             Paragraph 18(c) specifically relates to how				false

		526						LN		20		16		false		          16   in cost of service price is going to be calculated.				false

		527						LN		20		17		false		          17   And it also recognizes that in this calculation that				false

		528						LN		20		18		false		          18   the cost for dry hole, that would be both those that				false

		529						LN		20		19		false		          19   are plugged and abandoned, as well as commercial, would				false

		530						LN		20		20		false		          20   be included in as a hurdle that would need to be able				false

		531						LN		20		21		false		          21   to be met before Wexpro begins to be able to receive				false

		532						LN		20		22		false		          22   any sharing of savings.				false

		533						LN		20		23		false		          23             Paragraph D is simply an identification of				false

		534						LN		20		24		false		          24   timing and review rights, if you will.  And that is				false

		535						LN		20		25		false		          25   each June, which would be following the IRP year, IRP				false

		536						PG		21		0		false		page 21				false

		537						LN		21		1		false		           1   year ends on May 31st, so in the month of June, we'll				false

		538						LN		21		2		false		           2   be calculating, Questar Gas, along with help from the				false

		539						LN		21		3		false		           3   records of Wexpro, what the market price is, what the				false

		540						LN		21		4		false		           4   cost of service price is.				false

		541						LN		21		5		false		           5             Then after we go through this calculation,				false

		542						LN		21		6		false		           6   it's specifically pointed out that if there is indeed				false

		543						LN		21		7		false		           7   savings, that will show up as a separate line item that				false

		544						LN		21		8		false		           8   Wexpro will have on their operator service fee that we,				false

		545						LN		21		9		false		           9   Questar Gas, will be able to see.  Questar Gas, in				false

		546						LN		21		10		false		          10   turn, will be separately identifying that for all				false

		547						LN		21		11		false		          11   parties to see in 191 account entry.				false

		548						LN		21		12		false		          12             Then we recognize that the parties,				false

		549						LN		21		13		false		          13   particularly the Division here in Utah, as well as the				false

		550						LN		21		14		false		          14   Wyoming OCA, have the opportunity to audit and review				false

		551						LN		21		15		false		          15   that calculation.  And if there is any concerns or				false

		552						LN		21		16		false		          16   disputes, that they would be resolved in front of the				false

		553						LN		21		17		false		          17   Commissions who have jurisdiction over the managing of				false

		554						LN		21		18		false		          18   the 191 account.				false

		555						LN		21		19		false		          19             It's kind of a high-level summary of what				false

		556						LN		21		20		false		          20   we're trying to accomplish there.  Parties then went				false

		557						LN		21		21		false		          21   through and tried to develop, just so there wouldn't be				false

		558						LN		21		22		false		          22   any doubt in anybody's mind, an illustration of how				false

		559						LN		21		23		false		          23   this calculation is going to work.  So that shows up in				false

		560						LN		21		24		false		          24   settlement stipulation Exhibit 2.				false

		561						LN		21		25		false		          25             I thought I'd just run through that example				false

		562						PG		22		0		false		page 22				false

		563						LN		22		1		false		           1   here as you look at that page.  You can see that the				false

		564						LN		22		2		false		           2   first part of it, lines 1 through 14, is an				false

		565						LN		22		3		false		           3   illustration of how the market price, the average				false

		566						LN		22		4		false		           4   market price, will be calculated.  That shows that				false

		567						LN		22		5		false		           5   we'll go out and we'll collect from June through May in				false

		568						LN		22		6		false		           6   column A what the first of the month index price has				false

		569						LN		22		7		false		           7   been on Northwest Pipeline.				false

		570						LN		22		8		false		           8             Want to pause here for a minute.  A key thing				false

		571						LN		22		9		false		           9   that at least in my mind I do in trying to				false

		572						LN		22		10		false		          10   differentiate parts of this agreement that we are --				false

		573						LN		22		11		false		          11   have agreed on is this part that we're dealing with				false

		574						LN		22		12		false		          12   right now, which is a calculation of savings and how				false

		575						LN		22		13		false		          13   they might be shared, is all based on actual.  And so				false

		576						LN		22		14		false		          14   it's outside verifiable numbers that really did happen.				false

		577						LN		22		15		false		          15             Wexpro, on the other hand, tries its best up				false

		578						LN		22		16		false		          16   front when they're going through determining whether or				false

		579						LN		22		17		false		          17   not to drill and what those costs would be, that's				false

		580						LN		22		18		false		          18   based on forecasts.  That's a five-year forecast that's				false

		581						LN		22		19		false		          19   out there.  They're going to doing this.  We're going				false

		582						LN		22		20		false		          20   to be able to review that.  But as far as savings and				false

		583						LN		22		21		false		          21   everything, that's going to be verified and done on an				false

		584						LN		22		22		false		          22   actual basis.  Here in A, we're picking up what the				false

		585						LN		22		23		false		          23   actual first month index price is again.				false

		586						LN		22		24		false		          24             In column B, we're picking up what the actual				false

		587						LN		22		25		false		          25   cost of service into the interstate pipeline volumes				false

		588						PG		23		0		false		page 23				false

		589						LN		23		1		false		           1   have been.  There's one thing to estimate but now we're				false

		590						LN		23		2		false		           2   picking up what actually had happened.  We multiply				false

		591						LN		23		3		false		           3   those together for each month to come up with what a				false

		592						LN		23		4		false		           4   comparable market price may have been if Questar Gas				false

		593						LN		23		5		false		           5   would have gone out and purchased that gas on the open				false

		594						LN		23		6		false		           6   market rather than receiving it from Wexpro.				false

		595						LN		23		7		false		           7             It's the total of all of those comparable				false

		596						LN		23		8		false		           8   market prices that you can see there in column C				false

		597						LN		23		9		false		           9   that -- line 13 -- is then divided by the total of cost				false

		598						LN		23		10		false		          10   of service volumes to come up with what we're defining				false

		599						LN		23		11		false		          11   as the average market price.				false

		600						LN		23		12		false		          12             So we now have got one component of our				false

		601						LN		23		13		false		          13   formula, which is going to be the cost per dekatherm				false

		602						LN		23		14		false		          14   for the market price.  Now we're looking to figure out				false

		603						LN		23		15		false		          15   and compare that to a cost of service price per				false

		604						LN		23		16		false		          16   dekatherm.				false

		605						LN		23		17		false		          17             We've tried to show here the components that				false

		606						LN		23		18		false		          18   go into the calculation of that cost and what is				false

		607						LN		23		19		false		          19   needed.  Obviously it's going to be the costs				false

		608						LN		23		20		false		          20   themselves.  We recognize that there's going to be				false

		609						LN		23		21		false		          21   different components being brought together here.  We				false

		610						LN		23		22		false		          22   wanted to give the impression that all of Wexpro I and				false

		611						LN		23		23		false		          23   II costs would be being brought into this calculation,				false

		612						LN		23		24		false		          24   that all of the pre-2016 plans or investment will be in				false

		613						LN		23		25		false		          25   there, all of the approved developed producing is going				false

		614						PG		24		0		false		page 24				false

		615						LN		24		1		false		           1   to be there, as well as new development wells.				false

		616						LN		24		2		false		           2             We chose to break out those post-2015 into				false

		617						LN		24		3		false		           3   two different categories so that people could see				false

		618						LN		24		4		false		           4   particularly which volumes we're going to be comparing				false

		619						LN		24		5		false		           5   this and applying it to in the calculation of savings.				false

		620						LN		24		6		false		           6             Also recognize that you could be adding				false

		621						LN		24		7		false		           7   additional properties that are approved and already				false

		622						LN		24		8		false		           8   developed.  And then you're also adding properties				false

		623						LN		24		9		false		           9   through drilling in the future.  That's why I wanted to				false

		624						LN		24		10		false		          10   break those two out on the post-2015.				false

		625						LN		24		11		false		          11             Key thing to also remember is we're including				false

		626						LN		24		12		false		          12   any of the costs that have been incurred in that year				false

		627						LN		24		13		false		          13   related to dry hole in this calculation.  You can see				false

		628						LN		24		14		false		          14   that in the asterisks there on line 18.				false

		629						LN		24		15		false		          15             And to that we need to make sure that we are				false

		630						LN		24		16		false		          16   including the representative volumes.  So, again, it's				false

		631						LN		24		17		false		          17   just a mirroring of that.  All the volumes from those				false

		632						LN		24		18		false		          18   properties need to be included in this calculation.				false

		633						LN		24		19		false		          19   And then you can see in lines 23 through 25, we're				false

		634						LN		24		20		false		          20   simply going through and trying to illustrate the				false

		635						LN		24		21		false		          21   calculation of a cost per dekatherm.				false

		636						LN		24		22		false		          22             It shows that you could calculate this cost				false

		637						LN		24		23		false		          23   per dekatherm for some subpart, but the key cost per				false

		638						LN		24		24		false		          24   dekatherm we're after here is the total.  And so it is				false

		639						LN		24		25		false		          25   line 17, D-17, that number there that's going to be				false

		640						PG		25		0		false		page 25				false

		641						LN		25		1		false		           1   divided by the total volumes, which is in column D,				false

		642						LN		25		2		false		           2   line 21 that then calculates what the cost of service				false

		643						LN		25		3		false		           3   price per dekatherm ends up being.  That I just				false

		644						LN		25		4		false		           4   described is illustrated in line 25.				false

		645						LN		25		5		false		           5             So now that we've got these two components,				false

		646						LN		25		6		false		           6   we have a market price, we have a cost of service				false

		647						LN		25		7		false		           7   price, we're ready to check to see if, in fact, there's				false

		648						LN		25		8		false		           8   going to be savings, and that's what we're trying to				false

		649						LN		25		9		false		           9   illustrate in line 26.				false

		650						LN		25		10		false		          10             So if that cost of service price is less than				false

		651						LN		25		11		false		          11   the average market price, then we're going to go				false

		652						LN		25		12		false		          12   through the calculation of what was shared and how that				false

		653						LN		25		13		false		          13   is determined.  It would be -- it is taking what that				false

		654						LN		25		14		false		          14   savings amount is on a cost-per-dekatherm basis as				false

		655						LN		25		15		false		          15   showing in line 27.  You're going to share this on a				false

		656						LN		25		16		false		          16   50/50 basis, so you multiply it by 50 percent.				false

		657						LN		25		17		false		          17             Then it's applied only to the post-2015				false

		658						LN		25		18		false		          18   development well volumes.  And then that dollar amount				false

		659						LN		25		19		false		          19   would be an entry that Wexpro would be doing in their				false

		660						LN		25		20		false		          20   operating service fee bill that we, Questar Gas, would				false

		661						LN		25		21		false		          21   also be making in the 191 account.				false

		662						LN		25		22		false		          22             That essentially takes us through what we				false

		663						LN		25		23		false		          23   were trying to illustrate or show in paragraph 18(e).				false

		664						LN		25		24		false		          24   Now, while we're still on this page, the parties I				false

		665						LN		25		25		false		          25   think fairly observed that we don't want to with this				false

		666						PG		26		0		false		page 26				false

		667						LN		26		1		false		           1   change in this agreement make it so Wexpro by un --				false

		668						LN		26		2		false		           2   some unforeseen thing in the moment was able to all of				false

		669						LN		26		3		false		           3   a sudden earn higher returns than had ever been				false

		670						LN		26		4		false		           4   anticipated even in the old agreement.				false

		671						LN		26		5		false		           5             So there was a cap put on this, and that's in				false

		672						LN		26		6		false		           6   paragraph 19.  And the parties agreed that in no event				false

		673						LN		26		7		false		           7   shall this shared savings ever have -- be a result of				false

		674						LN		26		8		false		           8   Wexpro earning higher than the base plus the 8 percent.				false

		675						LN		26		9		false		           9             So we put a cap on that.  That's identified				false

		676						LN		26		10		false		          10   on this worksheet or this Exhibit 2 of the settlement				false

		677						LN		26		11		false		          11   stipulation on line 29.  We're trying to make				false

		678						LN		26		12		false		          12   everything be consistent, and we have accomplished that				false

		679						LN		26		13		false		          13   at that point.				false

		680						LN		26		14		false		          14             But there's one other thing that we do here				false

		681						LN		26		15		false		          15   in paragraph 19, and that is related back to dry hole.				false

		682						LN		26		16		false		          16   And that the parties' intent here is that they				false

		683						LN		26		17		false		          17   recognize that as -- if, in fact, Wexpro were able to				false

		684						LN		26		18		false		          18   achieve that level of savings and were able to get back				false

		685						LN		26		19		false		          19   to the base plus 8 percent, during the era of Wexpro I				false

		686						LN		26		20		false		          20   and II, when they were earning that level of return,				false

		687						LN		26		21		false		          21   they, Wexpro, were taking on 100 percent of the dry				false

		688						LN		26		22		false		          22   hole costs.				false

		689						LN		26		23		false		          23             So we recognize as they get to that point, we				false

		690						LN		26		24		false		          24   want to make sure that Wexpro again assumes that dry				false

		691						LN		26		25		false		          25   hole cost, all of it.  So we make a statement here, the				false

		692						PG		27		0		false		page 27				false

		693						LN		27		1		false		           1   parties acknowledge that the effect of this cap and				false

		694						LN		27		2		false		           2   them assuming the dry hole costs could have a -- the				false

		695						LN		27		3		false		           3   effect of Wexpro assuming a greater portion than 50/50				false

		696						LN		27		4		false		           4   on a dry hole, and customers assuming a lesser portion				false

		697						LN		27		5		false		           5   on that as you approach this cap on the earnings.				false

		698						LN		27		6		false		           6             I should observe that I don't know if any of				false

		699						LN		27		7		false		           7   the parties think that that's necessarily going to				false

		700						LN		27		8		false		           8   happen tomorrow, but we wanted to make sure that as				false

		701						LN		27		9		false		           9   those that have identified and made a change that we're				false

		702						LN		27		10		false		          10   recommending to the Commission, we wanted that intent				false

		703						LN		27		11		false		          11   to take place if and when that happens down the road.				false

		704						LN		27		12		false		          12   So that's why we've tried to spell that out clearly				false

		705						LN		27		13		false		          13   there.				false

		706						LN		27		14		false		          14             So that essentially takes us through				false

		707						LN		27		15		false		          15   paragraph 19.  And paragraph 19, as you can see, it				false

		708						LN		27		16		false		          16   helps to clarify what we're showing here on hearing				false

		709						LN		27		17		false		          17   exhibit in both lines 6 related to the dry hole and				false

		710						LN		27		18		false		          18   line 7, which is the incentive and the -- incentive for				false

		711						LN		27		19		false		          19   Wexpro to help bring costs down.  As they do, if they				false

		712						LN		27		20		false		          20   can do it below the market price, then there's an				false

		713						LN		27		21		false		          21   opportunity for sharing of those savings on just the				false

		714						LN		27		22		false		          22   post-2015 development wells.				false

		715						LN		27		23		false		          23             That takes us to paragraph 20, which will				false

		716						LN		27		24		false		          24   correlate with line 2 from our hearing exhibit.  And				false

		717						LN		27		25		false		          25   that's where the parties have agreed that over the next				false

		718						PG		28		0		false		page 28				false

		719						LN		28		1		false		           1   five years, so by year 2020, Wexpro will be moving				false

		720						LN		28		2		false		           2   their overall production of what they provide to				false

		721						LN		28		3		false		           3   Questar Gas down to 55 percent.  So that in 2020, the				false

		722						LN		28		4		false		           4   cap, if you will, of the amount that they're providing				false

		723						LN		28		5		false		           5   to Questar Gas needs to be at 55 percent.				false

		724						LN		28		6		false		           6             Last part of that paragraph recognizes that				false

		725						LN		28		7		false		           7   the minimum threshold that is specifically identified				false

		726						LN		28		8		false		           8   in the Trail stipulation continues to be in place as it				false

		727						LN		28		9		false		           9   relates to that.  Should just add here we point this				false

		728						LN		28		10		false		          10   out later in the stipulation that other parts of that				false

		729						LN		28		11		false		          11   stipulation that may not be specifically called out				false

		730						LN		28		12		false		          12   here or being proposed be modified will continue to be				false

		731						LN		28		13		false		          13   in place.				false

		732						LN		28		14		false		          14             So in this particular area, the calculations				false

		733						LN		28		15		false		          15   that go into making sure that Questar Gas is paying the				false

		734						LN		28		16		false		          16   minimum of cost of service or market, whichever's				false

		735						LN		28		17		false		          17   lower, as we reach this cap still stays in place.				false

		736						LN		28		18		false		          18             Next paragraph 21 is the recognition that we				false

		737						LN		28		19		false		          19   wanted to try to bring a lot of what's now beginning to				false

		738						LN		28		20		false		          20   be a few more documents than one.  In fact, it's going				false

		739						LN		28		21		false		          21   to be quite a few documents.  We recognize that for				false

		740						LN		28		22		false		          22   someone to totally understand how all these properties				false

		741						LN		28		23		false		          23   should be handled and treated needed to read them				false

		742						LN		28		24		false		          24   collectively.				false

		743						LN		28		25		false		          25             So we agreed that we will provide as a place				false

		744						PG		29		0		false		page 29				false

		745						LN		29		1		false		           1   on our website, and just in talking through it, it				false

		746						LN		29		2		false		           2   would be our Questar Gas website, as well as Wexpro's				false

		747						LN		29		3		false		           3   website, all relevant documents pertaining to				false

		748						LN		29		4		false		           4   management and implementation of cost of service				false

		749						LN		29		5		false		           5   production.  We list those here, and recognize in				false

		750						LN		29		6		false		           6   paragraph 22 that they need to be read collectively to				false

		751						LN		29		7		false		           7   make sure that we have the proper understanding of				false

		752						LN		29		8		false		           8   that.				false

		753						LN		29		9		false		           9             And, also, in paragraph 22, we recognize that				false

		754						LN		29		10		false		          10   anything else that hasn't been specifically called out				false

		755						LN		29		11		false		          11   in this stipulation continues in effect as it was				false

		756						LN		29		12		false		          12   intended to in any of the original documents.				false

		757						LN		29		13		false		          13             And that essentially goes back and covers				false

		758						LN		29		14		false		          14   line 3 here in this hearing because we don't have a				false

		759						LN		29		15		false		          15   paragraph that specifically calls that out.  But we				false

		760						LN		29		16		false		          16   recognize here in paragraph 22 that we will continue to				false

		761						LN		29		17		false		          17   have all approved, developed, producing, or pre-81				false

		762						LN		29		18		false		          18   wells be at the Commission-allowed return.				false

		763						LN		29		19		false		          19             I think those are the general -- the				false

		764						LN		29		20		false		          20   specific -- I shouldn't say "general."  Those are the				false

		765						LN		29		21		false		          21   specific highlights related to this stipulation.				false

		766						LN		29		22		false		          22   There's some other paragraphs in here that I think are				false

		767						LN		29		23		false		          23   more general in nature.				false

		768						LN		29		24		false		          24             But I would observe that I think that the				false

		769						LN		29		25		false		          25   results of this stipulation and what we've been able to				false

		770						PG		30		0		false		page 30				false

		771						LN		30		1		false		           1   work with with the parties produce what I would				false

		772						LN		30		2		false		           2   describe as the checks and the balances and the				false

		773						LN		30		3		false		           3   incentives to provide a cost-of-service relationship				false

		774						LN		30		4		false		           4   with -- I'm going to represent is Questar Gas -- with				false

		775						LN		30		5		false		           5   an exploration production Company, Wexpro, that provide				false

		776						LN		30		6		false		           6   the opportunity for continued savings.				false

		777						LN		30		7		false		           7             We've enjoyed some wonderful savings through				false

		778						LN		30		8		false		           8   the years.  We had significant change in the gas market				false

		779						LN		30		9		false		           9   that none of the people here in this room probably				false

		780						LN		30		10		false		          10   could have forecast, nor could anyone else, that				false

		781						LN		30		11		false		          11   occurred about a year ago.  I think we've worked				false

		782						LN		30		12		false		          12   through a process that sets us up for opportunities to				false

		783						LN		30		13		false		          13   be able to have those savings in the future.				false

		784						LN		30		14		false		          14             There's no guarantee.  Wexpro is going to				false

		785						LN		30		15		false		          15   have a challenge to be able to meet, beat that				false

		786						LN		30		16		false		          16   five-year forward curve.  But it's a great incentive,				false

		787						LN		30		17		false		          17   and we feel confident that we're going to be bringing				false

		788						LN		30		18		false		          18   gas that again is able to provide savings for us in the				false

		789						LN		30		19		false		          19   future.				false

		790						LN		30		20		false		          20             Like the incentives that are set up for				false

		791						LN		30		21		false		          21   Wexpro to be able to go forward and be able to be				false

		792						LN		30		22		false		          22   incentivized to do good things for both of them,				false

		793						LN		30		23		false		          23   because they're going to get rewarded.  We're going to				false

		794						LN		30		24		false		          24   get rewarded as customers and be able to receive lower				false

		795						LN		30		25		false		          25   than market price gas.				false

		796						PG		31		0		false		page 31				false

		797						LN		31		1		false		           1             I think the result of this is in the public				false

		798						LN		31		2		false		           2   interest and is just and reasonable, and observe that I				false

		799						LN		31		3		false		           3   think that summarizes our testimony related to the				false

		800						LN		31		4		false		           4   stipulation.				false

		801						LN		31		5		false		           5        Q.   Thank you, Mr. McKay.				false

		802						LN		31		6		false		           6             MS. LARKIN BELL:  Before I forget, I would				false

		803						LN		31		7		false		           7   like to move then for the admission of QGC Hearing				false

		804						LN		31		8		false		           8   Exhibit 6.0?				false

		805						LN		31		9		false		           9             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Any objection?				false

		806						LN		31		10		false		          10             MR. OLSEN:  No objection.				false

		807						LN		31		11		false		          11             MS. SCHMID:  Objection.				false

		808						LN		31		12		false		          12             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  That will be entered.  Thank				false

		809						LN		31		13		false		          13   you.				false

		810						LN		31		14		false		          14             (Exhibit was received.)				false

		811						LN		31		15		false		          15             MS. LARKIN BELL:  I failed to introduce				false

		812						LN		31		16		false		          16   Mr. Brady Rasmussen, who is the executive				false

		813						LN		31		17		false		          17   vice president of Wexpro.  He is also available today				false

		814						LN		31		18		false		          18   should the commissioners or parties have questions.				false

		815						LN		31		19		false		          19   With that, I think our summary is concluded.				false

		816						LN		31		20		false		          20             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Thank you.  Any -- any				false

		817						LN		31		21		false		          21   questions for them from the Division or Office, or				false

		818						LN		31		22		false		          22   shall we just move on?				false

		819						LN		31		23		false		          23             MS. SCHMID:  No questions.				false

		820						LN		31		24		false		          24             MR. OLSEN:  No questions.				false

		821						LN		31		25		false		          25             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Thank you.  Ms. Schmid?				false

		822						PG		32		0		false		page 32				false

		823						LN		32		1		false		           1             MS. SCHMID:  Thank you.  The Division would				false

		824						LN		32		2		false		           2   like to call Mr. Douglas D. Wheelwright as its witness.				false

		825						LN		32		3		false		           3                           --oOo--				false

		826						LN		32		4		false		           4                   DOUGLAS D. WHEELWRIGHT,				false

		827						LN		32		5		false		           5        having been first duly sworn to tell the				false

		828						LN		32		6		false		           6        truth, was examined and testified as follows:				false

		829						LN		32		7		false		           7                         EXAMINATION				false

		830						LN		32		8		false		           8   BY MS. SCHMID:				false

		831						LN		32		9		false		           9        Q.   Good morning, could you please state your				false

		832						LN		32		10		false		          10   employer, title, and place of business for the record?				false

		833						LN		32		11		false		          11        A.   Yes.  I am the technical consultant for the				false

		834						LN		32		12		false		          12   Division of Public Utilities.  My business address is				false
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		1086						LN		42		4		false		           4   walk through what would be closer to the final price.				false

		1087						LN		42		5		false		           5   And then I'm going to pitch things to Mr. Rasmussen				false

		1088						LN		42		6		false		           6   because it's in his testimony.				false

		1089						LN		42		7		false		           7             But if you'll turn to his Exhibit 2.2, I				false

		1090						LN		42		8		false		           8   recognize that we're now going to confidential -- in a				false

		1091						LN		42		9		false		           9   confidential exhibit, but I think we can have a				false

		1092						LN		42		10		false		          10   discussion around this without bringing out the				false

		1093						LN		42		11		false		          11   specific confidentiality points.  It is public				false

		1094						LN		42		12		false		          12   knowledge that it's 52.7, and that's what you're seeing				false

		1095						LN		42		13		false		          13   there in testimony.				false

		1096						LN		42		14		false		          14             As you look at this exhibit, you can see that				false

		1097						LN		42		15		false		          15   it needs to be adjusted for some revenue and O&M				false

		1098						LN		42		16		false		          16   adjustments that happened at closing, and then also it				false

		1099						LN		42		17		false		          17   needs to be adjusted for the dekatherms or, shall we				false

		1100						LN		42		18		false		          18   say, the depreciation and depletion that has occurred				false

		1101						LN		42		19		false		          19   since Wexpro has taken ownership.				false

		1102						LN		42		20		false		          20             So we've tried to illustrate that in line 5,				false

		1103						LN		42		21		false		          21   which shows the depreciation amount up to the time that				false

		1104						LN		42		22		false		          22   we filed.  We estimated some -- the -- what the				false

		1105						LN		42		23		false		          23   depreciation would be from August, September, and				false

		1106						LN		42		24		false		          24   October.				false

		1107						LN		42		25		false		          25             And we now recognize that we're into				false

		1108						PG		43		0		false		page 43				false

		1109						LN		43		1		false		           1   November.  So we would need to -- I don't know if				false

		1110						LN		43		2		false		           2   that -- I don't want to be bold -- I'll just -- the				false

		1111						LN		43		3		false		           3   assumption is this, that if the property were approved,				false

		1112						LN		43		4		false		           4   and let's say it went into effect on December 1, there				false

		1113						LN		43		5		false		           5   would need to be at least one more month's worth of				false

		1114						LN		43		6		false		           6   depreciation taken into fact and would impact what				false

		1115						LN		43		7		false		           7   those final numbers would be.				false

		1116						LN		43		8		false		           8             And also recognize that these were estimates				false

		1117						LN		43		9		false		           9   that were provided on what we thought the closing				false

		1118						LN		43		10		false		          10   between the previous owner and ending up with the				false

		1119						LN		43		11		false		          11   balancing of whether they were in balance or out of				false

		1120						LN		43		12		false		          12   balance.  So those numbers also would be updated for				false

		1121						LN		43		13		false		          13   actual.				false

		1122						LN		43		14		false		          14             Then that's the dollar amount that you're				false

		1123						LN		43		15		false		          15   seeing there on line 10.  We're pointing out that that				false

		1124						LN		43		16		false		          16   dollar amount would change, but it would be a reduced				false

		1125						LN		43		17		false		          17   amount from that that would then go on Wexpro's books				false

		1126						LN		43		18		false		          18   as the Canyon Creek Wexpro II property.				false

		1127						LN		43		19		false		          19             MR. WHITE:  Thank you.  That's helpful.				false

		1128						LN		43		20		false		          20             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Nothing else from you?				false

		1129						LN		43		21		false		          21             MR. WHITE:  Just a couple more, sorry.				false

		1130						LN		43		22		false		          22             Then on paragraph 13, this one might be				false

		1131						LN		43		23		false		          23   appropriate for other parties to opine also, but in				false

		1132						LN		43		24		false		          24   paragraphs 13 and 14, it refers to wording that states				false

		1133						LN		43		25		false		          25   at the time Wexpro incurs obligation in connection with				false

		1134						PG		44		0		false		page 44				false

		1135						LN		44		1		false		           1   the drilling program.				false

		1136						LN		44		2		false		           2             I guess my question is there a common				false

		1137						LN		44		3		false		           3   understanding -- I mean, is that a term of art that				false

		1138						LN		44		4		false		           4   incurs obligation, or is there common understanding				false

		1139						LN		44		5		false		           5   among the parties of what that would -- would entail or				false

		1140						LN		44		6		false		           6   mean?				false

		1141						LN		44		7		false		           7             MR. McKAY:  I would think that we absolutely				false

		1142						LN		44		8		false		           8   talked about that.  So we tried to word this to				false

		1143						LN		44		9		false		           9   recognize that Wexpro can have an estimate of what				false

		1144						LN		44		10		false		          10   might happen, and it can be out there looking in a				false

		1145						LN		44		11		false		          11   field with a heavy drilling plan.				false

		1146						LN		44		12		false		          12             And they say, Hey, let's -- we're going to				false

		1147						LN		44		13		false		          13   drill this many wells.  We think this is what the costs				false

		1148						LN		44		14		false		          14   are going to be.  Now we need to have a drilling rig,				false

		1149						LN		44		15		false		          15   and we need to be getting everything in line to be able				false

		1150						LN		44		16		false		          16   to say, Yeah, let's go ahead and do this, assuming that				false

		1151						LN		44		17		false		          17   we can meet the criteria.				false

		1152						LN		44		18		false		          18             They're going to go through all of that				false

		1153						LN		44		19		false		          19   process.  Then they're going to come to a point where				false

		1154						LN		44		20		false		          20   they now are committing dollars.  They're committing				false

		1155						LN		44		21		false		          21   things that they will be doing going into the future.				false

		1156						LN		44		22		false		          22   That's where we're saying "incur an obligation."				false

		1157						LN		44		23		false		          23             We recognize that typically happens during				false

		1158						LN		44		24		false		          24   their fall planning season, and then those rigs are				false

		1159						LN		44		25		false		          25   going to be up and drilling come next spring.  But we				false

		1160						PG		45		0		false		page 45				false

		1161						LN		45		1		false		           1   also on the second part of that paragraph try to				false

		1162						LN		45		2		false		           2   identify that maybe some other opportunities come up.				false

		1163						LN		45		3		false		           3   They have an opportunity to go in with another partner				false

		1164						LN		45		4		false		           4   on some wells.  So it might not always be at that time.				false

		1165						LN		45		5		false		           5             But the key thing is when they incur and are				false

		1166						LN		45		6		false		           6   now committed to where they're going to be paying out				false

		1167						LN		45		7		false		           7   dollars for that obligation is what the intent of that				false

		1168						LN		45		8		false		           8   would be, but I'll let others weigh in on it.				false

		1169						LN		45		9		false		           9             MR. WHEELWRIGHT:  We did participate in those				false

		1170						LN		45		10		false		          10   discussions, and that's in agreement with what we				false

		1171						LN		45		11		false		          11   understood, that at some point Wexpro will need to make				false

		1172						LN		45		12		false		          12   a decision and commit some resources, recognize that				false

		1173						LN		45		13		false		          13   this will be a forecast.				false

		1174						LN		45		14		false		          14             They're looking at future prices and -- but				false

		1175						LN		45		15		false		          15   at some point they do need to make a commitment to the				false

		1176						LN		45		16		false		          16   drilling rig.  That's what we understood would be the				false

		1177						LN		45		17		false		          17   point where they would make a commitment for -- for				false

		1178						LN		45		18		false		          18   future activity.				false

		1179						LN		45		19		false		          19             MR. MANGELSON:  This paragraph is part of the				false

		1180						LN		45		20		false		          20   Office's concern about better definition for the				false

		1181						LN		45		21		false		          21   five-year forward curve.  Previously it was explained				false

		1182						LN		45		22		false		          22   that they would have to beat the five-year forward				false

		1183						LN		45		23		false		          23   curve, but we wanted to understand at what moment in				false

		1184						LN		45		24		false		          24   time those numbers needed to match.				false

		1185						LN		45		25		false		          25             And the Company explained that they might				false

		1186						PG		46		0		false		page 46				false

		1187						LN		46		1		false		           1   determine that they had -- that they could match those				false

		1188						LN		46		2		false		           2   numbers at or better than the five-year curve, but then				false

		1189						LN		46		3		false		           3   they would need to make the agreements to have the				false

		1190						LN		46		4		false		           4   appropriate equipment, and the prices would change				false

		1191						LN		46		5		false		           5   after that.  So this is just designed to be a				false

		1192						LN		46		6		false		           6   clarification.				false

		1193						LN		46		7		false		           7             MR. WHITE:  Thank you.				false

		1194						LN		46		8		false		           8             MR. McKAY:  Just for illustration -- okay,				false

		1195						LN		46		9		false		           9   hasn't happened yet.  Going forward, this is something				false

		1196						LN		46		10		false		          10   that will be produced.  There will be some day on this				false

		1197						LN		46		11		false		          11   graph that you'll be able to put a circle around that				false

		1198						LN		46		12		false		          12   point on that orange line that contractually Wexpro is				false

		1199						LN		46		13		false		          13   obligated for a drilling rig things going forward.				false

		1200						LN		46		14		false		          14             That's what would need to be produced by				false

		1201						LN		46		15		false		          15   Wexpro to show that they had met the criteria that the				false

		1202						LN		46		16		false		          16   Office and the Division had been concerned about we				false

		1203						LN		46		17		false		          17   wanted to have clarity on.				false

		1204						LN		46		18		false		          18             MR. WHITE:  That actually is helpful.  It				false

		1205						LN		46		19		false		          19   sounds like it's more specifically defined as a				false

		1206						LN		46		20		false		          20   contractual obligation that's incurred with them?				false

		1207						LN		46		21		false		          21             MR. OLSEN:  For the record, perhaps, he was				false

		1208						LN		46		22		false		          22   holding up a document that I think we need just to				false

		1209						LN		46		23		false		          23   identify for the record.				false

		1210						LN		46		24		false		          24             MR. WHITE:  Is that Exhibit --				false

		1211						LN		46		25		false		          25             MR. McKAY:  This is Stipulation Exhibit --				false

		1212						PG		47		0		false		page 47				false

		1213						LN		47		1		false		           1   well, Settlement Stipulation Exhibit 1.  I'm sorry.				false

		1214						LN		47		2		false		           2   That's a good point.				false

		1215						LN		47		3		false		           3             MR. WHITE:  Thanks.				false

		1216						LN		47		4		false		           4             The last question I have is also with respect				false

		1217						LN		47		5		false		           5   to paragraph 13, the discussion of potential more				false

		1218						LN		47		6		false		           6   frequent than annual drilling programs.  Is there -- I				false

		1219						LN		47		7		false		           7   mean, is there potentially an example of, you know,				false

		1220						LN		47		8		false		           8   when that might occur, what those circumstances would				false

		1221						LN		47		9		false		           9   be around, more frequent?				false

		1222						LN		47		10		false		          10             MS. LARKIN BELL:  Commissioner White, that				false

		1223						LN		47		11		false		          11   may be a good question for Mr. Brady Rasmussen.				false

		1224						LN		47		12		false		          12   Mr. Rasmussen has not yet been sworn.  Shall we have				false

		1225						LN		47		13		false		          13   him sworn and, perhaps, he can answer that question?				false

		1226						LN		47		14		false		          14             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Sure.				false

		1227						LN		47		15		false		          15                           --oOo--				false

		1228						LN		47		16		false		          16                      BRADY RASMUSSEN,				false

		1229						LN		47		17		false		          17        having been first duly sworn to tell the				false

		1230						LN		47		18		false		          18        truth, testified as follows:				false

		1231						LN		47		19		false		          19                           --oOo--				false

		1232						LN		47		20		false		          20             MR. RASMUSSEN:  As Barrie said, we typically				false

		1233						LN		47		21		false		          21   format our drilling program in the fall, but with a				false

		1234						LN		47		22		false		          22   smaller drilling program that might be likely here				false

		1235						LN		47		23		false		          23   with -- with lower prices.  And we're also -- we may				false

		1236						LN		47		24		false		          24   have to look at that more frequently, do a smaller				false

		1237						LN		47		25		false		          25   program.				false

		1238						PG		48		0		false		page 48				false

		1239						LN		48		1		false		           1             Typically in the past, we could go --				false

		1240						LN		48		2		false		           2   contract out a rig for a year straight.  We may not be				false

		1241						LN		48		3		false		           3   doing that in view of our inventory of properties out				false

		1242						LN		48		4		false		           4   there.  We might have to focus on one field at a time.				false

		1243						LN		48		5		false		           5             It might make that drilling commitment				false

		1244						LN		48		6		false		           6   smaller from time to time.  You could have, you know,				false

		1245						LN		48		7		false		           7   multiple times in the year where you'd actually have a				false

		1246						LN		48		8		false		           8   rig contracted out for one portion of the first half of				false

		1247						LN		48		9		false		           9   the year, a separate rig, if you got to that point, you				false

		1248						LN		48		10		false		          10   could still beat that hurdle for the second half.				false

		1249						LN		48		11		false		          11             Also, you're dealing with recompletions where				false

		1250						LN		48		12		false		          12   the rig commitment not -- is very short.  We would have				false

		1251						LN		48		13		false		          13   to still meet these obligations on a contract				false

		1252						LN		48		14		false		          14   obligation on a recompletion well.  It might just be				false

		1253						LN		48		15		false		          15   one or two wells at a time.				false

		1254						LN		48		16		false		          16             And also on any outside operated wells that				false

		1255						LN		48		17		false		          17   we are not the driller out there, we would be -- once				false

		1256						LN		48		18		false		          18   we commit to drilling that well, we are -- we're kind				false

		1257						LN		48		19		false		          19   of following their plans of the drilling program.  We				false

		1258						LN		48		20		false		          20   still have to meet these obligations, but we're kind of				false

		1259						LN		48		21		false		          21   at the disposal of when that's proposed to us.				false

		1260						LN		48		22		false		          22             MR. WHITE:  Thank you.  I have -- I have no				false

		1261						LN		48		23		false		          23   further questions.				false

		1262						LN		48		24		false		          24             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Thank you, Commissioner				false

		1263						LN		48		25		false		          25   Clark?				false

		1264						PG		49		0		false		page 49				false

		1265						LN		49		1		false		           1             MR. CLARK:  Thanks, Chair LeVar.  I've got a				false

		1266						LN		49		2		false		           2   question about paragraph 13 also.  As you look at the				false

		1267						LN		49		3		false		           3   drilling program in relation to the five-year forward				false

		1268						LN		49		4		false		           4   price curve, how do you consider G&A costs in that				false

		1269						LN		49		5		false		           5   evaluation?  Are you looking at incremental costs?  Are				false

		1270						LN		49		6		false		           6   you looking at previously allocated cost?				false

		1271						LN		49		7		false		           7             MR. RASMUSSEN:  Yes.  On G&A on the drilling				false

		1272						LN		49		8		false		           8   decision, we are looking at incremental costs on there.				false

		1273						LN		49		9		false		           9   We do -- we are -- you know, which has a combination of				false

		1274						LN		49		10		false		          10   Wexpro direct costs, corporate allocated costs, and the				false

		1275						LN		49		11		false		          11   changes in that with the addition -- additional				false

		1276						LN		49		12		false		          12   investment.  And we're only capturing the true				false

		1277						LN		49		13		false		          13   incremental costs to that drilling program that will be				false

		1278						LN		49		14		false		          14   calculated on that.				false

		1279						LN		49		15		false		          15             MR. CLARK:  Thank you.  Now to				false

		1280						LN		49		16		false		          16   paragraph 18(a).  There's a reference there to the				false

		1281						LN		49		17		false		          17   interstate pipeline.  Is that Northwest Pipeline?  Is				false

		1282						LN		49		18		false		          18   it more or less than that?  What -- help me in defining				false

		1283						LN		49		19		false		          19   that term.				false

		1284						LN		49		20		false		          20             MR. McKAY:  We left it so that it could be				false

		1285						LN		49		21		false		          21   any interstate pipeline.  But the key thing is that				false

		1286						LN		49		22		false		          22   it's at that point that it's transferring from a				false

		1287						LN		49		23		false		          23   gathering facility or a tail plant or a processing				false

		1288						LN		49		24		false		          24   facility.				false

		1289						LN		49		25		false		          25             It's those volumes at that point that we're				false

		1290						PG		50		0		false		page 50				false

		1291						LN		50		1		false		           1   trying to identify there and not a summary of volumes				false

		1292						LN		50		2		false		           2   upstream from there.  And the purpose for that is we				false

		1293						LN		50		3		false		           3   want them to be able to be comparable to where we				false

		1294						LN		50		4		false		           4   typically, Questar Gas, are purchasing other gas, which				false

		1295						LN		50		5		false		           5   is into the interstate pipeline.				false

		1296						LN		50		6		false		           6             MR. CLARK:  Does Questar deliver volumes				false

		1297						LN		50		7		false		           7   upstream of the pipeline?				false

		1298						LN		50		8		false		           8             MR. McKAY:  Now Questar?  You mean does				false

		1299						LN		50		9		false		           9   Wexpro deliver volumes?  They do from their wells				false

		1300						LN		50		10		false		          10   depending on how things are gathered, okay?  We,				false

		1301						LN		50		11		false		          11   Questar Gas, need to take responsibility of how we're				false

		1302						LN		50		12		false		          12   going to be getting those volumes to the interstate				false

		1303						LN		50		13		false		          13   pipeline.				false

		1304						LN		50		14		false		          14             Sometimes we're getting those volumes at the				false

		1305						LN		50		15		false		          15   tailgate of a Vermillion plant that Wexpro is a joint				false

		1306						LN		50		16		false		          16   owner in, and that's right when it's going into an				false

		1307						LN		50		17		false		          17   interstate pipeline.				false

		1308						LN		50		18		false		          18             Other times we're getting them upstream, and				false

		1309						LN		50		19		false		          19   we need to have gathering -- we have gathering from a				false

		1310						LN		50		20		false		          20   systemwide gathering agreement that we've had now with				false

		1311						LN		50		21		false		          21   Tesoro.  We also have other contracts with other				false

		1312						LN		50		22		false		          22   gathering providers.				false

		1313						LN		50		23		false		          23             All of those, whatever volumes or dekatherms				false

		1314						LN		50		24		false		          24   might be used in the transportation on the gathering or				false

		1315						LN		50		25		false		          25   in the processing need to be removed out.  That's why				false

		1316						PG		51		0		false		page 51				false

		1317						LN		51		1		false		           1   we're wanting to have it specifically be the volumes of				false

		1318						LN		51		2		false		           2   when it goes into the interstate pipeline.				false

		1319						LN		51		3		false		           3             MR. CLARK:  So -- so you're confident you can				false

		1320						LN		51		4		false		           4   capture that discrete value?				false

		1321						LN		51		5		false		           5             THE WITNESS:  That's a good -- good point.				false

		1322						LN		51		6		false		           6   Let's be very forthright in that as we've tried to				false

		1323						LN		51		7		false		           7   calculate that -- those numbers going back in the past,				false

		1324						LN		51		8		false		           8   let's say the past 30 years here, we had not summarized				false

		1325						LN		51		9		false		           9   those numbers or kept track specifically of what those				false
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           1                    P-R-O-C-E-E-D-I-N-G-S

           2                           --oOo--

           3             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Good morning.  We're on the

           4   record.  We are here for the hearing in the Matter of

           5   the Application of Questar Gas Company for Approval of

           6   the Canyon Creek Acquisition as a Wexpro II Property.

           7             And we're here to consider approval of the

           8   settlement stipulation that was filed in this matter.

           9   We'll start with appearances.  So, of course, for the

          10   Utility?

          11             MS. LARKIN BELL:  Colleen Larkin Bell for

          12   Questar Gas Company.

          13             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you.

          14             MS. SCHMID:  Patricia E. Schmid with the

          15   Attorney General's Office for the Division of Public

          16   Utilities.

          17             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Thank you.

          18             MR. OLSEN:  Rex Olsen with the Office of

          19   Consumer Services.

          20             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you.  Are there

          21   any other preliminary matters before we move forward?

          22             MS. LARKIN BELL:  Just a quick question on

          23   how you would like us to move for admission of our

          24   exhibits.  In the case of the Company, we've provided

          25   an exhibit list and a binder with all of the attached
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           1   exhibits.

           2             The court reporter has one.  And if we could

           3   move for the admission of those exhibits as indicated

           4   on the list, that's fine, or if you want to read

           5   everything into the record, we can do that.  Just a

           6   preliminary question.

           7             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Is there any

           8   objection to them being entered as the list without

           9   reading each one individually.

          10             MR. OLSEN:  We have no objection.

          11             MS. SCHMID:  No objection.  And the Division

          12   would like to do the same with its list if permitted.

          13             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Certainly.

          14             MS. LARKIN BELL:  Okay.  With that, if you

          15   want to start with the exhibits.  The Company would

          16   move for the admission of its exhibits, with the

          17   exception of one, and that is a separate handout that

          18   we have handed out both to the court reporter, the

          19   other parties, and the commissioners.

          20             And we have marked this one as QGC Hearing

          21   Exhibit 6.0.  It's very similar to Mr. Barrie L.

          22   McKay's testimony exhibit, with the exception that we

          23   have added a column to indicate what the proposed

          24   changes are as agreed to in the stipulation agreement.

          25             And I don't want to move for the admission of
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           1   that now.  The parties have just now gotten a copy of

           2   that.  I think what I will ask is after Mr. McKay

           3   provides testimony in support of the stipulation, we

           4   would move for admission of that hearing exhibit at

           5   that time.

           6             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.

           7             MS. LARKIN BELL:  If that works.

           8             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Any objection to admitting

           9   all of the exhibits as described with this one

          10   exception at this point?

          11             MS. SCHMID:  No.

          12             MR. OLSEN:  No objection.

          13             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  They'll be admitted.

          14   Thank you.

          15             (Exhibits were admitted.)

          16             MS. LARKIN BELL:  With that, I would like to

          17   call Mr. Barrie L. McKay as our witness who will

          18   support our settlement stipulation in this matter.

          19                           --oOo--

          20                      BARRIE L. MCKAY,

          21        having been first duly sworn to tell the

          22        truth, was examined and testified as follows:

          23                           --oOo--

          24             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you.

          25             MS. LARKIN BELL:  Would it be all right for
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           1   Mr. McKay to stay here, or would you --

           2             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Oh, yes.  Absolutely.

           3   That's fine.

           4             MS. LARKIN BELL:  Okay.

           5             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  I think is there any

           6   objection if we can just go to all the witnesses, and

           7   then if there's any question from the bench, we save

           8   them until the end?  Any objection to moving forward

           9   that way?

          10             MS. SCHMID:  No objection.

          11             MR. OLSEN:  No objection, Your Honor.

          12             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Thank you.

          13                         EXAMINATION

          14   BY MS. LARKIN BELL:

          15        Q.   Mr. McKay, please state your name and -- name

          16   for the record.

          17        A.   Barrie L. McKay.

          18        Q.   And by whom are you employed?

          19        A.   Questar Gas Company.

          20        Q.   What is your title, your place of employment?

          21        A.   I'm vice president of regulatory affairs and

          22   energy efficiency.

          23        Q.   And did you file direct testimony in this

          24   proceeding consisting of nine pages and pre-marked as

          25   QGC Exhibit 1.0, with attached Exhibits 1.1 through 1.3
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           1   on August 31, 2015?

           2        A.   Yes I did.

           3        Q.   And if I were to ask you the same questions

           4   today that were asked in your pre-filed direct

           5   testimony, would your answers be the same?

           6        A.   Yes.

           7        Q.   Are you prepared today to summarize for the

           8   commission the settlement stipulation that was filed in

           9   this matter?

          10        A.   Yes, I am.

          11        Q.   Go ahead.

          12        A.   We have been -- I guess I wouldn't mind at

          13   this point pointing out this hearing exhibit that is

          14   essentially Exhibit 1.II, but was -- my counsel has

          15   already pointed we have added an additional column.

          16             In our preparation for summary today, we

          17   thought it would be a useful tool as we walk through

          18   the stipulation itself.  So with that said, I'm going

          19   to probably be referring to the stipulation pages, as

          20   well as this summary and try to kind of tie those

          21   together.  I know we planned to have questions at the

          22   end, but if there's anything I'm saying along the way

          23   that there's questions about, feel free to --

          24             MS. LARKIN BELL:  Additionally, one other

          25   comment, if the Commission has any questions with
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           1   regard to confidential exhibits, we are prepared to

           2   discuss those with you today.

           3             But we would ask at that time that we request

           4   that the hearing be closed to the public, given that we

           5   do not believe that the settlement stipulation is

           6   confidential or that Barrie's testimony with regard to

           7   it will be confidential.

           8             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you.  If that

           9   issue arises, we'll deal with it.

          10             THE WITNESS:  Okay.  First page of the

          11   stipulation is simply in summary form.  I think the

          12   recognition that the Questar Gas Company, as well as

          13   Wexpro, Division of Public Utilities, Utah Office of

          14   Consumer Services, and Wyoming Office of Consumer

          15   Advocates were the parties that signed this

          16   stipulation.

          17             The key takeaway on that first page is the

          18   recognition that both the Utah and the Wyoming

          19   Commission need to approve the stipulation in order for

          20   it to become effective.

          21             The pages 2 and 3 I think simply are

          22   procedural history summary, recognizing that we have a

          23   Wexpro II agreement, which is why we brought the

          24   property in the first place.

          25             Paragraph 2 is recognition of the Trail 2
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           1   stipulation.  Key reason why that needs to be pointed

           2   out I think in our procedural history is that there was

           3   a settlement in that docket that both Wyoming and Utah

           4   approved that helped to govern the Wexpro property

           5   going into the future.  And that the -- this

           6   application, the Canyon Creek application, complied

           7   with what was required there.

           8             Wexpro did indeed purchase this property at

           9   its own risk.  And they are required, since this

          10   property is within the development drilling area, to

          11   bring that before the Utah and Wyoming Commissions.

          12             It does complete specifically -- when I say

          13   "complete," it makes it so that Wexpro now owns -- has

          14   100 percent ownership in the Canyon Creek area.

          15   Previous to that, we had 70 percent.  It was being

          16   provided to Questar Gas as a cost of the service, and

          17   this additional 30 percent, it has full ownership now.

          18             As required, they also have -- we, Questar

          19   Gas, filed with a complete -- complete requirements of

          20   the Wexpro II agreement, which is all of the data

          21   identified in the Exhibits A through P.  Following our

          22   application, the hydrocarbon monitor, according to what

          23   was laid out in the Wexpro II agreement, filed his

          24   report within the seven business days, both in Utah and

          25   in Wyoming.  I think that will become part of the
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           1   record also.

           2             Other takeaway is that in this process of

           3   coming to this stipulation, understanding was improved

           4   through the process of holding two technical

           5   conferences, one here in Utah on September 17th, as

           6   well as on October 8, there was a technical conference

           7   held in Wyoming.

           8             And ultimately the parties through numerous

           9   data requests and opportunity to sit down and walk

          10   through and better understand what was being proposed

          11   and the significant proposals I think that the parties

          12   have focused on have been the changes that accompanied

          13   this application.  And this hearing exhibit summary I

          14   think is a good way of walking through that.  So I'll

          15   refer back and forth to the actual stipulation itself,

          16   as well as this hearing exhibit.

          17             But the terms and conditions I think is where

          18   it really starts to be recognized of what we are

          19   agreeing to as settling parties.  In paragraph 12, it's

          20   simply recognition that the Canyon Creek acquisition

          21   will be approved and improved as a Wexpro II property

          22   and will function accordingly with the following

          23   additional agreements that have gone forth.

          24             And that is in paragraph 13, there's -- that

          25   specifically relates to line 1 of this hearing exhibit.
�                                                                          12



           1   The parties are essentially -- I would describe it as

           2   doing five things here within this paragraph.

           3   Number 1, we're recognizing that Wexpro is going to

           4   continue to be the one that designs their annual

           5   drilling program.

           6             Next part of that sentence, we're recognizing

           7   that a drilling program might not always happen in the

           8   fall, for example.  It might be a drilling program

           9   that's committed to or decided in the spring or some

          10   other time of year.  So we're trying to make it clear

          11   that that could happen at a different time of the year.

          12             And then the next part is that there is a

          13   moment in which Wexpro needs to commit or become

          14   obligated to a drilling rig.  So we're recognizing that

          15   at that point in time, couple of things have to be

          16   taking place.

          17             Number 1, the average of what they plan to go

          18   out and drill as far as their drilling plan.  And we

          19   define the average carefully as the first five years --

          20   the costs related to the first five years of

          21   production, divided by the production from that first

          22   five years' production.  That's going to come up and

          23   create a cost per dekatherm.  That cost per dekatherm

          24   needs to be at or below the five-year forward curve.

          25             Now, the five-year forward curve was a term
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           1   that we agreed to in the Trail stipulation.  But it's

           2   something that we further defined here in the Canyon

           3   Creek stipulation to make sure everybody understood

           4   exactly what was meant by that and how Wexpro had been

           5   calculating it.

           6             So that moves us to paragraph 14, which is

           7   just further defining on this hearing exhibit our line

           8   number 1.  And that is the actual formula that makes up

           9   the five-year forward curve.

          10             And the best way I have found to do it, and I

          11   think that we put together a pretty good summary, I'm

          12   just going to turn to the exhibit -- stipulation

          13   Exhibit 1 in what we've put together with the

          14   stipulation.

          15             And in referring to that, the first part of

          16   the formula, which is A, which is identified as the

          17   NYMEX forward curve, and that shows up here on the

          18   stipulation Exhibit 1 as a blue line.  And that blue

          19   line shows 60 months' forecast and has the estimated

          20   price as of that date.

          21             And then the next part, B, which is the -- we

          22   recognize that we have a different price here in the

          23   Rockies, and so we have a basis difference that's

          24   identified as the next part of the formula.  And that

          25   part shows up as a red line on this stipulation
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           1   exhibit.  And then these two need to be added together

           2   to come up with the Rockies adjusted price.  That shows

           3   up as the green line on this graph.

           4             And we recognize that that is five years'

           5   worth of forecasts.  Now, the next part is the creation

           6   of the component of the formula D, which is simply

           7   adding up 60 months' worth of forecast, so that would

           8   be that green line, and dividing it by 60 to come up

           9   with that day's average for the next 60 months.

          10             And to that, next thing we recognize -- and

          11   that is essentially the black line here on Exhibit 1.

          12   And you can see that there's some volatility in that

          13   black line.  Sometimes it jumps up, sometimes it goes

          14   down.

          15             And rather than have parties or Wexpro or

          16   whoever be looking at, I want to right this right at

          17   the low part or hit it at the high part, we then

          18   introduced the idea that we would smooth out this line

          19   by simply taking the latest 20 trading days and have --

          20   so we add up the latest 20, divide that by 20, and

          21   that's what you see as the orange line.  And that's our

          22   definition of the five-year forward curve.

          23             So a point on that line on the day that

          24   Wexpro commits to or is obligated to continue forward

          25   with their drilling plan is the number that needs to be
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           1   compared with what the forecast is of the next five

           2   years of production.

           3             And essentially that helps to create or

           4   complete that comparison so that we know that that is a

           5   forecast.  It's forecast in the future.  It's comparing

           6   five years of forecasts that an outside third party is

           7   doing, comparing it with five years of forecasts for

           8   what Wexpro anticipates to be able to produce from a

           9   given drilling plan.

          10             That has to be at or below in order for

          11   Wexpro to move forward.  We like that as a good check

          12   to make sure that we're getting properties.  They're

          13   coming to Questar Gas that are going to be at or below

          14   that on a forecasted basis.  There's also some

          15   comparison later on that is also a good check, I think

          16   a good safety valve for our customers that we'll talk

          17   about later.

          18             The next paragraph in the stipulation is --

          19   actually, before I move to paragraph 15, let me make an

          20   observation is that the parties worked through this

          21   very carefully.  And this Exhibit 1 is a -- comes from

          22   a worksheet that goes through each day.  And each day

          23   that there's a trading day, it can be updated for one

          24   more day.  And Wexpro does that.  Company will be doing

          25   that.
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           1             We're offering that as something -- we know

           2   we do a lot of reporting, and we didn't come with any

           3   decision exactly of when and how often.  We think it

           4   could be available at any time.  But we think it might

           5   be wise for Questar Gas to be providing that maybe on

           6   at least an annual basis.  Commission can take note of

           7   that.  And however they might feel comfortable, if

           8   that's something they want more often.

           9             But as you'll see here in a bit, we're going

          10   to be doing a calculation and an analysis on an annual

          11   basis.  That seemed at least an appropriate opportunity

          12   to be providing that to all the parties.  But it can be

          13   provided at other times during the year if the parties

          14   or the Commission wanted it.

          15             That moves us to photograph 15.  Paragraph 15

          16   specifically relates to line 4 here in this hearing

          17   exhibit, and that's the recognition that the property

          18   that has already been developed, it's referred to as

          19   pre-2016 oil and gas properties, there was -- developed

          20   under a previous set of guidelines and terms will be

          21   governed over the remaining life of that property, as

          22   was set forth in the Wexpro I and II agreements.

          23             That moves us to paragraph 16.  And that's

          24   the part where there begins to be some significant

          25   changes in these models going forward.  And that --
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           1   where the parties agree that the post-2015 properties,

           2   and that's both oil and gas, as well as the allowance

           3   for funds used during construction, all of those under

           4   the Wexpro I or Wexpro II agreement had returns higher

           5   than what is now being proposed.  And what's being

           6   proposed is for the life of all of those properties

           7   going forward, they will be earning a Commission

           8   allowed rate of return as defined in the Wexpro II

           9   agreement.

          10             For just memory purposes, that's something

          11   that's weighted between -- Utah's usage in a given year

          12   and Wyoming's usage, and that's weighted based on what

          13   the Commissions have allowed as their most recent

          14   allowed rate of return.

          15             That moves us I think to paragraph 17.  And

          16   17 is doing three specific things.  And it relates to

          17   line 6 here in the hearing exhibit.  And as you can see

          18   here that the Company proposed just a 50/50 sharing.

          19   But as the -- we met with the parties, there was some

          20   concerns that we had worked through and have agreed

          21   upon.

          22             And that's, first of all, we did agree that

          23   on a going forward basis that when there's new drilling

          24   or development wells that there would be a sharing of

          25   the costs.  If, in fact, there happened to be dry hole
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           1   cost, there would be a sharing of those costs 50/50.

           2             Now, we recognize in the next part of this

           3   paragraph that although in the definition in Wexpro I

           4   and Wexpro II, a dry hole cost is identified as being a

           5   plugged and abandoned well or a well that has not

           6   passed the commerciality test.  And that's defined as

           7   dry hole.

           8             We break it out here in this paragraph.  The

           9   reason we do is we recognize on those -- we're going to

          10   refer to them as non-commercial wells, they may still

          11   be produced if their costs, okay, are covered by the

          12   cash that could be received in selling the gas, okay?

          13             So it's not such a bad well that it should be

          14   plugged and abandoned, but you can actually cover your

          15   cash costs.  In that instance in this paragraph, you

          16   can see that the parties have agreed that the revenues

          17   and the related expenses from a non-commercial well

          18   will also be shared on a 50/50 basis.

          19             Additionally, the parties have agreed that

          20   there will be a cap on what this sharing would be for

          21   the customers.  And that cap is going to be limited to

          22   4.5 percent of Wexpro's annual developed drilling that

          23   the customer would be responsible for.  Now, there's

          24   also some additional parameters as it relates to dry

          25   hole that will come up here in paragraph 19, but I'm
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           1   going to wait until we get there.

           2             So let's move to paragraph 18.  And 18 is

           3   dealing with line 7 here in the hearing exhibit.  It's

           4   where the Company had proposed that there would be an

           5   opportunity for sharing of savings that resulted from

           6   wells that would be drilled after 2015 if certain

           7   parameters had been met.

           8             And the biggest parameter is that the overall

           9   cost of service needed to be lower than the market

          10   price.  That sounds really good until you get into

          11   figuring out, okay, what does market price really

          12   represent here?  What all is included in the cost of

          13   service?

          14             And so we go through an effort in this

          15   paragraph 18 to try to define all of the components

          16   that would go into this calculation so that it's

          17   clearly understood what the intent was.  So

          18   paragraph 18(a) simply recognizes that we need to use

          19   the volumes that are going into the interstate

          20   pipeline.

          21             In the past, there have been some variances

          22   or differences in that, but we are clarifying that

          23   those are the volumes that are intended to be used in

          24   this calculation.  Paragraph B goes through the process

          25   of what needs to take place to determine what a market
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           1   price is going to be.

           2             And I should identify here, too, that we're

           3   trying to identify what this market price is and this

           4   cost of service price is for an IRP year.  So we

           5   actually have an exhibit that we'll walk through here

           6   in a minute, but it's illustrative of calculating these

           7   rates or these prices for an IRP year.

           8             I don't want people to think that they

           9   couldn't be calculated for some other 12-month period

          10   of time.  It does need to be over a 12-month period for

          11   the comparison.  And that will probably -- even be

          12   doing that as a company.  But for this calculation to

          13   determine if there has been sharing occur, it will be

          14   the end of an IRP year.

          15             Paragraph 18(c) specifically relates to how

          16   in cost of service price is going to be calculated.

          17   And it also recognizes that in this calculation that

          18   the cost for dry hole, that would be both those that

          19   are plugged and abandoned, as well as commercial, would

          20   be included in as a hurdle that would need to be able

          21   to be met before Wexpro begins to be able to receive

          22   any sharing of savings.

          23             Paragraph D is simply an identification of

          24   timing and review rights, if you will.  And that is

          25   each June, which would be following the IRP year, IRP
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           1   year ends on May 31st, so in the month of June, we'll

           2   be calculating, Questar Gas, along with help from the

           3   records of Wexpro, what the market price is, what the

           4   cost of service price is.

           5             Then after we go through this calculation,

           6   it's specifically pointed out that if there is indeed

           7   savings, that will show up as a separate line item that

           8   Wexpro will have on their operator service fee that we,

           9   Questar Gas, will be able to see.  Questar Gas, in

          10   turn, will be separately identifying that for all

          11   parties to see in 191 account entry.

          12             Then we recognize that the parties,

          13   particularly the Division here in Utah, as well as the

          14   Wyoming OCA, have the opportunity to audit and review

          15   that calculation.  And if there is any concerns or

          16   disputes, that they would be resolved in front of the

          17   Commissions who have jurisdiction over the managing of

          18   the 191 account.

          19             It's kind of a high-level summary of what

          20   we're trying to accomplish there.  Parties then went

          21   through and tried to develop, just so there wouldn't be

          22   any doubt in anybody's mind, an illustration of how

          23   this calculation is going to work.  So that shows up in

          24   settlement stipulation Exhibit 2.

          25             I thought I'd just run through that example
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           1   here as you look at that page.  You can see that the

           2   first part of it, lines 1 through 14, is an

           3   illustration of how the market price, the average

           4   market price, will be calculated.  That shows that

           5   we'll go out and we'll collect from June through May in

           6   column A what the first of the month index price has

           7   been on Northwest Pipeline.

           8             Want to pause here for a minute.  A key thing

           9   that at least in my mind I do in trying to

          10   differentiate parts of this agreement that we are --

          11   have agreed on is this part that we're dealing with

          12   right now, which is a calculation of savings and how

          13   they might be shared, is all based on actual.  And so

          14   it's outside verifiable numbers that really did happen.

          15             Wexpro, on the other hand, tries its best up

          16   front when they're going through determining whether or

          17   not to drill and what those costs would be, that's

          18   based on forecasts.  That's a five-year forecast that's

          19   out there.  They're going to doing this.  We're going

          20   to be able to review that.  But as far as savings and

          21   everything, that's going to be verified and done on an

          22   actual basis.  Here in A, we're picking up what the

          23   actual first month index price is again.

          24             In column B, we're picking up what the actual

          25   cost of service into the interstate pipeline volumes
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           1   have been.  There's one thing to estimate but now we're

           2   picking up what actually had happened.  We multiply

           3   those together for each month to come up with what a

           4   comparable market price may have been if Questar Gas

           5   would have gone out and purchased that gas on the open

           6   market rather than receiving it from Wexpro.

           7             It's the total of all of those comparable

           8   market prices that you can see there in column C

           9   that -- line 13 -- is then divided by the total of cost

          10   of service volumes to come up with what we're defining

          11   as the average market price.

          12             So we now have got one component of our

          13   formula, which is going to be the cost per dekatherm

          14   for the market price.  Now we're looking to figure out

          15   and compare that to a cost of service price per

          16   dekatherm.

          17             We've tried to show here the components that

          18   go into the calculation of that cost and what is

          19   needed.  Obviously it's going to be the costs

          20   themselves.  We recognize that there's going to be

          21   different components being brought together here.  We

          22   wanted to give the impression that all of Wexpro I and

          23   II costs would be being brought into this calculation,

          24   that all of the pre-2016 plans or investment will be in

          25   there, all of the approved developed producing is going
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           1   to be there, as well as new development wells.

           2             We chose to break out those post-2015 into

           3   two different categories so that people could see

           4   particularly which volumes we're going to be comparing

           5   this and applying it to in the calculation of savings.

           6             Also recognize that you could be adding

           7   additional properties that are approved and already

           8   developed.  And then you're also adding properties

           9   through drilling in the future.  That's why I wanted to

          10   break those two out on the post-2015.

          11             Key thing to also remember is we're including

          12   any of the costs that have been incurred in that year

          13   related to dry hole in this calculation.  You can see

          14   that in the asterisks there on line 18.

          15             And to that we need to make sure that we are

          16   including the representative volumes.  So, again, it's

          17   just a mirroring of that.  All the volumes from those

          18   properties need to be included in this calculation.

          19   And then you can see in lines 23 through 25, we're

          20   simply going through and trying to illustrate the

          21   calculation of a cost per dekatherm.

          22             It shows that you could calculate this cost

          23   per dekatherm for some subpart, but the key cost per

          24   dekatherm we're after here is the total.  And so it is

          25   line 17, D-17, that number there that's going to be
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           1   divided by the total volumes, which is in column D,

           2   line 21 that then calculates what the cost of service

           3   price per dekatherm ends up being.  That I just

           4   described is illustrated in line 25.

           5             So now that we've got these two components,

           6   we have a market price, we have a cost of service

           7   price, we're ready to check to see if, in fact, there's

           8   going to be savings, and that's what we're trying to

           9   illustrate in line 26.

          10             So if that cost of service price is less than

          11   the average market price, then we're going to go

          12   through the calculation of what was shared and how that

          13   is determined.  It would be -- it is taking what that

          14   savings amount is on a cost-per-dekatherm basis as

          15   showing in line 27.  You're going to share this on a

          16   50/50 basis, so you multiply it by 50 percent.

          17             Then it's applied only to the post-2015

          18   development well volumes.  And then that dollar amount

          19   would be an entry that Wexpro would be doing in their

          20   operating service fee bill that we, Questar Gas, would

          21   also be making in the 191 account.

          22             That essentially takes us through what we

          23   were trying to illustrate or show in paragraph 18(e).

          24   Now, while we're still on this page, the parties I

          25   think fairly observed that we don't want to with this
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           1   change in this agreement make it so Wexpro by un --

           2   some unforeseen thing in the moment was able to all of

           3   a sudden earn higher returns than had ever been

           4   anticipated even in the old agreement.

           5             So there was a cap put on this, and that's in

           6   paragraph 19.  And the parties agreed that in no event

           7   shall this shared savings ever have -- be a result of

           8   Wexpro earning higher than the base plus the 8 percent.

           9             So we put a cap on that.  That's identified

          10   on this worksheet or this Exhibit 2 of the settlement

          11   stipulation on line 29.  We're trying to make

          12   everything be consistent, and we have accomplished that

          13   at that point.

          14             But there's one other thing that we do here

          15   in paragraph 19, and that is related back to dry hole.

          16   And that the parties' intent here is that they

          17   recognize that as -- if, in fact, Wexpro were able to

          18   achieve that level of savings and were able to get back

          19   to the base plus 8 percent, during the era of Wexpro I

          20   and II, when they were earning that level of return,

          21   they, Wexpro, were taking on 100 percent of the dry

          22   hole costs.

          23             So we recognize as they get to that point, we

          24   want to make sure that Wexpro again assumes that dry

          25   hole cost, all of it.  So we make a statement here, the
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           1   parties acknowledge that the effect of this cap and

           2   them assuming the dry hole costs could have a -- the

           3   effect of Wexpro assuming a greater portion than 50/50

           4   on a dry hole, and customers assuming a lesser portion

           5   on that as you approach this cap on the earnings.

           6             I should observe that I don't know if any of

           7   the parties think that that's necessarily going to

           8   happen tomorrow, but we wanted to make sure that as

           9   those that have identified and made a change that we're

          10   recommending to the Commission, we wanted that intent

          11   to take place if and when that happens down the road.

          12   So that's why we've tried to spell that out clearly

          13   there.

          14             So that essentially takes us through

          15   paragraph 19.  And paragraph 19, as you can see, it

          16   helps to clarify what we're showing here on hearing

          17   exhibit in both lines 6 related to the dry hole and

          18   line 7, which is the incentive and the -- incentive for

          19   Wexpro to help bring costs down.  As they do, if they

          20   can do it below the market price, then there's an

          21   opportunity for sharing of those savings on just the

          22   post-2015 development wells.

          23             That takes us to paragraph 20, which will

          24   correlate with line 2 from our hearing exhibit.  And

          25   that's where the parties have agreed that over the next
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           1   five years, so by year 2020, Wexpro will be moving

           2   their overall production of what they provide to

           3   Questar Gas down to 55 percent.  So that in 2020, the

           4   cap, if you will, of the amount that they're providing

           5   to Questar Gas needs to be at 55 percent.

           6             Last part of that paragraph recognizes that

           7   the minimum threshold that is specifically identified

           8   in the Trail stipulation continues to be in place as it

           9   relates to that.  Should just add here we point this

          10   out later in the stipulation that other parts of that

          11   stipulation that may not be specifically called out

          12   here or being proposed be modified will continue to be

          13   in place.

          14             So in this particular area, the calculations

          15   that go into making sure that Questar Gas is paying the

          16   minimum of cost of service or market, whichever's

          17   lower, as we reach this cap still stays in place.

          18             Next paragraph 21 is the recognition that we

          19   wanted to try to bring a lot of what's now beginning to

          20   be a few more documents than one.  In fact, it's going

          21   to be quite a few documents.  We recognize that for

          22   someone to totally understand how all these properties

          23   should be handled and treated needed to read them

          24   collectively.

          25             So we agreed that we will provide as a place
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           1   on our website, and just in talking through it, it

           2   would be our Questar Gas website, as well as Wexpro's

           3   website, all relevant documents pertaining to

           4   management and implementation of cost of service

           5   production.  We list those here, and recognize in

           6   paragraph 22 that they need to be read collectively to

           7   make sure that we have the proper understanding of

           8   that.

           9             And, also, in paragraph 22, we recognize that

          10   anything else that hasn't been specifically called out

          11   in this stipulation continues in effect as it was

          12   intended to in any of the original documents.

          13             And that essentially goes back and covers

          14   line 3 here in this hearing because we don't have a

          15   paragraph that specifically calls that out.  But we

          16   recognize here in paragraph 22 that we will continue to

          17   have all approved, developed, producing, or pre-81

          18   wells be at the Commission-allowed return.

          19             I think those are the general -- the

          20   specific -- I shouldn't say "general."  Those are the

          21   specific highlights related to this stipulation.

          22   There's some other paragraphs in here that I think are

          23   more general in nature.

          24             But I would observe that I think that the

          25   results of this stipulation and what we've been able to
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           1   work with with the parties produce what I would

           2   describe as the checks and the balances and the

           3   incentives to provide a cost-of-service relationship

           4   with -- I'm going to represent is Questar Gas -- with

           5   an exploration production Company, Wexpro, that provide

           6   the opportunity for continued savings.

           7             We've enjoyed some wonderful savings through

           8   the years.  We had significant change in the gas market

           9   that none of the people here in this room probably

          10   could have forecast, nor could anyone else, that

          11   occurred about a year ago.  I think we've worked

          12   through a process that sets us up for opportunities to

          13   be able to have those savings in the future.

          14             There's no guarantee.  Wexpro is going to

          15   have a challenge to be able to meet, beat that

          16   five-year forward curve.  But it's a great incentive,

          17   and we feel confident that we're going to be bringing

          18   gas that again is able to provide savings for us in the

          19   future.

          20             Like the incentives that are set up for

          21   Wexpro to be able to go forward and be able to be

          22   incentivized to do good things for both of them,

          23   because they're going to get rewarded.  We're going to

          24   get rewarded as customers and be able to receive lower

          25   than market price gas.
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           1             I think the result of this is in the public

           2   interest and is just and reasonable, and observe that I

           3   think that summarizes our testimony related to the

           4   stipulation.

           5        Q.   Thank you, Mr. McKay.

           6             MS. LARKIN BELL:  Before I forget, I would

           7   like to move then for the admission of QGC Hearing

           8   Exhibit 6.0?

           9             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Any objection?

          10             MR. OLSEN:  No objection.

          11             MS. SCHMID:  Objection.

          12             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  That will be entered.  Thank

          13   you.

          14             (Exhibit was received.)

          15             MS. LARKIN BELL:  I failed to introduce

          16   Mr. Brady Rasmussen, who is the executive

          17   vice president of Wexpro.  He is also available today

          18   should the commissioners or parties have questions.

          19   With that, I think our summary is concluded.

          20             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Thank you.  Any -- any

          21   questions for them from the Division or Office, or

          22   shall we just move on?

          23             MS. SCHMID:  No questions.

          24             MR. OLSEN:  No questions.

          25             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Thank you.  Ms. Schmid?
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           1             MS. SCHMID:  Thank you.  The Division would

           2   like to call Mr. Douglas D. Wheelwright as its witness.

           3                           --oOo--

           4                   DOUGLAS D. WHEELWRIGHT,

           5        having been first duly sworn to tell the

           6        truth, was examined and testified as follows:

           7                         EXAMINATION

           8   BY MS. SCHMID:

           9        Q.   Good morning, could you please state your

          10   employer, title, and place of business for the record?

          11        A.   Yes.  I am the technical consultant for the

          12   Division of Public Utilities.  My business address is

          13   160 East, 300 South.

          14        Q.   Could you briefly describe your activities on

          15   behalf of the Division in this docket?

          16        A.   Yes.  I reviewed the application and

          17   participated in meetings with the Company, filed

          18   numerous data requests to obtain additional information

          19   concerning the filing and filed testimony.

          20        Q.   Do you have any changes to your testimony

          21   which was filed with the Commission pre-marked as DPU

          22   Exhibit No. 1.0D with associated exhibits?

          23        A.   No changes.

          24        Q.   If I were to ask you the same questions today

          25   as contained in that testimony, would your answers be
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           1   the same?

           2        A.   Yes, they would.

           3             MS. SCHMID:  The Division would like to move

           4   for the admission of Division Exhibits DPU Exhibit

           5   No. 1.0D through DPU Exhibit No. 1.5D as memorialized

           6   on the DPU witness list given to the parties and the

           7   court reporter in this docket.

           8             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Any objection to that

           9   motion?

          10             MS. LARKIN BELL:  No objection.

          11             MR. OLSEN:  No objection.

          12             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Thank you.  That will be

          13   entered.

          14             (Exhibits were received.)

          15        Q.   (By Ms. Schmid) Do you have a summary to

          16   give?

          17        A.   Yes, I do.

          18        Q.   Please proceed.

          19        A.   Thank you.  Thank you, Commissioners.  The

          20   objective of the Wexpro II agreement was to create a

          21   structure and a mechanism that could potentially allow

          22   additional properties to be included in future cost of

          23   service gas production.

          24             The Canyon Creek acquisition, which is

          25   described in detail by the Company, is within the
�                                                                          34



           1   Wexpro I development drilling area.  And under the

           2   terms of the Wexpro II agreement, Questar Gas is

           3   required to bring this property before the Commission

           4   for approval.

           5             This purchase includes an increased ownership

           6   in 110 existing and producing wells, along with 30

           7   future well locations.  The future drilling locations

           8   are in a field that is with known production and where

           9   Wexpro has experience with previous drilling in this

          10   field.

          11             The calculations and assumptions used in this

          12   acquisition have been reviewed and evaluated by

          13   David Evans, the independent hydrocarbon monitor.  On

          14   September 10th, 2015, Mr. Evans filed a report with the

          15   Division and indicated that in his opinion, the

          16   reserves and associated economic information presented

          17   by Wexpro were reasonable.

          18             The specifics of the cost of service price

          19   projections from this acquisition are confidential but

          20   have been included in Exhibit L and L-1 of the filing.

          21   The natural gas from the additional Canyon Creek wells

          22   represent a small percentage of the total Wexpro

          23   production and will have a minor impact on the total

          24   price of cost of service gas.

          25             A comparison of the total cost of service
�                                                                          35



           1   price from all Wexpro production and the projected

           2   market price for the next five years has been included

           3   as Exhibit 1.1 of my direct testimony.

           4             As part of this application, the Company has

           5   included significant changes to the Wexpro agreements.

           6   The proposed changes would reduce the allowed rate of

           7   return for new development from the base rate of

           8   return, plus an 8 percent premium currently calculated

           9   at 20 percent to the Commission-allowed rate of return,

          10   currently 7.64 percent.

          11             This lower rate of return will apply to new

          12   development in all fields and will allow Wexpro to

          13   begin drilling as early as next year.  The lower rate

          14   of return will allow future drilling not only in Canyon

          15   Creek, but also in other fields, such as Pinedale and

          16   Trail.  Additional wells can be drilled if the cost of

          17   service production is at or below the five-year forward

          18   price curve.

          19             Another change calls for ratepayers to share

          20   50 percent of the dry hole or non-commercial well costs

          21   and to potentially bear additional costs under a shared

          22   savings arrangement.  The recommended changes to the

          23   Wexpro agreements have been discussed in detail with

          24   parties in Utah and Wyoming and are outlined in the

          25   settlement stipulation.
�                                                                          36



           1             One of the primary concerns for this in the

           2   previous acquisition is the volume or percentage of the

           3   Questar Gas requirement that is provided by Wexpro.  As

           4   part of the stipulation, Questar and Wexpro will

           5   continue to manage the combined cost of service

           6   production volume to 65 percent through 2019, but will

           7   limit the -- but will be limited to 55 percent

           8   beginning in the 2020 IRP year.

           9             By managing to a specific volume target,

          10   Questar and Wexpro will be able to determine the pace

          11   of future drilling.  The Division has reviewed the

          12   Company's analysis and recommends that the Canyon Creek

          13   acquisition be included under the Wexpro II agreement.

          14             Approval of the Canyon Creek acquisition as a

          15   Wexpro II property represents the purchase of a

          16   long-term resource that could be advantageous to

          17   ratepayers for many years.  The Division also supports

          18   the proposed changes to the Wexpro agreements as

          19   outlined.  The Division believes that the terms of the

          20   stipulation agreement are just and reasonable and are

          21   in the public interest.  That concludes my summary.

          22             MS. SCHMID:  Mr. Wheelwright is now available

          23   for questions.  And before, however, you leave the

          24   Division, I would like to move for the admission of one

          25   additional exhibit.
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           1             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.

           2             MS. SCHMID:  In his summary, Mr. Wheelwright

           3   referenced a report from David Evans, the hydrocarbon

           4   monitor.  That report was dated September 10, 2015, and

           5   filed with the Commission on September 14th as a highly

           6   confidential document.  The Division would like to move

           7   for the admission of that report.

           8             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Any objection?

           9             MS. LARKIN BELL:  No objection.

          10             MR. OLSEN:  No objection.

          11             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  That will be entered.  Thank

          12   you.

          13             MS. SCHMID:  Thank you.

          14             (The report was received.)

          15             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Anything further from the

          16   Division?

          17             MS. SCHMID:  Nothing further.

          18             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Then we'll move on to the

          19   Office and come back to all witnesses for questions

          20   afterwards.

          21             Mr. Olsen?

          22             MR. OLSEN:  Thank you.  The Division would

          23   like to call --

          24             MS. SCHMID:  Office --

          25             MR. OLSEN:  Office.  Excuse me.
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           1                           --oOo--

           2                      GAVIN MANGELSON,

           3        having been first duly sworn to tell the

           4        truth, was examined and testified as follows:

           5                         EXAMINATION

           6   BY MR. OLSEN:

           7        Q.   Could you for the record state your name and

           8   your position with the Office, please?

           9        A.   Gavin Mangelson, a utility analyst.

          10        Q.   During the course of -- did you participate

          11   in the review of the proposal from Questar Gas that's

          12   under consideration right now?

          13        A.   Yes.

          14        Q.   And as part of that, did you prepare

          15   testimony, direct testimony, on October 8, 2015?

          16        A.   Yes.

          17        Q.   Do you have any -- any summary you'd like to

          18   present at this time?

          19        A.   I do.

          20        Q.   Proceed, please.

          21        A.   The Office reviewed the Company's

          22   application, the report from the hydrocarbon monitor,

          23   and the Company's response to numerous discovery

          24   requests.  We filed direct testimony raising certain

          25   concerns about the Company to include the Canyon Creek
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           1   acquisition under the Wexpro II agreement.

           2             During the drafting of this stipulation, the

           3   Office and others focused on crafting an agreement that

           4   would be durable and benefit and protect ratepayers for

           5   as long as natural gas is being extracted and provided

           6   under this agreement and not just for the foreseeable

           7   future.

           8             Some of the specific provisions in this

           9   settlement that are important to the Office include

          10   maintaining the advantageous provisions of the Trail 2

          11   stipulation that I identified in my direct testimony,

          12   more adequately defining the five-year forward price

          13   curve definition and the calculation of shared savings,

          14   resolving concerns identified in my direct testimony,

          15   and moving from managing Wexpro to a maximum of

          16   65 percent of the IRP forecast demand to 55 percent in

          17   2020.

          18             I'd like to speak more specifically to the

          19   change in management of gas supply.  I noted in my

          20   direct testimony that according to confidential

          21   Exhibits M and M-1, cost of service gas supply as a

          22   percentage of total gas supply is not expected to be

          23   near the historically high levels.

          24             However, an updated version of Exhibit M-1

          25   had been provided in response to a data request from
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           1   the Division of Public Utilities.  This updated exhibit

           2   demonstrates that new drilling across all existing

           3   properties will increase the cost of service gas

           4   supplies -- supply to levels higher than those cited in

           5   my testimony.

           6             Therefore, the Office's earlier concerns

           7   about the high total percentage of Wexpro gas supplies

           8   remain at issue in this case.  The settlement

           9   stipulation terms adequately address the Office's

          10   concerns.

          11             The Office is confident that the proposed

          12   sharing of costs and savings as defined in the

          13   settlement stipulation will more closely align the

          14   operating incentives to Wexpro with what will be most

          15   beneficial to ratepayers.

          16             In summary, the Office believes that adding

          17   the Canyon Creek acquisition to the Wexpro II

          18   agreement, coupled with the other provisions of the

          19   stipulation, is in the public interest and will result

          20   in just and reasonable rates.  Accordingly, the Office

          21   respectfully requests that the Commission approve this

          22   stipulation.

          23        Q.   Mr. Mangelson, subject to the clarifications

          24   you've just provided in your sworn summary, would

          25   you -- and with the modifications inherent therein,
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           1   would you affirm the voracity of your prior testimony?

           2        A.   Yes, with the -- yeah.

           3        Q.   On October 8th?

           4        A.   Yes, in light of the issues that I've

           5   addressed in my statement.

           6             MR. OLSEN:  And with that caveat -- with that

           7   understanding, Your Honor, we'd like to submit the

           8   testimony.

           9             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Any objections?

          10             MS. LARKIN BELL:  No objection.

          11             MS. SCHMID:  No objection.

          12             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  They will be entered.

          13             (The testimony was received.)

          14             MR. OLSEN:  Mr. Mangelson has nothing further

          15   so --

          16             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you.

          17             Commissioner White, do you have any questions

          18   for any of the witnesses?

          19             MR. WHITE:  Just a couple.  This is -- I'll

          20   direct this initially to Mr. McKay, but some of these

          21   may be convenient for others to opine on.  The first

          22   one refers to paragraph 4 of the settlement stipulation

          23   with the closing price referenced of 52.7 million.

          24             My question is is this the -- is this price

          25   the final price, or is there any potential change
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           1   beyond that, date of acquisition?

           2             MR. McKAY:  That would not be the final

           3   price.  I would refer this to an exhibit that helps to

           4   walk through what would be closer to the final price.

           5   And then I'm going to pitch things to Mr. Rasmussen

           6   because it's in his testimony.

           7             But if you'll turn to his Exhibit 2.2, I

           8   recognize that we're now going to confidential -- in a

           9   confidential exhibit, but I think we can have a

          10   discussion around this without bringing out the

          11   specific confidentiality points.  It is public

          12   knowledge that it's 52.7, and that's what you're seeing

          13   there in testimony.

          14             As you look at this exhibit, you can see that

          15   it needs to be adjusted for some revenue and O&M

          16   adjustments that happened at closing, and then also it

          17   needs to be adjusted for the dekatherms or, shall we

          18   say, the depreciation and depletion that has occurred

          19   since Wexpro has taken ownership.

          20             So we've tried to illustrate that in line 5,

          21   which shows the depreciation amount up to the time that

          22   we filed.  We estimated some -- the -- what the

          23   depreciation would be from August, September, and

          24   October.

          25             And we now recognize that we're into
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           1   November.  So we would need to -- I don't know if

           2   that -- I don't want to be bold -- I'll just -- the

           3   assumption is this, that if the property were approved,

           4   and let's say it went into effect on December 1, there

           5   would need to be at least one more month's worth of

           6   depreciation taken into fact and would impact what

           7   those final numbers would be.

           8             And also recognize that these were estimates

           9   that were provided on what we thought the closing

          10   between the previous owner and ending up with the

          11   balancing of whether they were in balance or out of

          12   balance.  So those numbers also would be updated for

          13   actual.

          14             Then that's the dollar amount that you're

          15   seeing there on line 10.  We're pointing out that that

          16   dollar amount would change, but it would be a reduced

          17   amount from that that would then go on Wexpro's books

          18   as the Canyon Creek Wexpro II property.

          19             MR. WHITE:  Thank you.  That's helpful.

          20             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Nothing else from you?

          21             MR. WHITE:  Just a couple more, sorry.

          22             Then on paragraph 13, this one might be

          23   appropriate for other parties to opine also, but in

          24   paragraphs 13 and 14, it refers to wording that states

          25   at the time Wexpro incurs obligation in connection with
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           1   the drilling program.

           2             I guess my question is there a common

           3   understanding -- I mean, is that a term of art that

           4   incurs obligation, or is there common understanding

           5   among the parties of what that would -- would entail or

           6   mean?

           7             MR. McKAY:  I would think that we absolutely

           8   talked about that.  So we tried to word this to

           9   recognize that Wexpro can have an estimate of what

          10   might happen, and it can be out there looking in a

          11   field with a heavy drilling plan.

          12             And they say, Hey, let's -- we're going to

          13   drill this many wells.  We think this is what the costs

          14   are going to be.  Now we need to have a drilling rig,

          15   and we need to be getting everything in line to be able

          16   to say, Yeah, let's go ahead and do this, assuming that

          17   we can meet the criteria.

          18             They're going to go through all of that

          19   process.  Then they're going to come to a point where

          20   they now are committing dollars.  They're committing

          21   things that they will be doing going into the future.

          22   That's where we're saying "incur an obligation."

          23             We recognize that typically happens during

          24   their fall planning season, and then those rigs are

          25   going to be up and drilling come next spring.  But we
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           1   also on the second part of that paragraph try to

           2   identify that maybe some other opportunities come up.

           3   They have an opportunity to go in with another partner

           4   on some wells.  So it might not always be at that time.

           5             But the key thing is when they incur and are

           6   now committed to where they're going to be paying out

           7   dollars for that obligation is what the intent of that

           8   would be, but I'll let others weigh in on it.

           9             MR. WHEELWRIGHT:  We did participate in those

          10   discussions, and that's in agreement with what we

          11   understood, that at some point Wexpro will need to make

          12   a decision and commit some resources, recognize that

          13   this will be a forecast.

          14             They're looking at future prices and -- but

          15   at some point they do need to make a commitment to the

          16   drilling rig.  That's what we understood would be the

          17   point where they would make a commitment for -- for

          18   future activity.

          19             MR. MANGELSON:  This paragraph is part of the

          20   Office's concern about better definition for the

          21   five-year forward curve.  Previously it was explained

          22   that they would have to beat the five-year forward

          23   curve, but we wanted to understand at what moment in

          24   time those numbers needed to match.

          25             And the Company explained that they might
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           1   determine that they had -- that they could match those

           2   numbers at or better than the five-year curve, but then

           3   they would need to make the agreements to have the

           4   appropriate equipment, and the prices would change

           5   after that.  So this is just designed to be a

           6   clarification.

           7             MR. WHITE:  Thank you.

           8             MR. McKAY:  Just for illustration -- okay,

           9   hasn't happened yet.  Going forward, this is something

          10   that will be produced.  There will be some day on this

          11   graph that you'll be able to put a circle around that

          12   point on that orange line that contractually Wexpro is

          13   obligated for a drilling rig things going forward.

          14             That's what would need to be produced by

          15   Wexpro to show that they had met the criteria that the

          16   Office and the Division had been concerned about we

          17   wanted to have clarity on.

          18             MR. WHITE:  That actually is helpful.  It

          19   sounds like it's more specifically defined as a

          20   contractual obligation that's incurred with them?

          21             MR. OLSEN:  For the record, perhaps, he was

          22   holding up a document that I think we need just to

          23   identify for the record.

          24             MR. WHITE:  Is that Exhibit --

          25             MR. McKAY:  This is Stipulation Exhibit --
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           1   well, Settlement Stipulation Exhibit 1.  I'm sorry.

           2   That's a good point.

           3             MR. WHITE:  Thanks.

           4             The last question I have is also with respect

           5   to paragraph 13, the discussion of potential more

           6   frequent than annual drilling programs.  Is there -- I

           7   mean, is there potentially an example of, you know,

           8   when that might occur, what those circumstances would

           9   be around, more frequent?

          10             MS. LARKIN BELL:  Commissioner White, that

          11   may be a good question for Mr. Brady Rasmussen.

          12   Mr. Rasmussen has not yet been sworn.  Shall we have

          13   him sworn and, perhaps, he can answer that question?

          14             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Sure.

          15                           --oOo--

          16                      BRADY RASMUSSEN,

          17        having been first duly sworn to tell the

          18        truth, testified as follows:

          19                           --oOo--

          20             MR. RASMUSSEN:  As Barrie said, we typically

          21   format our drilling program in the fall, but with a

          22   smaller drilling program that might be likely here

          23   with -- with lower prices.  And we're also -- we may

          24   have to look at that more frequently, do a smaller

          25   program.
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           1             Typically in the past, we could go --

           2   contract out a rig for a year straight.  We may not be

           3   doing that in view of our inventory of properties out

           4   there.  We might have to focus on one field at a time.

           5             It might make that drilling commitment

           6   smaller from time to time.  You could have, you know,

           7   multiple times in the year where you'd actually have a

           8   rig contracted out for one portion of the first half of

           9   the year, a separate rig, if you got to that point, you

          10   could still beat that hurdle for the second half.

          11             Also, you're dealing with recompletions where

          12   the rig commitment not -- is very short.  We would have

          13   to still meet these obligations on a contract

          14   obligation on a recompletion well.  It might just be

          15   one or two wells at a time.

          16             And also on any outside operated wells that

          17   we are not the driller out there, we would be -- once

          18   we commit to drilling that well, we are -- we're kind

          19   of following their plans of the drilling program.  We

          20   still have to meet these obligations, but we're kind of

          21   at the disposal of when that's proposed to us.

          22             MR. WHITE:  Thank you.  I have -- I have no

          23   further questions.

          24             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Thank you, Commissioner

          25   Clark?
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           1             MR. CLARK:  Thanks, Chair LeVar.  I've got a

           2   question about paragraph 13 also.  As you look at the

           3   drilling program in relation to the five-year forward

           4   price curve, how do you consider G&A costs in that

           5   evaluation?  Are you looking at incremental costs?  Are

           6   you looking at previously allocated cost?

           7             MR. RASMUSSEN:  Yes.  On G&A on the drilling

           8   decision, we are looking at incremental costs on there.

           9   We do -- we are -- you know, which has a combination of

          10   Wexpro direct costs, corporate allocated costs, and the

          11   changes in that with the addition -- additional

          12   investment.  And we're only capturing the true

          13   incremental costs to that drilling program that will be

          14   calculated on that.

          15             MR. CLARK:  Thank you.  Now to

          16   paragraph 18(a).  There's a reference there to the

          17   interstate pipeline.  Is that Northwest Pipeline?  Is

          18   it more or less than that?  What -- help me in defining

          19   that term.

          20             MR. McKAY:  We left it so that it could be

          21   any interstate pipeline.  But the key thing is that

          22   it's at that point that it's transferring from a

          23   gathering facility or a tail plant or a processing

          24   facility.

          25             It's those volumes at that point that we're
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           1   trying to identify there and not a summary of volumes

           2   upstream from there.  And the purpose for that is we

           3   want them to be able to be comparable to where we

           4   typically, Questar Gas, are purchasing other gas, which

           5   is into the interstate pipeline.

           6             MR. CLARK:  Does Questar deliver volumes

           7   upstream of the pipeline?

           8             MR. McKAY:  Now Questar?  You mean does

           9   Wexpro deliver volumes?  They do from their wells

          10   depending on how things are gathered, okay?  We,

          11   Questar Gas, need to take responsibility of how we're

          12   going to be getting those volumes to the interstate

          13   pipeline.

          14             Sometimes we're getting those volumes at the

          15   tailgate of a Vermillion plant that Wexpro is a joint

          16   owner in, and that's right when it's going into an

          17   interstate pipeline.

          18             Other times we're getting them upstream, and

          19   we need to have gathering -- we have gathering from a

          20   systemwide gathering agreement that we've had now with

          21   Tesoro.  We also have other contracts with other

          22   gathering providers.

          23             All of those, whatever volumes or dekatherms

          24   might be used in the transportation on the gathering or

          25   in the processing need to be removed out.  That's why
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           1   we're wanting to have it specifically be the volumes of

           2   when it goes into the interstate pipeline.

           3             MR. CLARK:  So -- so you're confident you can

           4   capture that discrete value?

           5             THE WITNESS:  That's a good -- good point.

           6   Let's be very forthright in that as we've tried to

           7   calculate that -- those numbers going back in the past,

           8   let's say the past 30 years here, we had not summarized

           9   those numbers or kept track specifically of what those

          10   volumes were in the past.

          11             We can.  On the record, we'll say this out

          12   loud, we can calculate on an actual basis today and

          13   going forward the volumes that are related to cost of

          14   service gas at the -- what's going into the pipeline,

          15   interstate pipeline.  So we're going to be able to

          16   consistently have that information going forward.

          17             We're still in the process of trying to

          18   verify and calculate what they actually were in the

          19   past.  We think we have a pretty good estimate that we

          20   provided to the Division and the Commission,

          21   specifically in our IRP variance report.

          22             We'll continue to do that.  And if we can get

          23   more accurate information, we'll provide that at the

          24   time we have verified actual numbers.  But going

          25   forward, we're confident that we'll be able to do that.
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           1             MR. CLARK:  Be able to and you intend to?

           2             MR. McKAY:  Yes, by the intent of this

           3   stipulation, which I think the parties wanted to see,

           4   also.  Yes, we do intend to.

           5             MR. CLARK:  Okay.  Now in reference to

           6   paragraph 21, just a procedural matter.  I think it's

           7   very useful that these reference documents are going to

           8   be available in -- as they've been described here.

           9             Is any of this information confidential?  For

          10   example, confidential information in guideline letters?

          11   And, if so, how do you intend to address that?

          12             MR. McKAY:  It's recognized that in the past,

          13   we had provided guideline letters under the umbrella of

          14   them all being confidential.  Through our process of

          15   analysis and discussion and coming up with this

          16   stipulation, we, Company and Wexpro, have taken a more

          17   specific and careful review of all of those guideline

          18   letters and feel that they will be able to be provided

          19   without them needing to be confidential.

          20             And so at this moment, our anticipation is

          21   that they will be able to be provided there.  We did

          22   reference this in our discussion and thought that if,

          23   in fact, there were something, we can't promise things

          24   on future guideline letters, for example, that we would

          25   simply be providing that document in a redacted form on
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           1   that website so that they'd be able to see everything

           2   else they could.

           3             But, again, we would want to be able to have

           4   the reference for that guideline letter out there and

           5   people be able to see that it existed.  Right now it's

           6   anticipated that they would not be confidential.

           7             MR. CLARK:  And then regarding the -- the

           8   availability of information about the actual cost of

           9   the Wexpro gas, I think you addressed this toward the

          10   end of your summary, Mr. McKay, but could you review

          11   again what's the -- what's the Company's intent -- if

          12   you need to consult, I'm happy to -- is there an

          13   understanding among the parties or does the Company

          14   have an intent regarding when and how and what

          15   intervals that information would be provided?

          16             I think this was addressed at a technical

          17   conference recently, and -- and I'm interested in

          18   whether you're looking for direction from the

          19   Commission on that in this order?

          20             MR. McKAY:  Sure.  To respond to that, I

          21   think it would be best if we were to return -- not

          22   return.  Let's turn to my exhibit, and that's

          23   Exhibit 1.3.  And for illustrative purposes, you don't

          24   have to, but this was an updated exhibit, so you can

          25   turn to Exhibit 1.3 updated, or if you have the
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           1   other -- if you don't have that, I think the point I'm

           2   going to make can be illustrated off of the original

           3   1.3.

           4             But what I want to point out in this exhibit,

           5   it's a two-page exhibit, and the first page is the

           6   calculation that shows the cost of service price, which

           7   is I think what your question is referring to.  We're

           8   also showing what the purchase price is.

           9             So the reason I wanted us to turn here is

          10   that we, Questar Gas, are calculating this cost of

          11   service price using into-the-pipe volumes on a monthly

          12   basis.  When I say "monthly," I want to make sure that

          13   that's understood that you need to calculate a cost of

          14   service price using 12 months' worth of data.  So it's

          15   a 12-month moving total if you will.

          16             We calculate that every month.  We intend and

          17   have been providing that information in our quarterly

          18   reports in the IRP.  And we would assume that that

          19   would be something we would continue to do with the

          20   backup behind those calculations.

          21             If the Commission desired it more often than

          22   that, we also could do that.  Right now that seems like

          23   a good standard to continue to have going forward.  And

          24   all parties will be able to weigh in and look at it and

          25   view it.
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           1             MR. CLARK:  So quarterly in the IRP with

           2   supporting documents?

           3             MR. McKAY:  Yes.

           4             MR. CLARK:  Thank you.  That's helpful.

           5   That's all my questions --

           6             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you.

           7             MR. CLARK:  -- Chair LeVar.

           8             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  I was just wondering in

           9   paragraph 17, the stipulation, if there was a minor

          10   typographical error on the second line.  Should there

          11   be the word "well" before the word "costs" on the

          12   second line of paragraph 17?

          13             MS. SCHMID:  Yes.  Yes.

          14             MR. McKAY:  We would feel pretty comfortable

          15   if that were to be added there.

          16             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  That term is defined in the

          17   Wexpro I and II agreements?

          18             MR. McKAY:  It is.  You could say dry hole

          19   cost or non-commercial costs, but it is specifically.

          20   I think that's the point here is it's associated with

          21   wells.  So I don't know if that it would be incorrect

          22   if people -- but that is the intent.

          23             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Thank you.  My only other

          24   question is when is this stipulation scheduled to be

          25   considered by the Wyoming Commission?
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           1             MS. LARKIN BELL:  November 18th.

           2             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you.  I think

           3   that's all from us then.  Anything further from any

           4   party?

           5             MS. SCHMID:  Nothing further from the

           6   Division.

           7             MR. OLSEN:  We have nothing further.

           8             MS. LARKIN BELL:  Nothing further.

           9             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  We are adjourned.  Thank

          10   you.

          11             (The proceedings concluded at 10:12.)
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